
AGENDA
LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL

Committee Meetings
Tuesday, March 22, 2005

Second Floor - County Administration Building
212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072

1'elephone - 803-359-8103 -- FAX 803-359-8101

1:30 p.m. - 1:45 - p.m. - Airport
(1) Review of the Five-Year CIF (Construction Improvement Projects) 2006-2010 Plan

for the Lexington County Airport at Pelion A

(2) Old Business/New Business
(3) Adjournment

1:45 p.m. - 2:15 p.m. - Planning and Administration
(1) Resolution Adopting the All Natural Hazard Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan

for the Central Midlands Region of South Carolina B
(2) MetLife Foundation and Libraries for the Future Grant - Library Services -

Dan MacNeill, Director C

(3) Zoning Map Amendment M04-07 - 8065 Irmo Drive D
(4) 2005 Rhythm on the River - West Metro Chamber of Commerce E
(5) Old Business/New Business

(6) Adjournment

2:15 p.m. - 2:35 p.m. - Justice
(1) Procurement Procedures - Clerk of Court - The Honorable Beth Caffigg F

(2) Old Business/New E;usiness

(3) Adjournment

2:35 p.m. - 3:05 p.m. - Health & Human Services
(1) Lexington County EMS Charges . Ms. Alla Zurakhov, 205 Avery Lane, Columbia, SC 29212 . . G
(2) EMS Grant-in-Aid Program (DUI Funds) - FY2006 - Public Safety/EMS -

Tim James, Deputy County Administrator FL

(3) SC Office of Rural Health (SCORH) Grant -FY2005 - Public Safety/EMS -
Tim James, Deputy County Administrator

(4) Assistance to Firefighter and Safer Grant - Public Safety/Fire Service -
1 im James, Deputy County Administrator

(5) Old Business/New Business
(6) Adjournment





AGENDA
LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL

Tuesday, March 22, 2005
Second Floor - Council Chambers - County Administration Building

212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina 29072
Telephone - 803-359-8103 FAX - 803-359-8101

4:30 P.M. - COUNCIL CHAMBERS

Call to Order/Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

4:30 P.M. - Public Hearing
(1) Ordinance 04-11 - Approving the Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement Between Lexington

County and Nucor Corporation

Employee Recognition - Art Brooks, County Administrator
Shining Stars

Transfer of Fee-in-Lieu of Tax Agreement From Solectron South Carolina
to Solectron USA, Inc R

Presentation of Resolution
(1) William L. Rawl, Jr. Presented by Councilman Davis

Resolutions S

(1) Reverend Donald P. Davis
(2) Lowefl C. "Butch" Spires, Jr.

Appointments T

Bids/Pu rchases/RFPs

(1) Administration Auxiliary Building Renovations U

(2) Bellemeade Stoim Drainage Improvements - Community & Economic Development
(3) Motorola 800 MHZ Radios/VHF Portable Radios and Accessories -

Public Safety/Fire Service
(4) Motorola 800 MHZ Radio and Accessories - Sheriff's Department X



Chairman's Report

Administrator's Reporl

Approval of Minutes - Meeting of March 8,2005 V

Zoning Amendments
(1) Zoning Map Amendment M04-06 -6172 Bush River Road -3 and Final Reading Z
(2) Zoning Map Amendment M05-01 - 6172 Bush River Road - 3d and Final Reading 1

(3) Zoning Map Amendment M04-09 - 5466 Bush River Road - 3 and Final Reading 2

Ordinance
(1) Ordinance 05-0 1 - An Ordinance to Amend Section 54-6 1 (c) of the Franchised

Collectors Ordinance for Lexington County- - 2'' Reading 3

Committee Reports
Planning & Administration, J. Owens, Chairman
(I) Resolution - Carolina Culinary Food, L.P. - Financing Agreement - (Tentative) 4
(2) MetLife Foundation and Libraries for the Future Grant - (Tab C)
(3) Zoning Map Amendment M04-07 - 8065 Irmo Drive - 2 Reading - (Tab D)
(4) 2005 RJythni on the River - (Tentative) - (Tab E)

Health & Human Services, J. Carrigg, Jr., Chairman
(1) EMS Grant-in-Aid Pro-arn (DUI Funds) - FY2006 - Public Safety/EMS - (Tab H)
(2) SC Office of Rural Health (SCORH) Grant - FY200S - Public Safety/EMS - (Tab I)
(3) Assistance to Firefighter and Safer Grant -Public Safety/Fire Service - (Tab J)

Public Works, B. Derrick, Chairman
(I) COATS Enhancement Grant Application -Public Works - (Tab M
(2) Annual DHEC Used Oil Grant Application - Solid Waste - (Tab 0)

Budget Amendment Resolutions

OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS
EXECUTIVE SESSION/LEGAL BRIEFING
MATTERS REQUIRING A VOTE AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT



— — — — a — — — — — a — — — — a a — a 
AIRPORT: LEXINGTON COUNtY AiRPORT AT PELBN 

ASSOCLATIONJ: LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

____ HVE YEAR CIP 2006-2010 

Date' Ma,ch 7,2(109 
F? PROGRAM DESCRIP1ION TOTAL COST FEDERAL COST STATE COST LOCAL COST 

2001 EtecirlcalJLIghIiii0 System Rplacenient 
Engineerinç Uesgn 
Corisuucljoi 0oss - Runay LightIng and Etec. 
Construction Ccss . J'away UghtIng and Flee 
Ejeutnoal Vault and EqiJipmerit 
Biodirig arni Coostnjctkxi Phase Services 
DPE Plan 

Subtotal 

LandAcquisltion 
2006 TOTAL 

S 46900 
97,900 

5 135200 
S 36.000 
5 20,000 
S IC 000 
$ 351,000 

$ 505000 
$ 851,000 

44,555 
93,005 

5 125440 
5 34200 
S 19,000 
S 142541 
$ 333,45(1 

$ 475,000 
$ 308,450 

S 1,173 
S 2.448 
5 '3.380 
$ 900 
$ 500 

75 
$ 8,775 

$ 12,500 
$ 21,275 

S 1.113 
S 2440 
5 3,380 
5 900 
5 500 
5 3'S 
5 8,775 

S 12,500 
21,275 

200? Runway Widening and StTengthening 
Pavement EvalaUcr Study 
DEE Update 
Enginennq Design, Survey arid Testing 
Runway Widet4uin Ocnstructroqi 
Runway Stiengttiening 
Lighting and Skr. Relocason 
Utddirmg ajid Construclion Phase SeNices 

Subto rat 

land Acquisilicii - 

2007 TOTAL 

S 10.050 
$ 5.000 
5 60,000 
S 275,700 
S 491,100 
S 50,000 
$ 4.5000 
S 907800 

$ 200,000 
S 1,107 SOC 

S 9500 
S 475) 
S 57.000 
S 262.655 
S 438,045 
S 47.500 
S 42,750 
$ 862,410 

190,000 
5 1,052,410 

250 
$ 125 
$ 1500 
$ 6918 
$ 11528 
5 1250 , 1,125 
$ 22bS5 

$ 5,000 
$ 27,695 

$ 250 
5 125 
S 1.500 
$ 6.910 
V 11,528 
$ 1,250 
$ 1,125 
$ 22,605 

$ 5,000 
5 27,695 

2001 Apron and Taziway Rehabilitation 
Design and Survey $ 7,000 S 6,650 5 IfS S 115 
CcnslrijcUcn S 6-5000 61750 S 1.025 S 1,625 
Bidding and Construction Phase Ser',ces 5 6,500 5 6.175 S 163 5 163 

SuWota $ 78 5110 $ 74,515 5 1,963 $ 1,963 

T-Hangar and Apron Expansion - 

OBE Plan s 15,000 5 14,250 S 375 5 375 
Engineering Design and Surveys S 50,000 5 s7500 1.250 5 25€ 
Geotectinical Repol & 6,000 5 5700 5 150 S 150 
FdocaIe 'Aflnd Core arc Segmented Oriie & 5,000 S 4750 $ 125 S 125 
Octisftuctaor Five Unit T'Hangar S 183,000 5 173,550 S 4,576 S 4,575 
PAPI9 S 40,000 5 38,000 $ 1,000 5 1,000 
Apron 5,pansioo S 346,500 5 329,175 $ 8.063 5 e6e3 
BidOIng and Construclion Phase SenArs S 55.000 S 52,250 $ 1.375 S 1375 

Subtotal $ 700,500 $ 565,475 $ 17,513 $ 17513 



Hangars, Ramp and Apron 

2ave Car Parkino 
Eng'neaririq lesting, Surey and Oesri 
Cnstrucliari Coats 
8iddng arid Construcliaii Pbdse Seuvirts 

Subtotal 

Runway Exte,iaiun Justifioation Sluot 

2009 

260d TOTAL 

5,fl5 
5 33,250 

2,850 
is 41,325 

$ 28,500 

5 d09,875 

s 
8 075 
& 75 
$ 1,03d 

$ 750 

$ 22312 

S 138 
5 '375 
$ '5 
$ 7,083 

$ 750 

$ 21,3)3 

Corporate Harigr and Apron C-panion 
DBE Plan 
En9ineecirig Design and Surreys 
Cerpotale Hangaj arc Ramp 
Corstiichori @1 Apiort and Taxilano 
Cors'3uctiori of Service Road 
Bidding and Ccnstrucricxi Prase Sericas 

Sabo La I 

Environmental Assessn'tnt 

Runway and Taxiway ExLen5ion 
ORE Plan 
Er,giree.ing, Design and Sri rveys 
CoasboLtIuli RUnway Extensiojt 
000s(Ejct,o,i Taxn'ray Extersicn 
Consljuctjon or Lighting BenovaUon 
9188mg end CiirsbuoU00 Phase Senvices 

Sub rcLal 

S 5,500 
5 35,000 
$ 3,000 
$ 43,56i3 

$ 31,000 

5 852,510 

S ISO® 
31,000 

5 24R,000 
5 78.700 
$ 25,000 
$ 25,1KM) 

S 422,300 

$ 150,0170 

$ 15,000 
$ 60.300 
S 425.000 
S 235,000 
S 50,000 
S 30.000 
5 153C0 

1,38t 600 

5 14,254) 
S 30,520 
S 23.5,600 
8 14,785 
$ 23,750 
$ 23,750 
S 402,135 

S 14250O 

5 14,250 
5 57,255 
5 403,/50 
S 223,250 
5 47,500 
S 28,600 
$ 774,535 

$ 2,319,/70 

5 375 
S 750 
S 0,200 
$ 1,068 
$ 025 
$ 625 
$ 10,583 

$ 3,750 

5 375 
$ 1,505 
5 10,025 
S 8,575 
S 1,250 
S 751) 

$ 20,383 

S 34.715 

2010 ALP Update 

5 3/5 
S 790 
5 6,200 
5 1,568 
5 525 
$ 625 
$ 10,583 

$ 3,750 

S 3/5 
5 1,508 
S 10,625 
$ 5,875 
5 1,250 

7511 

$ 20,353 

3 34,715 2009 TOTAL 

085 JlJniJte 
Engineering Design and Surveys 
l0UiSl Haniqars 
avl'ng arid Ta,xilanes 

Apioin Erpansnoo 
CeRorate :-laniar and Ramp 

Sub (ala! 

$ 50,000 

8 6,000 
S 38,700 
S 370,000 
5 60,000 
5 285.000 
S 280,Ci0C 

$ 1,039,7001 

$ 1,089,700 

$ 47,500 

5 5,700 
5 36,765 

351,500 
$ 57,000 
S 270,750 
S 266,000 
$ 997,715 

5 1,035,215 24310 TOTAL 

5 1,250 

5 150 
5 968 
1 9,250 
S 500 
S 7,125 
S 7.000 
$ 25,993 

5 21,243 

$ 25O 

5 ISo 
5 968 
8 9,250 
5 1,500 
S 7,125 
S 7,030 
$ 25,993 

$ 27,243 

I 

- 
Five Year rota) J 5 28600 $ 025,170 5 132,240 S IJ2,24 

Approved: _____________________________________________ LsxMiglcn County. Soe0i OaccALnta 



MEMORANDUM

TO: County Council

FROM: Diana Burnett, Clerk

DATE: March 14, 2005

Resolution Adopting the all Natural E-Iazard Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plan for the
Central Midlands Region of South Carolina

On March 23, 2004, John A. Huffinan, AJCP, Planner and Grants Administrator for Central Midlands
Council of Governments addiessed Council on a regional disaster mitigation plan that Central Midlands and
the Emergency Management Division of the S.C. Adjutant General's office were working on. Mr. Huffinan
said in order for Countics to apply for 75 percent grant finding from FEMA, Federal Emergency
Management Agency, for mitigation that has to be done for work caused by natural disasters such as
hurricanes, winter storms, tornadoes that each council of government must first adopt an al! natural hazard
risk assessment and mitigation plan. By adopting this resolution, it will enable the County to be eligible for
funding through FEMA.

Mr. Jeff Anderson has reviewed the resolution for adoption and John Fechtel, Director olPublic Works has
reviewed and recommended the approval of the mitigation plan for Lexington County.



All Natural 1-Iazanls Mitigation Plan Adopt jolt Resolution

Resolution # ______________ Adopting the All Natural I-laiards Risk Assessiiient and
NI itigation Plan for the Cent rat Midlands Region of South Carol ilia

Whereas, (Name of local overnnicnt) recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to
C0 Ic and property; and

Whereas, under aki rig hazard mitigation actions before disasters occur will reduce the
potential or harm to people and property and save taxpaycr dollars; and

Whereas, an adopted at hazards mitigation plan is reqturcd as a condition of tutni c giant
iiindmg of mitigation proj ects; and

Whereas, (Name of local government) participated jointly ii the planning process with
the other units of government in the Central NI idlauds region of South Carolina to prepare
an all hazards iii ligation plan;

Whereas, (Name of Local Government) is aware that revision and updating oftlic plan is
ctical for active and effective hazard iii itigation and thai (Name of Local Government)
will monitor arid record hazard related data and events that can he used to update the all
nataral hazards in iti gation plan;

Now, therefore, he it i-esolved, that the (IJame of governing council), hereby adopts the
Alt Natural I-hazards Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plait for the Central Mid lands
Region as an official plan and will tinder-lake annual record rig of hazard events, their
impact, dtiration, and any expenditures made to remediate hazard events

Passed: (Date_________________

Certifying Official ______ _____________________________________________________

t'yped Name and Signature of ChiefAdnii ustrative or Elected Official



GOALS OF LEXINGTON COUNTY. SC

I. Develop better data for the county relating to type, impact, location and cost of the
mitigation of natural disasters occurring in Lexington County.
2. Increase the county's internal capacity to initiate and sustain emergency response
opeiations during aiicl after a natural disaster and thereby mitigate the effects of
hazardous events
3. Lnhance existing or design new policies andlor programs in the county to reduce the
potcntial damaging effects of hazards without hindering other community goals or
Impcding hazard niiLigation programniing in the county.
4. Protect the most vulnerable populations, buildings and critical flicilities in the county
through the implementation of cost—effective, environmentally sound, and technically
feasible mitigation projects.
5 Protect the public health, safety and wellhre by increasing the public awareness of
existing hazards and by fostering both individual and ithlie responsibility in the
mitigation of risks caused by natural hazards.
6. Increase understanding of all residents ui the county about the natural hazards
threatening local areas arid the techniques available to minimize vulnerability to those
haz;irds,
7. Maintain the econoniic vitality of the county in the face of natural disasters.
8. Ensure that the residents of the county will have secure homes, institutions and place
of employment that ire now vulnerable to natural disasters.
9. Ensure that the availability and fund ioning of the infrastructure of I he county will not
he igil i lieantl'v disrupted by a natural disaster.
1 0 Inventory and map al siructures iii flood plains and assess propeil cs that are or iiiay
he repetitive loss properties.

ACTION PLAN FOR UNINCORPORATED LEXINGTON COUNTY, SC

Natural hazards ranked by priority in unincorporated Lexington County:

I) Forest Fires/Wild hi cs
2) F loading
3) Winier Snow and lee S terms
4) Thunderstorms/Summer Storms with accompanying hail, wind & liglitnuig
5) Flu ri canes
6) foi nados
7) Earthquakes
8) DroLiglIt/Fleat

Flu s is not intended t a lie an exclusive list of natural hazards that threaten the county.
These are the most miuliortant natural h,izards as rated hy Lexington Cotuit y participants
in the planning process

VIII- 71



The folLowing are Ihe proposed pi ojecis to he undei taken/continued in LiiirnCOfl)orated
Lexineton County fbi hazard inhtrgairori during 2004-2C09
(Ahhi cviations the Type of Mu igat loll iliC as lollows. I'/\ = Preventive i\ct ivities. PP =
Property Protection /\ctivities. NB = Nitiiral and Benelicial Functions/Resource
Preservation Acti\ itics I/S = Emergency Services Acti ties SP Stnictural Proiecis. 'I
= Public [nfbnnatioii Activities and Ci S Geographical I iif'ornaatioii Systems Activities
Key plan umbreh]a go,i]s are enuiiier:rted in Seeuoii VII

Type I'vpe of
Flazard

Activily I_cad

Agent
Finance
Source

Local
Goais
Addressed

Priority (I
highest. 4

lowest)

PS Poiesr
Fire''WrId
F'i res

unproved
suppression
r esponse
(rankers, dry

lien re a I sr

I_exrug.
Lrirrntv

C.rpil.rt
tmprove
Hudger

2, 3, 7, 5,
and 9

1

t1A Forest
FrreWiirt
Fires

Regulate
open burning
by penn
(Red liar
:rlen-r'.)

t

Corririr
Operrtnrg
bnrtget

3 arid 5 2

IS Forest
Fire,V itt
H cc s

tue Code
en rn cement!
inspeetr errs

t.exn,ig
Ununty

()pen.riiiir_'
inleels

2, 5, :rrnd S t

Pt' Frnre',L

t'rie'V ill
u es

(lonistruer
div irvdrarrt
Pr ii arri ii
ntrisit areas ot
Coin ilis

Lexirre
CniriitV

Capital
IliThrS'e.
t3rrtters ii
('bairn

2.3,7,5,
arid

I

c;ts I'oresn
ne '\'r' r Id

lies

tise ('IS
eapae ii \ un

nrrap, i-eCortI
"rid flues, all
IiaCiird
L'\C',iIS

Lexinrg
Ct ,nirrtr

(Tiperrinig
I urigc:r

I arid ii) t

VIII - 72



PA Flooding Fnlbrce
county
zoning &
stormwater
ordinances to
restrict
d eve! Opmen I

In flood-
ptatns

Lexing.
County

-

Operating
Budget

2, 5, and 8 I

P1 Flooding Declare May
of each year
to be Flood
Awareness
Month

Lexing.
County

Operating
Budget

2,5, and 8 2

PP tlch Coordinate
'V ith other
local gov' is
iii county to
inaNe stream
channel imp

Lexing
Counta /

municip
aNtics in

county

Capital
I nipro ye,

Budgets

2,3, 7. ,
and 9

3

SP Flooding Replace
structurally
obso etc
bridges

Lexing.
County!
towns!
SCDO'I'

Capital
I nipro ye,

Budgets

2, 3, 7,8,
i rd 9

2

PA Flooding IdentiFy &
aontict all
I epetiti\ C
055l°P'

Lexing.
Counta'/
tiii\\ its in
couat'

Operating
l3iideets

I, 5. and 10 I

PA Flooding Ensure thai l.cxing Operating 2. 3, 8, and
tIre FEM A Couat! Budgets I 0

131 e vat ion towns in
Cci tiflcate is county
P PCi! v
C I) Iii Ic I ed

betoi e
issliairce on
'1opwty in
ti ood areas

VIII- 73



IA FliinInig Undertake Lextug Opeatig 2, 5.8, and
Planning to County' Ihiilgcts 10

11111)1 iCC tovtis Ii
Coiiitnunjty eotnt"

I't ,iI iii

Systciii
Rank i'tg

RI' \Vintc'r lull Cr lInc I etnc Electt ic 2.3.7. 3.

S,iow Sc C,isc'nicrit (:ottIlI\/ utility nid 9

cc Snrms clearance SCAN;\ provider
IL lee!

Coops

ES \V ,,Ocr
Sioiv Sc
Ice Storms

Deluis
i cn,ova I anti
t ,ad
ciCa rti nec

vnik

I .cxiiig.
County
Public
\Vo k
and S. C
I')C)T

I_cang.
(,,iil inty
Inh!,c

or ks C
SCID1I)T

tipci ating
Iludgen.

2, 3 7. 8,
,nid 9

I

35 \Vnitcr
Snow &
Lu Storms

Use hn and
Ian U ansut

5' stun, toi'
Cute rgeric
shelters,
C l',lcnanO•t &
ciinIriLiitICttt

cipact t7

Central
NI idlands

I nitisit

System'
DART
sr stem
etc

CMK'l-\
and I)r\ RT

hnilgcts

3d, 7. and S I

35 \Vniiut I1iiietIre and I.c'\tngioll Capital 2 3. 7 S.
S'in'' & u'se clue County! ItIipn\C mid 9
Ice Slot nTh, generators at c'cliool dist t'nuleets or

eiitic€d at,1 cities, opetatitig
'CLI cation budget if
,utn i enial

'Ilurintler- !tit,dl sutge lexItig Capital 2,3,7,8,
01105 'I 'teeto! in it 'univ I] iipi CL C ,i,id 0

(I-la,! ci ,tteal Sc Jtudgeis
\Vi id. itre, ii tics Scha,,
Lightning) List, it Is

Sc

VUI- 74



PA 'thunder- Adopt Lexing. Operating 2, 3,4, 5, 2
storms procedure to County Budget and 8
(I Fail, suspend
Wind, operations in
Lightning) doe, storms

PA Thunder-
storms

(Hail,
Wiiid,
Iaghtning)

Clear power
lute and
utility
oasoments of
debris

SCANA
I Flee

Coops

Public
\Vorks

Operating
Budgets

2, 3, 7,8,
and 9

1

PA thunder-
storms

(I-lu I,
Wind,
Lightning)

Remove
taller trees
lear enti cal
llieilities

[eying
County
& Coops
SCANA

Public
Works

Operating
Budget

2, 3, 7, 8,
and 9

2

ES Hurricanes Develop
portable
water
treatnient
facilities

Lexing
Jo nt
Monipi /
City
Diii ifl os/

Columh,

Capital
Imp rove,

l3udget

2, 3,7, 8,
and 9

2

SP II an ieanca Replace
water storage
inks and

pa mps as
a coded

Water
provider
s iii
county

Cnpiial
Ii "prove
Budgets

2, 3. 7. S.
and 9

2

SP I lurrieanos Add capacity
so lid

'caste

dispo-.al
facilities
set vaig the
county to
liaudle mote
clebn s

Lexing.
County
md
solid
waste
contract
ors

Capital
Improve
Budgets

2, 3. 7, 8.
and 9

2

VIII - 75



C
) C
 

: 
4 

7-
 - 

0 J-
 

0 1.
 

0 J:
 

0 fl 
0 (-

7 

=
—

-—
 

c-
=

 
?r

1-
C

-0
E

 
7-

 
7 

7-
n 

? 

—
 

—
--

 
- 

—
--

 25
 

C
2o

 
z_

 

- 
- 

-r
-r

 -
 

=
 

o—
v—

—
_ 

cE
-7

C
E

 
' 

r0
-s

 7
- 

—
- 

C
 

--
 0-
r 

. 

7-
 

r—
 

—
 

—
 

E
or

o 
F

c Zr
 

—
 

—
 

—
 

—
 

—
 

—
 

1;
E

-:
 

2E
S

 
a-

 

0f
lfl

T
 

-E
 

. 

E
 

1r
 

E
 

oc
2-

E
 

O
 

E
 

p-
 

E
 

C
C

O
 

77
7-

 
IC

- 
7-

7-
 

=
 

ç0
 

7-
( 

7-
0=

 
çf

7 
07

-C
 

7-
 

=
 

r 

E
 

=
 (I
Z

 
7-

C
- -- 

- : tC
 

—
 

—
 

:_
,_

 

a . —
 - 

a 
j—

 
a7

 

—
 

!-
 : a 3:
 

—
 

N
 

=
- a-

 

—
 



PA Eat tliquak Work with
SCANA to
encure that
lie Lake

Murray Darn
vtthstanda
lirture events

Lexing
County
'and

SCANA

Opetating
Budget

2,3,4, and 8 1

ES Earthquak.
en tising
darn
flu lure

Ensure that
'Yarning
system
works for
rapid e\-aeu
iroiti lands
di wnstrea iii

Lake Daiti

SCANA Opetating
Budge

2, 3,4, and 8 1

PA Eartliquak.
cat's' rig
darn
fat lure

l)e'elop
clearly
nit ked and
e' platned
e vaeuatroti

mites for
htrn failure

Lexirir.
County!
City of
\Vest
Coluriib!
Cayee &
SCANA

Operating
Budgets

2,3,4, and 8 1

P1 Eartliqtrak. Develop
speakers
bureau about
earthquake
arid other
natural
iii saster
till eats to the

county

Lexrng
COUII tv!

SCAN.\
tO\YttS

cities

Operating
Budget

2,4, 5, 6,
and 8

1

ES Eartliqtrak. itirplerneirt Leing. Capital 2, 3,4. attd 8 2
"Reverse County Budget
911" Alert to
auiectad

eijtrake area

VII! - 77



>
 

C
 

C
 

F
 

C
 

C
 

3 
iF

 
U

 

C
 

C
 

F
 

—
 

r.
 

—
'3

 
-.

 
r 

F
 

C
r.

 r
 

Z
n 

Q
r.

 
Z

r.
 

0—
 

0 

—
-1

 

cc
' 

C
 

- 
3.

Z
 

=
0 

F
 

-,
 

!—
;;I

 
q 

C
c 

C
-;

 r a >
1 

(f
t 

C
c 

LI
 '-I

 
C

c 

-c
c;

 
C

c 

C
- if'
 

'3
- 

C
: 

C
,; 

(U
' 

C
,; 

N
j 

-(
0 

F
 

C
 

I: 
0-

 
C

 
—

 

rr
_-

c-
-—

 
C

. 
C

 
=

 
—

 
E

 
r]

3f
c 

--
 

(T
hZ

-H
C

0-
 

o0
o-

 
0 

5 
v,

7,
c 

—
- 

>
:)

LC
 

'3
-,

, 
0'

 r, 
2r

,' t: —
 

fl=
H

rn
 

0 
00

0 
—

 
k 

5 F
: 

'F
N

J 
—

' 

fl Z '3
 

U
t 

=
 

2F
 

33
0 

O
t r:

 
(f

t 
7i

 2 0;
 

=
0 t 0 

'It
 

S
 

a=
 

(it
 

C
U

D
 t 

in
n ( 
S

 
C

- ci
t 

H
 

'I:
 a - 0 C

C
 

3-
 

? 0 0 0,
 

0'
 

3-
 

U
n 0 0 0,
 

3'
 

LI
 

0 tn
 

N
J 

,J
 



Dun iig the preparation oF the comprehensive tive—year revision ofthe plan, the public
shall be offered an opportunity to attend the meetings of the county committee to give
input and also to comment on the action plan of each localj urisdiction prior to its
inclusion in the regional plan. A copy of the regional plan shall he made available at the
offices of the agency responsible fix preparing the five-year eurriprehensive revision
Notices of the time and date and place of the meeting of the local jurisdiction adopting
the plan by resolution he published as an article of general interest news or as a legal
notice in a newspaper of general circulation not less than 10 working days prior to
passage of the adopting resolution

Local jurisdictions may lake and arc encouraged to take additional measures to involve
the public in the planning and evaluation process but should take the above listed
measures at a minimum to afford the public in opportunity to be involved in the
document preparation process.

A sample form used by the CPT and county risk assessment and hazard mitigation
committees to underm akc the annual evaluation process and annual report prcparatoii
should he situ i Iar to 1 hat included below.

Form br Use in Updating the ____________________________________ Action Plan
(luau, I Name ci ixici Ccc. cn,ui,ciii)

type Date l-tstnnate of Aeti\ it 'Cs Date Collaboi aii\ e New Activities
of of I-h rat ci to A cii vu ties Act vii cs to Obstacles Undetlak en to

I laza ccl hazard Damages Impi cii ient Effecicd I mpletncnt to Resolve
Evene Even I

E_

P Ia ii I' Ian

J

np lernent
Plait

Ot,stac cs lo
Plan

up I ciii c at nit On

-

Name and title of person completing form

Date form conip eted____________________________

Signal nrc of persons :o iii p1 eting lb mi

Govetrniucntal responses to hcizards may he used in defining a hazard event. Ibm
example, a city fire clcpartnieni answers a call to put out a wild fire. Linus of
Governments may usc insurance claims to report hazard damages where appropriate.

IX- 3



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
FP4ANCE DEPARTMENT

interoffice
MEMORANDUM _____________

to: County Council

from: Evelyn Babbitt, Manager of Grants Administration

subject: Grant from MetLife Foundation and Libraries for the Future
Reading America Program

date: March 15, 2005

The Library is requesting your approval to apply for the $5,000.00 grant from the MctLifc
Foundation and Libraries for the Future to purchase books and films. There are no
matching hinds required, only the inkind expenses of the library staff This grant does not
fund any personnel.



Lexington
Co u n ty
Public
Library

LEXINGTON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM

RE: Grant from MerLife Lou ndation and Libraries for the Future

DATE: M:irch 14, 2003

The Library would like to apply fot i $5,000 grant from the MetLife loundarion
and Libraries for the Future which would fund a series of book and film
discussions with recent Hispanic immigrant teens and their families. The program
themes wou Li focus on issues import nt to immigrant families dealing with culture
dash, American identi, and the struggle to he bicult 0 rd as well as bilingual.

The Library would work in partnership with the Parenting In formation and
Resource Center of Lexington School District One, with whom we hai e worked
previously in presenting Hispanic celebration to families with oung children This
outreach to teens is a logical next step in serving this growing community.

The grant i> a 55,000 cash grant to help initiate the progra ni and cover local
expenses. 1 hcse funds won l1 cover Iii thor visits, film performance licenses,
purchase of Looks, supplies, and cosrs incurred by our partner (such is translators,
outside spe.ikers/ficilitators, supplic). The Library's share of this program is I ii-
Kind support, which is primarily staff time, some hooks, and postage.

-

Please see t lie attached doctuitentation for further inlorrnatioi a Thank you for
your consideration of this grant application rec1uest

5440 Augusta Road Leingiou, South Caiofina 29372 Telephone (303) 808-2600 FAX (803) 808-2601

MEMO1CJ' DUM

TO- Cnuniy Council

FRON4: Dan MacNciIl

I dreary
40 A ugir sin Ru

'rngtun. SC 29)172

(3) 808-2600

tush u rg—I eess ii ic

C I] C ii

3 rrnory StI IOn 2187
ILshU rg, SC 29111)6

13) 532-9213

vce-\Vest Coin rrri,rn
.uiit ii
1(0 ,\uguta Ilni.
.si Lnninunrinr:r,

191(a)
3) 704-6791

a pin Branch
) NW Coiunrhi:i Me.
) Bin 700

sc 2911 6
(3) 345-5479

Ion Branch
IS Main St.
3. iin, 479
slain, SE] 29053
'3) 791-3208

(her i—Sunrniii
ancii
I Ii maul Si.

). IOn 341
hurt, SC 29054

'3) 892-5387

no lIen rich
ii Si. Andruns Rd.
iiiuuuiuia, SC 2922

'3) 798-7880

lair Branch
line Strect

). iOn 309
SC 29123

3)894-3272

arica Braricir
i Ninnrinroutir se.
). Bnn 130
:ruusra. Sc 29i 6))

3)568-351')

kirinninrie

3j 8(18-2649

c 'u. iib.sc.ins



Grant Proposal
Youth Services

Lexington County Public Library

Reading America Program
A Project of MetLife Foundation and Libraries for the Future

Libraries for the Future, with support from MetLife Foundation, is sponsoring a national
book and film discussion series for recent immigrant teens and their families. The series
will take place in public libraries, and libraries that receive an award will receive 55,000
to implement such a series for the target audience between May 2005 and May 2006.
The program is intended to provide a valuable addition to the exemplary work that many
libraries are already doing with new populations. It is also intended to stimulate
increased connections between local libraries and new audiences in communities
experiencing siificarLt demographic change. Reading America is desied to use
literature, film and the neutral ground of the public library to foster interaction that
positively affects the relationship between the generations, especially those of new
immigrant families.

Libraries selected to participate use the 55,000 cash grant to help initiate the program and
cover local expenses. A portion of the grant will be given to the library's conirnunity
partner to enable them to participate fully in the planning and iniplenientation of the
program. A representative from each library selected, along with a representative from
their community partner, are required to attend a national training in Scottsdale, Arizona
on May 10-11,2005. The grantor will cover the cost of travel, meals and
accommodations for both representatives to this training. Recipient libraries will provide
in-kind support through the portion of staff salaries committed to the implementation of
the series and through in-house copying and printing of materials for the discussion
programs.

Lexington County Public Library, in partnership with the Parenting Information and
Resource Center of Lexington School District One, proposes to host a series of programs
at Lexington Main Library during the fall of 2005 and spring of 2006 for Hispanic
parents and their teen children. Program themes would focus on issues pertinent to
immigrant families dealing with culture clash, traditions, American identity, and the
struggle to be bicultural as well as bilingual. The library would build on the strong
relationship already established with Parent Educator from District One to identify target
families and to ensure the success of the new series. Hispanic celebration programs for
families with young children have been presented during the last three years at Lexington
Main and have had great support and participation. Reaching out to older children of
these Hispanic families is a logical next step in serving this growing community group.
The Youth Services Department looks forward to the opportunity to expand its Hispanic
program initiative through the Libraries for the Future grant



Timeline
Lexington County Public Library
2005 Reading America Program

Program Schedule: Saturdays 2 to 4pm, fall 2005

May 2005: Training in Scottsdale, AZ to be attended by Youth Services Librarian and
one Parent Educator from community partner.

June 2005: Partner meeting to plan fall series of programs and to assign areas of
responsibility. Facilitators and author vill be contacted and booked at this time.

July 2005: Partner meeting to finalize program agendas. Flyers, invitations, posters,
bookmarks and banners will be designed at this time. Also press releases will be sent and
a notice posted on the library's and the school district's website. Books to be given to
participants will be ordered -- author's title for book discussion and a Spanish Language
parenting book, El clamor de lo.vjovenes (The Seven Cr/es of Toa'ay v Teetis) by Timothy
Smith.

August 2005: Program One —Journahng and Self-Concept, an ice breaker designed to
foster interaction between generations and to stimulate conversation among parents and
among teens as they produce their posters.

September 2005: Program Two — Author Visit and Book Discussion, first choice for this
program is Francisco Jimenez, author of BreaAung Through. The book will be given in
advance to teens so that they can read ahead. They will also be given a brief bio of the
author to raise their interest level prior to meeting him.

October 2005: Program Three - Quinceanera Celebration, this third offering assumes
some comfort level among the participants that will make this coming of age discussion
open and lively. There will also be a HOME meeting this month to plan Feliz Navidad

November 2005: Program Four — Movie Event, the final fall program will be a film and
discussion of the film's themes and issues. The first choice of films is Real Women Have
Curves. Second planning meeting for Feliz Navidad will take place.

December 2005: Culminating fall event — Feliz Navidad Celebration, this fourth annual
bilingual family celebration will bring all ages together to share traditions, crafts, music
and food.

January 2006: Partner Meeting to assess success of fall programs and to study
evaluations solicited from participants. Partners will offer their own observations and
discuss spring program possibilities.



February 2006: Partner Meeting to identify two spring program plans and pick dates for
them. Posters and flyers will be designed to invite teens to a March planning meeting
that will serve as a first program.

March 2006: Teen Sharing and Selecting Meeting where teens gather to develop their
upcoming spring events and give input for collection development in the teen fiction and
non-fiction sections.

April 2006: Teen Planning Meeting to develop plans for a May summer reading
bilingual kickoff with a local band. Teens choose band, food, and decorations.

May 2006: Bilingual Teen Summer Kickoff in Lexington Main's parking lot featuring
local teen band playing Latino music, refreshments and summer reading promotion to
attendees.
Partner meeting to evaluate spring programs and write evaluation for the year's teen
initiative.



The MetLife Foundation Rea cling A rnen'ca Program
A Projccr of MetLife Foundation and Libraries for the Future

Application for P31 ucJpatiOil in 2005 Ro,Jw '1mtvra! Progr:itn

Please indicate how you intend to spend the S3,000 grant froiii NIerJifc Foundanon. Indicate what
cash and in-kind contributions the Library nitends to use to support die project. J\SO indicate
matclmig Rinds or in-kind cotiu-iht:nons from addtttoa1 sources (inciLiding your comrnuntv
partner) that would be unbzed for the project.

$250
$1 ,400

52,550 $5,000

S250
$1,400

Grand Total:

$8,650

be sure to indicate the portion of money from Methife Founclat ion that you \vi]J give to your
cominurnty partner to enable them to parneipate Rilly in the planning and implementation of the
p ri gram

The .\Ierlafe Fowidanon Reading America Progia'n apphcarmcmmm faucet Page ii of 13

-

Library MetLife
Fo undatinti

Other
(aicltmee Le:ii flitimur

partner and oilier
flit iLl milL SO In on)

Totak

Budget Item Cash In-Kind Cash Cash In-Kind Gash p/us J1J-Pfld

Soff lime
-

(please specc:v)
YS Lfbrarion

S 2,000
race Li tacors

$750 $2,750
Community
Partner

*

st,ooo si,00o
-

Printing &
duplication

5250 5250

l'iaone/ Fax

I ailing
$50 350 5100

Collee non

development 5500 $1,500 52,000
Gifts and/or
incentives for
nartlc:pants (ho ks)
Refrr shirients

5300 5300 $600

$300 $300

Other costs
(specify): site
Licence, supp Lies
Sub iota/i:

' P P lies)
(a'mehr vis at)

51, 100



Memorandum
March 17, 2005

For: County Council

From: Charlie Compton, Secretar
Lexington County Planning Commission

Reference: Zoning Map Amendment M04-07 (8065 Irmo Drive)

The Planning Commission at its meeting today, March 17,2005, revisited Zoning Map Amendment
M04-07. At their February meeting, the Commission had deferred making a recommendation as
outlined in their memo dated March 9,2005. This was partially because of testimony at the public
hearing from the Sandhurst Subdivision that indicated that discussions with thc developer were
incomplete. By today's meeting the Commission was more concerned that the property owners most
affected by this request have had little or no opportunity for interaction with the applicant or
developer.

The members also still had the same concerns as before:

i) The development plan submitted with thc amendment request did not meet the bufferthg
requirements of the Lexington County Zoning Ordinance.

C• That concern is further amplified by the fact that there are homes in the Sandhurst
Subdivision that are extremely close to this property.

C Large retail developments also have difficulty meeting the County's performance
standards, especially noise generated by trash pick-up and deliveries.

Based on the feeling that this property may be too small and poorly shaped to accommodate intense
development which would be allowed with a General Commercial District (C2) designation, the
Planning Commission recommends denial of Zoning Map Amendment M04-07.



Memorandum
March 9, 2005

For: County Council

From: Charlie Compton, Secret
Lexington County Planning o ission

Reference: Zoning Map Amendment M04-07 (8065 Irmo Drive)

The Planning Commission at its meeting on Thursday. Febniary 17, 2005, considered Zoning Map
Amendment M04-07 Bnke F-filler, Development Administrator, presented first the details o F the
request and then reviewed the information and comments received at the public hearing.

The members were specifically concerned that the development plan submitted with the amendment
request did not meet the buffering requirements of the Lexington County Zoning Ordinance. This
fact was further amplified hy the fact that there are homes in the Sandhurst Subdivision that are
extremely close to the proposed building. There was also information from the public hearing that
indicated that there were incomplete discussions at this time with the Sandhurst Subdivision on these -

issues

Out of fairness to all parties involved, the Planning Commission voted to defer a specific
recommendation until they had information that showed how the applicant intended to meet the
buffenng requirements including performance standards such as light and especially noise. They
also wanted to provide an opportunity (hr the Sandhurst Subdivision to be heard on that issue, with
serious concern for the homes immediately adjoining this property.

As of today no new information is available to share with the Planning Commission at their next
meeting; however, the members could decide to proceed with a recommendation anyway. lIthe
Planning and Administration Committee feels there is enough information for them to move ahead
with a recommendation to the full Council. then it would be appropriate to do so.



I
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Department of Community & Economic Development
County Administration Building (803) 359-8121

2U South Lake Dnve Lexington, South Carolina 29072

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION # M 04 -07

Address and/or description of property for which the amendment is requested:

8065 Irmo Dr. SE Corner of Irmo Dr.. TMS#s 1800-01-054. 1800-02-021. 1800-07-002 p/o

Zoning classtlications: Development (D) General Commercial (C2)
(current) (proposed)

Reason for the request (use the back of this application form if necessary):

To meet the expanding residential growth and demand. Retail Development is necessary for the expanding

residential giowth in the l-lwy 6 corridor..

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of proving the need for the
amendment rests with the applicant.

Date 12/06/2004 Signature 24
Owner? Name(print) Tom Fleming. Regency Centers

(nt"
Address 121 W. Forsyth St. Ste 2(X)

Telephone # 803-782-7088 or 904-598-9000
Jacksonville FL 32202

***f * * * * * .j( * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

1. 12 /6/04 Application Received 4. / /arProperty Posted2. 12/6/04 Fee Received 5. _/jgçNotices Sent
3. J/orNewspaper Advertisement

_/jj66 Planning Commission Recommendation: %rO 'Th1tm OSTL t4r1
\'n. c)te-cE.\c.cw_ '..ç

R-'y-sS '- -
k S't% v1rcNa \)tCv%, \. \-\-s )

** K********************

4jf/crFirst ReadIngk/Q1Puhlic Hearing _// Second Reading _j/_ Third Reading
Results:



STAFF SUMMARY
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT #M04-07

Description of the Amendment: This map amendment request is for a change in zoning
classification from "Development (D)" to "General Commercial (C2)"

Character of the Area: There isa mix ofeommereial and residential property use in the immediate
area The subject property is bordered on the north by Irmo Drive and Mnrra Landing Shopping
Center, on the east by single Family residential , the south by single Family residential (Sandhurst
Subdivision) and on the west by property owned by the City of Columbia..

Zoning History: This propertvis iii the Dutch Fork PlanningArea zoned in 1971/1974. Since 1993,
there have been five requests forioning change Froni D to C2 in the immediate area, one withdrawn,
one granted. the remaining denied.

Conncil District: Six-Councilman Johnny W .Jelfcoat

Attachments: Location Map
Political Boundaries Maps
Perniilted Uses by District

i-i \nocs'L0NINGcoiJNcIL\suNi\10407 vpd



How-ever, home occupation day care is not subject to the 25% of total floor area restriction, or the 750
square feet of floor area restriction imposed on other home occupations. Also, home occupation day
care may be conducted outside on the premises using yard furnishings custbmary to the residential
setting. Additional traffic generation from one delivery and one pick up of each individual each day
shall be considered within the limitations of item "e" above. The Board of Zoning Appeal's
deliberations shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:

I the size of the residence and the outside recreation area;

2 parking and vehicular access to the residence and its ability to accommodate the drop-off and pick-
up of the additional individuals;

3. the stated opinions of the surrounding property owners; and

4. if requested, the acceptability of having an employee ("caregiver" as defined by the South Carolina
Department of Social Services) who is not a resident of the dwelling unit.

21.30 Permitted Uses by District

14 MCHCLE - APPUCNFION OF REGULATIONS

I'byA±cle 10

risk (*) are allowed only when granted a special exception by
Article 12 of this Ordinance.

The columnar chart which follows descnbes the activities permitted within each district. This chart is basedupon
the list of principal activities defined in Section 2110 of this Ordinance and the districts established in Section
1140, and is subject to the fol[owmg:

a. The listing of a permitted activity within a district may be voided upon the application of the special overlay
district regulations pertaining to flooding, drainage, or airports found in Articles 4 and 5 of this Ordinance.

b The provisions of Chapters 2, 3, and 4 of this Article shall apply in all districts to all listed activities as
applicable. The application of these provisions may prohibit an activity from locating in a particular district.

c Within the Limited Restriction (LR) district, all activities except the followmg are permitted without review
for compliance with the specific provisions of this Ordinance: -.

Extremely Hazardous ?v[aterjajs as reaulated by Article 3
Mimn' tions as regulated by /
Mobilt

-
Parks as regulated by

Sexu ted Businesses as re

21.31 Chart 'tted Activities by b

Those
[I

the Bo

7

es that
Zoning

are marked b31
Appeals as outl

t_R111R2iR13I1) I.IiL.!.iL I!- Ij;—. --

XX XX XX XX XX Administrative Ofllces - -XX
XX XX XX XX XX Advertising Signs

XX )C< XX XX XX XX XX Airports
XX XX XX XX XX Animal Operations

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX BoatDocks
XX XX XX Bus and Transit Terminals
XX XX XIX XX Business Services . -

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Cemetenes
XX XX XX XX XX XIX XX XX XX XX Child or Adult Day Care

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Churches
XX XX XX Commurucation Tower

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XXH Community Education
I XX XX XX XX Construction Services

I

XX XX XX XX XX Crops



'V

fR21R3 LDhJRAf:I LCrC1pC21 [fl4LR F :±t.:
XX XX XX Detention Centers

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Essential Services (Lunned)
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Essential Services (Extensive)

XX XX XX XX XX Food Scr;tces
XX XX XX XX General Repair and Maintenance Services
XX XX XX XX XX General Retail (limited)
XX XX XX XX General Retail (Extensive)

XX# XX# XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Group Assembly (Limited)
XX XX XX XX XX Group Assembly (Intermediate)

XX XX XX XX Group Assembly (Extensive)
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Group blousing

XX XX XX XX XX [-Tospitak
XX XX XX XX XX Kennels and Stables

XX XX XX Landfills (Lirmted)
XX XX XX Landfl]Js (intermediate)
XX XX XX Landflls (Extensive)
XX XX XX XX Manufacttirmg (Light Assembly)
XX XX XX Manufactunng (Limited)
XX XX XX Manufacturing (Intermediate)
XX XX XX Manu±hctunng (Extensive)
XX XX XX XX Marinas

XX XX XX XX XX XX Medical Services

XX XX XX Military Installations
XX XX XX XX XX Mining (Limited)

XX XX XX Mining (lntermcdiate)
XX XX XX Mining (Extensive)

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Mini-Parks
XX XX XX XX ivlim-Warehouses

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Mobile Homes
XX XX XX XX XX Mobile Home Parks (Limited) *
XX XX XX XX XX Mobile Home Parks (Extensive) *

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX NaWral Reserves
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Non-Assembly Cultural

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Nursing Homes
XX XX XX XX XX Personal Convenience Services

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Plant Nurseries

XX XX XX PowerPlants
XX XX XX XX XX
XX XX
XX XX

XX XX

XX XX XX

XX Professional Services

XX Radioactive Matenals Handling

XX Railroad

XX Recycling Centers
XX Research Services

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Residential Detached
XX IX XX XX XX XX XX Residential Attached (2 dwelling units)

XX XX XX XX XX! Restdennal Attached (3 ormore dwelling units)
XX XX XX IX XX Retirement CenterslAssisted Living

XX XX XX SiilvagelWreekmg Yard

0<] 1CLi2 - APP] icAnos or' iI,(iriLcnoss [S



hIRfftIit2I R3)UD [RiEf1RTfLC:j;C1:fl2 f fJJfLR '1

XX XX XX XX XX Business Parks

Shopping Centers Speculative Development
Industrial Parks

XX XX XX XX
XX XX XX

I XX XX XX XX Towmg and Impoundment Lot
XX XX XX XX Trade Enterpnses
XX XX XX XX Transient Habttation
XX XX XX XX Transport and Warehousing (Limited)
XX XX XX Transport and Warehousing (Extensive)
XX XX XX XX XX Transport Services
XX XX XX XX Undertaking

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Utilines
XX XX XX XX Vehicle Parking
XX XX XX XX Vehicle Repair
XX, XX XX XX Vehicle Sales
XX XX XX XX XX Vehicle Servicing (Limited)
XX XX XX XX Vehicle Servicing (Extensive)

XX XX XX XX XX j Veterinanan
I

XX XX XX XX XXI Zoos

# The permitting of this activrtv in these districts is allowed only if the Group Assembly (Lirmted) activity is a membership
facility owned, operated, and used by the property owners in the surrounding residential area for which the facility is being
established.

16 ARUCflE -APFLiC'flONoF REGULXiIONS

1



NC
I

CazzzzCN



NC
I

C2:

2:

2:2:
CN



s)zCzC



ZONING
DEGNATIONS

ROIC caAsEIcarIcw.

kRJ—
rLLsFt4 RuLI4

—

RH:zz_
p-———
JTtNPJE DCdD-AENT
LC-UdC

— Ct - Ntbt(t4 C•C
c2-G&tsQ.t&

Eli ID-*Ot"
scwotstRJCm-

ITTLu

!

'

&'4' '
'' ?

'v
- .'I 1 44W
tR3k4'. 1.-' -

' ',
; --'----" '1-LJ' -. ':2

- - ---
-

-' r1,, '
jt.t&a'-943 --

- - 3; ' -:": 'C4tit D"' x':ce /

'r)74r.4
H

-

I I
-..- -:

H.:'

:
"C'

MO/-07

-____
0 120 240 360 480

N

Map Amendment # M04-07
TMS # 001800-01 -054, 001800-02-021, 001 800-07-002 plo



/
c a /

4I' /wr
City of Columbia j\

/ Ti
M04 07

<H
\ C—-- ' ////

-

///////////
\ \\/ V

L—\ )\\—1
/ /c

// rH

a

ResidenUal - / r_
Oomrnercia / / fl-/\

/Vantn Spa k::N TiGovernment Property / <
/ i /

0 120 240 360 480

'Feet

Existing Landuse
Map Amendment # M04-07

TMS #001800-01-054, 001800-02-021, 001 800-07-002 plo

A



3/1 5/05

TEMPORARY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSE FEE

Cash on Hand - March 1,2005 $142,435

Appropriations Not Yet Disbursed 72,000

Amount Available $70,435



I )Al'lt 03/01/05
YTI) Activity Cutups, son Report (by ISYR)
h:uiil 2)40 to 2140
OTt' (100000 to 999999
Aect 00000010 122fld
(tSV'( 00 to 05

00 Dl 02 03 01 ((5

FUN)) ORUN ACCOUNCFTIIIA3 —- YTD ACFV YTI) AC V YTDAC3 V YTI) ACt V Yl L) AC IV 'OTT) AC V

2 40 000000 435400 feit(loraty Alcohol Berg Detroit Fcc 164,70000 71,10000 132,95000 76,900 (10 73,60000 73,500 1)1)

461000 l,ivcslt,tutit Ititetesl 12,90427 13,1891(6 11,175 70 5,616')) 1,78667 90091

3(1 PAl. GROIN 000000 177,60427 87,58') 1)6 144,125 70 82,54691 75,38667 71,-loU 91

999901) 435400 1'cmpotary Alcohol Bevg Pentitt Fee ' 00 -

461000 lt,vcstntejit Intet eat 00 -

529903 Ctittingcncy 20 00 00 00 00 00
534070 Gaston Coila?i( Festisat 2 50000 2,50000 2500 00 2,500 0(1 2 500 00 5 000 00
534071 Lextttgtu,o dy Peaco Festival 2.50000 2,500 00 2,509 00 2,500 00 250000 2 500 00

534072 SC Poultry Festival 2,50000 1,501/ 00 2,500 00 2,500 00 2500 00 0)0

534073 l'eliott Peanut Featisal 2,500 00 2,501) 00 2,500 00 2,500 00 2.500 00
534074 Cli,i1on labor Day Festival 2,50000 2,5(1000 2,50000 2,50000 2,50000 2,50000
534075 butt Okra Strot 2,500 00 2,5(10 00 2,500 00 2,500 00 2,500 00 lsO() ((0

534076 I ositiglon Pun Felt 2.500 00 2,5(10 00 2,50000 2,500 00 2,500 00 1)0

534077 Cong.tree Western Weekend 2.50000 2,5)10 (10 2.50000 2,501)00 2.50000 00

534078 S1uritigilale Fesuval 00 (10 -

534079 59 Columbia Wmtens est Frstis'al 00 00
534080 Sss a-ocx Festival 2500 00 2,500 00 2 500 00 2 5)10 00 1500 00 00
534081 lOtte Riege Festis al 00
534082 West Vista Guild 1500 00 2,50000 00
534083 Rtvcrfest-Epileps Foundation of SC 2,500 00 2,500 110 2 500 00 2,50000 2,50000 00
534084 GenIe, Cold Chamber ofCot,ittt - 18655 2.50000
534086 I ,,ke Murny t{ydribla Conir,'l 23,000.00
534087 Gilliort Community Park 12,500 00
534088 Vetcians of Foreign Wars Mcin,a tal l0.000,00 23,78750
534089 C.itup MooteiStyx Memorial l'uk - 12,10(9) (10

534090 So Coogaree b'ark & Recreation liupto 30,975 00
534091 'tire Ridge Complex Inanro''e o 'cuts 9,000 (10

534092 Ameirca -2003 Crlebratiot, - - 20,000 00

534093 Luaptiart'! bat tItan Home B estoratioti 00 (10

534201 55 ccc Metro Chamber of Cc-i toe tee 17,287 50
534205 lesingtor. Chamoer ofCotiar,reri e 10,00110(1

534206 blatcstrurg/Lccsvt(le Cltajubat of Count 5 000 00
534212 Capital City I ake \4uy Country - 10.00000
534225 lsr,toktand-Cayce Foundation , (7 50000
534228 t.cxington County Museum 2295000
531221 - Chopin Chamber ofContioereo 5)10000
534242 lrtiiri/Cltaptat Rrealton Coottt,icsioti . 00,1)191 III)

534244 Irs Clv Recreation & Aging Co,i,rn,ss 21.1(1)000
531252 (Ire,Oer Irmo Chamber of Cotittitet cc - I 0,1(011(100

534260 I non ofPeltun - 6.667 00)

534261 I osvit t,f Gaston 6.667 00
574262 I ossn of 5'.' ancea

-
, Ila 66700

514263 Tosin of (run -1000000
53426-8 I osco ofChapin iS00000
534765 I non ofLcxington 1450000
534266 Town o1ayce 18.50000

534267 I mcmi ofBate5burg/l eesvfllc 200(00 ((0

534268 bc n of SanmOt 7,5(R) 00

534269 town oirtpt tngfiebd 25,000 (0))

534270 City of West Columbia 1(1(1(1(1 000

534271 loon ofPbte Ridge 4,00000
8) 2S0 I tSp 3 in to Sol/C ormo Juvenile At laIr 000(0 011 83379 00 89.811 00

* IC) I AL ORGN 999900 -10 000 00 77,500 00 70 500 00 405300 00 112 579 00 101.31 I 00

'1GIALFU2sD214O 217,60421 115,0l°06 21162570 577,54791 1171556/ 16.7191



— — — — — — — — —--. -— a — — — — — — — — 

2005 

RRyt4ui on tRo River Concert 

Located at the West Columbia 

Amphitheater near the scenic Gervais 
Street Bridge 



2OO 

R4yt4ni on t4e River Concert Series 

FACTS 

• Started in 2003 by the River Alliance 
• Scheduled for 10 consecutive weekends: 

April 30t1 to July 2nd (Saturdays) 
• Attracted over 3,000 spectators last year 
• FREE Admission and advertised as "family 

event" 



— — — — — — — — a a- a — — — — — a 

2005 

R4ytRus on t4e River Concert Series 

____ PERFORMERS ___ 
April 30th1 May 7th May 14th May 21st May 28th 
Bill Wells & Jeff Etheridge Sarah Lee Danielle 
The Blue Guthrie & Howle 
Ridge Liberty & 

Johnny frion (folk) Mountain 
(blues/rock) Kimpland (fo) 

Grass (contemporary 

(bluegrass) rock & country) 

June 4th June 11th June [8th June 25th July 2nd 
Black Chuck Butterfly Loch Ness Tokyo 
Bottom Girard Brown Johnny Joe Biscuits 

(contemporary (hip hop / soul) (celtic rock) (rock) (country/bluegrass) 
christian) 



2005 

RRyt4ui on tde River Concert Series 

BENEFITS 
• Showcases the West Columbia & Cayce 

Riverwalk along the Congaree River 
• Attracts all citizens from Lexington County 
• Attracts visitors from Richiand & other 

nearby counties 
• Showcases the residential & commercial 

growth of the area and promotes local 
businesses 



— — — — — — — — — -. — — —. — — — — — a — 
- ;* 

- 

PEORE IMAflENDAkiCC 
. 

•. . : 
. PIktLI c. •r 

- ,,-'•_ 
- 

:3: 

O-)0 10 2 20-3C 33-40 40-50. 50-.W ó0 70 7080 -80-9C '9O 1fl 'CO - 

GEOCI1APHICAL 01ST RISUTION Or PCOPLI IM A1TENOflICE .- . 

. 

- 

CAYCE - 5% COLUMthA - 43% WEsT C0wMBIA.-17% -- LEXINGTON - 12% OTHER AREAS - 23% 

- - 



2005 

Rilytilssi on tile River Concert Series 

TITLE SPONSORSHIP ($5,000) 
• Adds name "Lexington Cosinty" to the name of 

the concert series 
• Logo & name on all media advertising 
• Logo & name on posters, t-shirts, and website 
• Logo & name on all banners displayed during 

concert series 
• Reserved parking & seating plus access to VIP 

tent 



Title Sponsor Package - $5,000 Level UmItoo(1)r.
• Promotion and marketing of your company/organization as a TITLE SPONSOR for the

Rhythm on the River (Free) Concert Series 2005. Package is inclusive of the following:

• Comniunity Calendar Advisory —Three (3) months preceding the event
Coimnunication with newspapers, radio/television stations, and travelltourism
agencies to ensure community awareness of the eventThis does not involve
sponsorship mention, strictly who, what, where, when, and why.

• Kickoff Press Conference — Approximately two (2) weeks preceding the event
Prior to the first concert, a press conference will be held at the venue (The Riverfront
Amphitheater), which e4Mains what the event entails including, butnot limited to:
dates, times, sponsors, performers, community highlight information, and where to
access further informatiot

• Radio — One (1) week prior to the event
Weekly radio spots which target the appropriate audiences for that week's scheduled
performer, including the involved sponsorship information, giveaway &Ior
promotion information of local businesses, and all other pertinent event information
for said week.

• Press releases — Followingeach event
Weekly press releases, after each concert, alerting the medialcommunity about the
individual event, and the level of conununity involvementlsuccess affonied said
week, (Note: This worked exceptionally well with the Sleepy Hollow event) This,
also, does not involve specific sponsorship mention.

• Logo inclusion on all Three Riven Greenway signage and pesters.

• Further display of sponsor provided signage at the venue during the event

• Weekly verbal promotion of sponsorship status, during the event, by the
production manager or presiding emcee.

• Logo inclusion on the Rhythm on the River Series 2005 website.

• lResen'ed seating for 20 members of your company/organization, or it's guests,
including VIP l*nyards which afford guest access to the VIP/Sponsor area at
the venue, and "back stage" band access,

• Open invitation to aH committee meetings concerning the progress/status of the
event.

• Exclusive "Type Rights".
If your company or organization is a TITLE SPONSOR, no other business in your
market/field will be approached for sponsorship. This ensures that your business will
not be put into direct competition for advertising/recognition.

• "Complimentary" one(t) year inenihership to the West Metro Chamber of
Commerce & Visitor's Center.
Valued at $250, inclusive of all member benefits, services, opportunities.
networking events, and discounts.



2005 lexington County 

RRyt4sst on Me River Concert Series 

EXPENSES (est.) 
• Bands & PA equipment - $6,000.00 
• Stage Rental or Purchase - $3,000 
• Insurance - $210.00 
• Banners, posters, t-shirts, & displays - 

$1,000 - $2,000 



— a — — — a a a a — — — — — — — — — 

2005 lexington Cosinty 
R4yt4ug on t4e River Concert Series 

Advertising Proposal 
Create a TV commercial to run in Columbia & surrounding areas 
(Sumter, Camden, Orangeburg, Newberry, etc. on CableVantage. Print 
ads in FREE TIMES entertainment newspaper and Lexington Chronicle. 
PSA's to all radio stations in Columbia & surrounding areas & THE 
STATE newspaper. 

• West Columbia, Cayce, & Springdale: $1,500 
each — Total $4,500 

• Lexington County - $4,500 
• CableVantage (minimum of $2,500 trade) 



200ö Lexington County 
R4ytdui on Me River Contort Series 

PRESENTING SPONSORS ($2,500) 

• BellSouth 
• CableVantage 
• Hardee's 
• South Carolina Bank & Trust 



— — — — — a — — a a — — — — — — — — — 

2005 lexington County 
Raytau1 on t4e River Conceit Series 
ASSOCIATE SPONSORS ($500) 

• West Vista Guild 
• Novinger Q.T.R. 
• Pavilion Coffee Shop (Trade) 
• Scratch N Spin (Trade) 
• Working on additional 6-8 potential sponsors 



2005 Lexington Cotinty 
Raytau on Me River Concert Series 

ODDS & ENDS 
• New Orleans Restaurant reserves a section of their parking lot with 

picnic tables for their customers 
• Scratch N Spin will set up a tent for the bands to sell their CD's / T- 

Shirts and to sign autographs 
• Local Civic & Non — Profit Groups will be invited to sell concessions 
• West Columbia is providing all security & sanitation services in. 

support of series 
• City of West Columbia is having their Pt WESTFEST Festival on 

April 30th 

• Boys & Girls Club of the Midlands is having a big event at the 
Riverwalk on May 21st 



— a — — a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a 

SUMMARY 
The River Alliance originally created the concert series to promote the new West 

Columbia & Cayce Riverwalk and Amphitheater. Their financia! goal was to 
break even which resulted in limited advertising. 

The West Metro Chamber of Commerce & Visitor Center recognizes this as an 
opportunity to: 

• Host an event that can attract both local citizens & visitors of all ages. 
• Showcase the redevelopment along the river and West Columbia/Cayce 

'Attract potential customers for local restaurants, retail stores, gas stations, 
etc 

'Enhance Lexington County as a great place to live & work 
• Raise non-dues revenue for the West Metro Chamber of Commerce 



§ 2-297

Sec. 2-297. Effect of division on other laws.

This division amends portions of certain laws relating to the composition andappointment
of the county museum commission. It does not and shall not be deemed to change, alteror
amend any of the existing statutory powers, duties, functions or obligations of the county
museum commission. All laws relating to the county museum commission, including Act 1353
of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of the General Assembly of 1968, shall remain in full force
and unaltered hereby except and to the extent that such laws conflict with the provisions of
this division.
(Code 1983, § 2-135)

Secs. 2-298--—2-330. Reserved.

ARTICLE Vii PURCHASING*

Sec. 2-331. Purpose of article.

The purpose of this article is to secure for the county taxpayers the advantages and
economies which will result from centralized control over the expenditures of county funds for
supplies, materials, equipment and contractual services; from the application of modern,
business-like methods tc such expenditures; and from better utilization of the articles
procured at public expense.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-78, L24—94)

Sec. 2-332. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Agency and using agency mean any of the departments, offices or other organizational units
of the county government, and any special district whose affairs and funds are under the
supervision and control of the county council and for which the county is ex-officio the
governing body.

Bidders list means a current file of sources of supply of articles for each category of
commodities repetitively purchased for cowty use.

Contractual services means any and all telephone, gas, watei electric light and power
services; towel, window washing and cleaning service; the rental of equipment and machinei';
and all other types of agreements under which the contractor provides services which are

Cross reference—My ordinance or resolution approving, authorizing or otherwise
relating to any contract, agreement, lease, deed or other instrument saved from repeal, §
1-10(9).

State law reference—Counties required to develop and adoptprocurement procedures,
S.C. Code 1976, § 11-35-50.

C132:26



ADMINISTRATION § 2-333

required by the county government hut not furnished by its own employees; pro\ade(i, however,
that contractual services shall not include legal advertising, and purchases of space for legal
advertising shall not be subject to the provisions of this article.

irresponsible bidder means a bidder or prospective bidder who fails to furnish, upon written
request, proof of his responsibility; who has, as a vendor or contractor with the county,
repeatedly made slow or unsatisfactory deliveries, or who has violated, or attempted to violate,
the provisions of this article.

Personal services means the service of attorneys, physicians, architects, engineers, consult-
ants or other lodividuals or organizations possessing a high degree of technical skill.

Responsible bid means an offer submitted by a responsible bidder in ink or typewritten
forni, to furnish supplies, materials, cquipment or contractual services in conformity with the
specifications, delivery terms and conditions, and other requirements included in the invita-
tion for bids.

Responsible bidder means a bidder who submits a responsible bid; who has furnished, when
requested, information and data to prove that his financial resources, production or service
facilities, service reputation and experience are adequate to make satisfactory delivery of the
supplies, materials, equipment or contractual service on which he bids; and who has not
violated, or attempted to violate, any provisions of this article.

Suppites, materIals and equipment means any and all articles or things which shall be
furnished to or used by any agency, including any and all printing, hinding, or publication of
stationery, forms, laws, journals and reports, hut excluding services or materials furnished in
kind, in lieu of cash to indigents.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-79, 1-24-94)

Cross reference—Definitions generally, § 1-2.

Sec. 2-333. Powers and duties of county purchasing agent.

Pursuant to section 13, paragraph 15, subparagraph B of Act 1067 (1972), as amended, the
county purchasing agent shall, subject to the provisions of this article and applicable
provisions of state l;iw:

(1) Purchase all supplies, materials, equipment and contractual services required by the
agencies in amounts or estimated amounts of $15,000.00 or less; and submit to the
county administrator for award, and thereafter execute contracts for all purchases of
supplies, materials, equipment and contractual services in amounts or estimated
amounts greater than 815,000.00 and less than S25,000 00; and submit to the county
council for award and thereafter execute contracts for all purchases of supplies,
materials, equipment and contractual services in amounts or estimated amounts in

CD227



§ 2-333 LEXINGTON COUNTY CODE

excess of $25,000.00. In order to procure supplies, materials, equipment and services
in such a manner as to promote competition while considering the administrative cost
of such procurements, the following methods of source selections are described:

a. Small purchases. Repetitive type items can be procured on an informal basis
addressing competition as follows:

1. Purchases not exceeding $1,500.00 no competition required if price is fair
and reasonable;

2. Purchases of $1,501.00 to $5,000.00 require three verbal or written bids; or

3. Purchases of $5,001.00 to $15,000.00 require three written bids.

b. Competitive sealed bidding. Procurements above $15,000.00 shall be based upon
formal bid requirements for-which bid specifications can be developed to ensure
adequate competition. An award shall be made to the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder.

c. Competitive sealed proposals. Procurements can be made by competitive sealed
proposals that are highly technical, complex in nature and do not lend themselves
to formal competitive sealed bidding. Competitive sealed proposals shall be used
in accordance with section 2-350. An award shall be made to the offeror whose
proposal is ccnsidered to be most advantageous to the county

d. Sole source procurements. A procurement can be made from a sole source without
-

(
competition based upon a written determination, approved by the county aclmin-
istrator, that there is only one source for the required supply, service or
equipment.

(2) Negotiate contracts for personal services and submit them for approval and award as
provided in subsection (1)a of this section;

(3) Use standard specifications wherever they are applicable to purchase orders and
contracts; and ensure compliance with such specifications through adequate inspec-
tion of deliveries;

(4) Transfer between agencies supplies, materials and equipment which are no longer
needed by a holding agency but which can be used by the receiving agency;

(5) Exchange, trade in or sell those supplies, materials and equipment which are surplus,
obsolete or unused and which are found by the county administrator not to be required
for public use;

(6) Develop, with the approval of the county attorney as to legal sufficiency, standard
forms and conditions of invitations to bid and purchase orders and contracts; develop,
and prescribe the use by agencies of other forms required in carrying out the provisions
of this arLicle; and amend or eliminate any such forms;

(7) Upon request of the county council, and subject to its approval of each transaction,
perform all delegable functions in connection with acquisition and disposal of real
property;

CD2:28



ADMINISTRATION § 2-334

(8) Purchase, or perform other supply functions prescribed iii this article, when requested
to do so by school (listncts, special districts or other governmental units of the county
whose affairs and funds are exempt from the supervision and control of the county
eon neil;

(9) Ensure procurement information is public recurd to the extent required by S.C. Code
1976, 30-4-10 et seq. (the Freedom of Information Act), with the exception that
commercial or financial information obtained in response to a request fur proposals
which is privileged and confidential need not be disclosed;

(10) Where a procurement involves the expenditure of federal assistance or contract funds,
the purchasing agent shall comply with such federal law and authorized regulations
which are mandatorily applicable and which are not presently reflected in the article;

(ii) Ensure the provisions of S.C. Code 1976, § 8-13-100 et seq. (State Ethics Act) are
complied with in all actions involving the procurement of supplies, services or
construction for the county;

(12) Report any collusion or other anticompetitive practices suspected among any bidders
or offerors to the state attorney general;

(13) Promulgate regulations concerning vendor or contractor complaints or grievances. The
regulations shall provide for a complete and unbiased hearing of vendor complaints
and grievances within a reasonable time period. Complaints and grievances that are
not resolved satisfactorily by the purchasing agent may be reviewed by the county
administrator or by persons designated by the county administrator; and

(14) Promulgate regulations concerning debarment or suspension of vendors. The decision
to debar or suspend shall not he made without allowing the vendor reasonable
opportunity to present information concerning the debarment or suspension to the
purchasing agent andlor the county administrator.

(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-80, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-334. Procedural regulations.

(a) The county purchasing agent is hereby authorized to prepare procedural regulations to
amplify the provisions of tIns article; to submit such regulations and amendments thereto to
the county administrator for approval; and to promulgate arid enforce compliance with such
regulations, including, hut not limited to:

(1) The procedure for handling bids, including their custody and safeguarding; opening
and tabulation; rejection and readvertising; and the procedure for determining the
lowest responsible bidder;

(2) The procedure for securing from bidders and prospective bidders the data necessary to
determine whether or not they are responsible;

(3) The procedure for inspection of deliveries of supplies, materials, equipment and
contractual services;

CD2:29



§ 2-334 LE)UNGTON COUNTY CODE

(4) The procedure for reporting receipt of deliveries of supplies, materials, equipment and
contractual services;

(5) The procedure for submitting requisitions for the supplies, materials, equipment and
contractual services required by the using agencies;

(6) The procedure for making emergency purchases; and

(7) Such matters as may be necessary to give effect to provisions of this article and any
amendments thereto.

(b) A copy of such regulations shall be available in the county purchasing agent's office and
shall be open to public inspection during regular business hours.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-81, 1-24-94)

-

Sec. 2-335. Exemptions from centralized purchasing.

With the approval of th county administrator, the county purchasing agent may, and where
legally required to do so, shall authorize, in writing, any agency to purchase or contract for
certain specified classes of supplies, materials, equipment or contractual services, indepen-
dently of the county purchasing agent's office; but such purchases or contracts shall be made
in conformity with the applicable provisions of this article. The county purchasing agent may
also rescind such authorization to purchase independently, by written notice to the agency or
agencies concerned unless otherwise prohibited by 1a'v.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-82, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-336. Emergency purchases.

(a) An emergency procurement shall be authorized only when there exists an immediate
threat to public health, welfare, critical economy and efficiency, or safety under emergency
conditions; a breakdown in machinery or an essential service occurs; or when unforeseen
circumstances arise, including delays by contractors, delays in transportation and unantici-
pated volume of work; and provided that such emergency procurements shall be made with as
much competition as is practicable under the circumstances. A written determination of the
basis for the emergency and for the selection of the particular contractor shall be included in
the contract file.

(b) If an emergency occurs during regular business hours, the head or designee of the using
agency shall immediately notify the purchasing agent who shall either make the purchase or
authorize the using agency to do so. If the purchasing agent is uhavailable, the head of the
using agency shall notify the county administrator before mälcing the purchase. If an
emergency occurs at times other than regular business hours, the using agency may purchase
directly the commodity or commodities required. If the estimated cost of the emergency
purchase exceeds $1,500.00, the head of such agency shall,

-
whenever possible, secure

competitive telephone bids and order delivery to be made by the lowest responsthle bidder. On
every emergency purchase made, the agency head shall, not later than one week thereafter,

CD2:30



ADMINISTRATION § 2-:338

submit to the purchasing agent a requisition, a tabulation of bids received, if any, a delivery
receipt and a written explanation of the circumstances of the emergency. 'INc record of such
emergency transactions shall be open to public inspection during regular business hours.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-83, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-337. Requisitions and estimates of future requirements.

(a) All agencies shall submit to the county purchasing agent requisitions for the supplies,
materials, equipment and contractual services as required for their operations and for the
purposes and within the limits of funds appropriated therefor. The county purchasing agent,
after reviewing any such prices, may require from the head of the requesting agency a
justification of the quantity or quality requisitioned.

(b) All agencies shall also file with the county purchasing agent estimates of their
requirements lbr supplies, materials, equipment arid contractual services in such form, at such
tune, and for such future penods as the county purchasing agent shall prescribe.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-84, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-338. Contract, purchases and sales.

(a) All purchases of, and contracts for supplies, materials, equipment and contractual
services, and all sales of personal property which have been found by the county administrator
not to be required for public use, shall he based, wherever possible, on competitive bids. If the
amount of the expenditure for a contractual service or for a commodity, or for a class of
commodities normally obtainable from the same sources of supply, or for a sale of personal
property which has been found by the county administrator not to be required for public use,
is estimated to exceed $15,000.00, contract bids shall he solicited by public notice and written
contracts shall be awarded. The method and extent of public notice shall be prescribed by the
county council. If newspaper advertisements are employed as public notice, such notice shall
include a general description of the commodities or services to he purchased or the commod-
ities to be sold; shall state where contract bids and specifications may be secured; and shall
specify the time and place For the opening of bids.

(b) The county purchasing agent shall, in addition, solicit bids from prospective bidders for
the class of commodities being purchased or sold as listed on the bidders' list by sending them
copies of the newspaper notice or such other notice as willacquaint them with the proposed
purchase or sale. All pending purchases or sales shall also, in all cases, he advertised by
posting a copy of the contract hid form on a public bulletin board in or adjacent to the office of

the county purchasing agent.

(c) All bids shall be submitted sealed to the county purchasing agent on the official contract
hid form, furnished by the county, which will have indicated thereon the class of commodities
to be purchased and the established time for opening of bids. When required, each hid shall he
accompanied by surety in the 1mm of a certified or cashier's check or bid bond in such amount
as shall he prescribed in the public notice inviting bids and in the contract bid form. A
tabulation of all bids received, whether accepted or rejected, shall he open for public inspection

CD2:3l



§ 2-338 LEXINGTON COUNTY CODE

during regular business hours for a period of not less than 30 calendar days after the bid
opening. The county purchasing agent shall submit a copy of the tabulation and all bids
received to the county administrator; together with his recommendation for awards. The
county purchasing agent may reject any and all bids for any or all commodities or contractual
services included in the bid form and may readvertise for bids when the public interest will be
served thereby; but will report such action and the reasons therefor to the county adminis-
trator. If all bids received are for the same total amount or unit price, and if the public interest
will not permit the delay oI'readvertising for bids, the county administrator may authorPze the
county purchasing agent to award the contract to one of the tie bidders by drawing lots in
public, or to purchase the commodities or contractual services in the open market, provided the
price paid in the open market shall not exceed the lowest contract bid price submitted for the
same commodity or contractual service. In all other cases, the contract shall be awarded by the
county administrator to the lowest resp5nsible bidder. In determining the lowest responsible
bidder, the county purchasing agent and the county administrator shall take into consider-
ation the quality offered and its conformity with the specifications, the delivery and discount
terms and conditions of the bid, the service reputation of the bidder, and other information and
data required to prove his responsibility

(d) Contracts for personal property sales shall be awarded by the county administrator to
the highest responsible bidder and shall be subject to all other applicable requirements of this
section.

(e) It shall be the duty of the county purchasing agent to discourage uniform bidding by
every possible means and to endeavor to obtain as full and open competition as possible on all
purchases and sales. Accordingly, the county purchasing agent shall require each bidder to
accompany his bid with a statement made under oath that he has not been a party with other
bidders to an agreement to bid a fixed or uniform price. Violation of such statement shall
render void the bid of such bidders. Any disclosure to, or acquisition by a competitive bidder,
in advance of the opening of the bids, of the terms and conditions of the bid submitted by
another competitor shall render the proceedings void and shall require readvertising for bids.

(1) if the successfuJ bidder does not enter into a contract within ten days after mailing of
notice of award of contract, he shall forfeit in cash an amount equivalent to the amount of any
surety which accompanied his bid, unless the county is responsible for the delay He shall also
be held liable for any cost in excess of his bid price which the county incurs in purchasing the
commodities or services elsewhere.

(g) When required, the successifil bidder shall furnish surety in the fonn of a certified or
cashier's check or bond for the faithful perfonnance of the contract in the amount specified in
the contract bid form.

(h) Bidders who regularly do business with the county shall be permitted to file with the
county purchasing agent an annual bid bond and an annual performance bond in an amount
established by the county purchasing agent. Such annual bonds shall be acceptable as surety
in lieu of the furnishing of surety with each individual transaction.

CD2:32



ADMINJSrIRATION § 2-310

(1) All contract bid forms and :tll contracts shall be approved by the county attorney as to
form and legality. Following such approval, all contracts shall he signed in behalf of the county
by the county purchasing agent. Contracts shall he maintained in the purchasing office and the
director of finance shall be notified of the terms of each contract.

(Ord. No. 9:3-6, § 2-85, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-339. Open market purchases and sales.

(a) If the amount of the expenditure for a contractual service or for a class of commodities
normally obtainable from the same sources of supply, or for a sale of personal property which
has been found by the county administrator not to be required for public use, is estimated to
be less than $15,000.00, it shall be an open market transaction and shall not he subject to the
sealed bid requirements of section 2-338.

(b) The purchasing agent may solicit hids by direct mail requests to prospective bidders for
the class of commodities being purchased or sold as listed on the bidders' list and by posting
a copy of such invitation to bid on a public bulletin board in or adjacent to his office, or bids may
be solicited by telephone. No competition is required for purchases not exceeding $1,500.00 if
the price is fur and reasonable. Purchases in amoants between $1,501.00 to $5,000.00 require
three verbal or written bids. Purchases in amounts between $5,001.00 to $15,000.00 require
three written bids.

(c) The county purchasing agent shall make a tabulation or other record of all written and
telephone bids, and such records shall be open to public inspection during regular business
hours for at least 30 days after the date of the bid opening or telephone transaction.

Ed) All open market purchases shall be awarded to the lowest responsive/responsible bidder
and all open market sales shall be made to the highest responsive/responsible bidder.

(e) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this article, if the expenditure for purchase of
supplies, materials, equipment or contractual services or for a sale of personal propertywhich

has been found by the county administrator not to be required for public use is less than
$5,000.00, the county purchasing agent, in his sole discretion, may waive the competitive
bidding requirements of this article and may make such purchase or sale without calling for
bids. The county purchasing agent shall not delegate to any other county officer or employee
the discretion ofdetennining whether a purchase or sale involving an expenditure of Less than
$5,000.00 shall be based on competitive bid. However, price and quality being equal,
preference may be given to responsible local bidders.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-86, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-340. T'pes of contracts and purchases.
-

(a) It shall be the responsibility of the county purchasing agent to:

(1) Reduce, to the maximum extent possible, the number of purchase transactions by
combining into bulk orders and contracts the requirements of agencies for common use
items or items repetitively purchased;

-

CD2 :33



§ 2-340 LEXINGTON COUNTY CODE

(2) Develop and use those types of contracts and purchase orders which will reduce to the
minimum the accompanying paperwork and which, in other respects, will be most
advantageous to the county; and

(3) The greatest extent possible, to make full utilization of the purchasing services
provided by the division of general services of the state.

(b) In carrying out the provision of subsection (a) of this section, the county purchasing
agent is authorized to prescribe in the procedural regulations adopted pursuant to section
2-334 the use of various types of contracts and orders including, but not limited to, the
following:

(1) Definite quantity contracts, whereby the contractor agrees to furnish a specified
quantity of supplies, materials or equipment at a specified time.

(2) Indefinite quantity contracts, whereby the county agrees to obtain from the contractor
all its requirements for specified supplies, materials or equipment in an estimated but
indeterminate amount during a prescribed period of time at a definite unit price or at
a specified discount from list or posted prices.

(3) Price agreements, whereby the contractor agrees to supply the county requirements
for items, such as replacement parts for different makes of mechanical or automotive
equipment during a prescribed period of time and within a designated geographical
area of the county at a definite unit price or at a specified discount from list or posted
prices.

(4) Order books to be prenumbered and issued by the county purchasing agent in pocket
size to properly authorized officials, for use in securing over-the-counter delivery of
miscellaneous hardware, repair parts and similar items when the need arises in the
vicinity of a source of supply. The use of such orders shall be limited to purchases in
amounts not to exceed $100.00. All such orders shall be issued without regard to the
requirements of section 2-342 for availability of funds. All order books and all order
blanks shall be properly accounted for by the official to whom they have been issued.

(Ord. No. 93-fl, § 2-87, 1-2.t-94)

Sec. 2-34 1. Purchase of patented or proprietary articles.

(a) When the county requires supplies, materials or equipment which are produced by only
one manufacturer, the county purchasing agent shall specify such manufacturer's make or
brand in the invitations to bid and shall obtain competitive bids from authorized dealers or
distributors of such manufacturer. If such manufacturer is the sole bidder and sole source of
supply, the county purchasing agent is authorized to negotiate an open market order or
contract with the manufacturer at prices and on terms most advantageous to the county.

(b) When the coi.mty requires supplies, materials or equipment which are patented or
proprietary, and which are obtainable in two or more equally satisfactory and competitive
makes, brands or types, the county purchasing agent shall list such acceptable and competitive
makes, brands or types in the invitations to bid. Such lists shall also include the phrase "or

N

CD2:34



ADMINISTRATION § 2-344

equal' to permit bidders to hid on alternate or additional makes, brands or types. It shall be
incumbent on each such bidder to prove to the satisfaction of the county that the alternate or
additional make, brand or type which he offers is equal in quality or performance to those
listed in the invitation to hid.

Cc) When the county requires supplies, materials or equipment which are patented or
proprietary and are not obtainable in other competitive makes or brands, it is appropriate to
use a proprietary specification when the desired product must he compatible with or is an
integral component of existing equipment or products, or when prequalification of products is
necessary to support a specific need of a program; is covered by a patent or copyright; must
yield absolute continuity of results; or is one with which a user has had extensive training and
experience; and the use of any other similar piece of equipment would require considerable
reorientation and training. Upon solicitation, every effort must be made to obtain full
competition among the distributors which carry the manufacturer's product. The determina-
tion for the use of a proprietary specification shall be made in writing and submitted with the
requisition, and must be included in the procurement file.
(Ord No. 93-6, § 2-88, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-342. Availability of funds.

Except in emergencies as defined in section 2-336(a), no notice of award of contract shall be
issued, no contract shall be signed, and no open market purchase order shall he issued, until
the director of finance shall have certified that the unexpended balance in the appropriation
or appropriations concerned is sufficient to defray the amount of such contract or purchase
order.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-89, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-343. Unlawful purchases.

(a) If any agency purchases or contracts fur any supplies, materials, equipment or
contractual services contrary to the provisions of this article, such purchase order or contract
shall he void and of no effect. The head of the agency making such purchase transaction shall
be personally liable for the amount of such purchase order or contract, and, if already paid for
out of county funds, the amount thereof may be recovered in the name of the county in an
appropriate action therefor.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any agency to split its requirements for supplies, materials,
equipment and contractual services into estimated amounts of less than $15,000.00 in order to
evade the provisions of section 2-339.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-90, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-344. Personal purchases.

Purchases of supplies or equipment for the personal use of an official or employee of the
county shall he made by the county purchasing agent, or by an agency to which he has

CD2 :35



§ 2-344 LEXINGTON COUNTY CODE

voluntarily given an exemption in accordance with section 2-335, only when the item or items
are required parts of a worker's equipment and are necessary to the successful performance of
the duties of such county official or employee.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-91, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-345. Gratuities.

(a) The acceptance of any gratuity in the form of cash, merchandise or any other thing by
an official or employee of the county from any vendor or contractor shall be deemed to be a
violation of this article, and shall be cause for removal or other disciplinary action.

(b) The offer of any gratuity to an official or employee of the county by any vendor or
contractor, or prospective vendor or contractor, shall be cause for declaring such individual or
firm to be an irresponsible bidder and for debarring him from bidding, as provided by section
2-346.

(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-92, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-346. Debarment of irresponsible bidders.

The county purchasing agent may determine and declare a bidder to be irresponsible for the
reasons cited in the definition of the term "irresponsible bidder" found in section 2-332 and
section 2-347; may remove his name from the bidders' list; and may debar him from bidding
fo+ a reasonable period, or not less than one year. Such debarred bidder shall be furnished with
a statement of the reasons therefor.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-93, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-347. Inspection.

(a) The receiving agencies shall inspect deliveries of supplies, materials and equipment or
the furnishing of contractual services to ensure their conformance with the specifications set
forth in the purchase order or contract.

(b) Any agency which has the necessary facilities and staff for adequate inspection may be
authorized and directed by county council, on the recommendation of the county purchasing
agent, to inspect deliveries made to other agencies.

(c) The county purchasing agent shall have authority to require chemical and physical tests
of samples submitted with bids and samples of deliveries to the extent necessary to determine
their quality and confoimance with the specifications. For such tests, the couhty purchasing
agent shall have authority to make use of laboratory facilities of any agency or to engage the
services of any outside laboratory
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-94, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-348. Storerooms,

The county warehouse supervisor shall operate central stores/warehouse which contains
common use items. He shall be charged with safekeeping, proper storage and handling of all

CD2:36



ADM1N[STRATION § 2-350

supplies, materials and equipment therein He shall maintain a perpetual inventory system
showing the quantitauve amounts and monetary value. A fixed asset inventory of each
department shall he conducted within a three-year period. Operating procedures for the
central stores/warehouse operation will be prepared for control and safeguarding of supplies,
materials and equipment in the central warehouse, including the maintenance of a perpetual
inventory system showing the quantitative amounts and monetary values of the inventories.
(Ord No. 93-6, § 2-95, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-349. Surplus, obsolete and waste commodities.

(a) All agencies shalt submit to the county purchasing agent at such times and in such form
as he shall prescribe, reports showing stocks of all supplies, materials and equipment which
are no longer used or which have become obsolete, worn out or scrapped. The county
purchasing agent shall have authority to transfer any such commodities which are usable to
another or other agencies in lieu of filling requisitions for the purchase of new and additional
stock of the same or similar articles.

(b) The county purchasing agent shall have authority to sell all such supplies, materials
and equipment which cannot be used by any agency or which have been found by the county
administrator not to he required for public use; or to exchange or trade in such articles in part
or full payment for new supplies, materials or equipment of a similar nature. Any such sale,
exchange or trade in shall be made in accordance with section 2-338 or 2-339, whichever is

applicable.

(c) The county sheriffs department shall be responsible for the sale of all confiscated
equipment, automobiles, bikes, etc., pursuant to applicable state law. However, upon request
of the sheriffs department, the purchasing agent may sell such confiscated property during
any auction sale being sponsored by the county.
(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-96, 1-24-94)

Sec. 2-350. Competitive sealed proposals.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this article, competitive sealed proposals may he
used in the procurement of goods, services and construction in the manner provided for in this
section:

(1) Condttions for use. When the county council detennines that the use of competitive
sealed bidding in procurement of particular goods, services or construction is either not
practicable or not advantageous to the county, it shall instruct the county administra-
tor, or such other persons or entities as designated by the county council, to utilize the
competitive sealed proposals procedure established in this section to contract for and
procure the particular goods, services or construction required by the county.

(2) Request for proposals. Proposals shall be solicited from at least three qualified sources,
when such sources are reasonably available, through a request for proposals. Arequest
for proposals is a written or published solicitation for proposals to provide goods,
services or construction, as described therein. Evaluation factors upon which the

C 1)2:37



§ 2-350 LEXINGTON COUNTY CODE

proposals will be evaluated for award of the contract shall be stated in the request for
proposals. Price shall be one of the evaluation factors, but it shall not be the sole basis
for award of the contract.

(3) Public notice. Public notice of the request for proposals shall be given at a reasonable
time prior to the date set forth therein for the receipt of proposals. Such notice may
include utilization of bidders' lists or publication in a newspaper of general circulation
in the county.

(4) Receipt of proposals. Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence of one or more
witnesses at the time and place designated in the request for proposals. Only the
names of the offerors shall be disclosed at the proposal opening. Contents of the
proposals shall not be disclosed during the negotiation process. Proposals shall be open
for pubhc inspection after contract award, except that proprietary or confidential
information in any proposal that is clearly marked 'confidential by the offeror shall
not be disclosed without written consent of the offeror.

(5) Evaluation factors. The request for proposals shall state the relative importance of
price and of each other evaluation factor but shall not require numerical weighings of
each factor. The evaluation factors shall be examined with respect to each proposal in
determining which proposal is most advantageous to the county. There are no
restrictions on the kind or number of evaluation factors that may be used, as long as
they are stated in the request for proposals and relate to the purpose of the (
procurement.

(6) Negotiation with responsible offerors and revisions to proposals. Negotiationsmay be
conducted with any offerors submitting a proposal that appears eligible for contract
award (based upon the evaluation factors) for the purpose of clarification to assure full
understanding of and responsiveness to the requirements of the request for proposals.
Offerors shall be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to opportunity for
discussion and revision of proposals. Revisions in proposals may be permitted after
their submission and prior to contract award for the purpose of obtaining best and final
offers. In conducting negotiations, there must be no disclosure of any infonnation
derived from proposals submitted by competing offerors.

(7) Award. Award shall be made to the responsive offeror whose proposal is determined to
be the most advantageous to the county, taking into consideration price and the other
evaluation factors set forth in the request for proposals. No other factors or criteria
may be used in evaluation and there must be adherence to any weighings specified for
each factor in the request for proposals. If the county council or its designee should
determine that none of the proposals are advantageous to the county, the county shall
have the absolute rght to reject any and all proposals. The contract file shall contain
the basis on which the award is made and be sufficient to satis& external audit.

(8) Negotiations aftEr unsuccessful competitive proposals. When the price of all proposals
received pursuant to a request for proposals appears to be unreasonable, or the price
of the lowest proposal exceeds available funds as determined by the county council or

CD2:38



ADMINISTRATION § 2-350

its designee, and time or other circumstances do not permit the delay required to
resolicit for competitive sealed proposals, a contract may nevertheless he negotiated,
provided thai:

a. Each ofieror who submitted a proposal under the original solicitation is notified
and given reasonable opportunity to negotiate; and

ft The negotiated price must be within the limits of available funds as determined
by the county council or its designee.

(Ord. No. 93-6, § 2-97, 1-24-94)

CD2:39



IEMENT
PROCE D U 1S ANEULATIONS

CONTENTS

Introduction

CHAPTER 1

CHAPTER 2

7

4

S

General
Purchase Requisition
Responsibility for Specificati
Review of Specifications
Requisition Year End Cutoff
Vendor List
Purchase Orders
Change Orders
Expediting arid Follow-up
Difficulties After Receipt of
Prepayment Procedures
Registration Fees and Travel
Inspection
Blanket Orders
Over-the-Counter Orders -
Unauthorized Purchases

7
8

II
11

11

12

13

13

13
13
13

14
IS
16

CHAPTER 3 METHODS OF PROCUREMENT

17

17
18
18
IS
19
19

PROCUREMENT AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILiTY

General
Authorization and Responsibility
Responsibililies and Duties
Inter-Departmental Relations
Vendor Relal ions

GENERAL PROCUREMENT POLICIES

ons

Date

Service or Item

Small Purchases
Competitive Sealed Bidding
Bid Invitations
Bid Bond Deposits
Prebid Conference
Cancelling or Amending a Solicitation
Receipt of Bids



Unidentified Bids .
Bid Opening Procedures -
Disclosure of Bid Information
Postponement of Bid Opening
Telegraphic Rids
Bid Evaluation
Responsible Bidder
Responsiveness of Bids
Price Unreasonableness
Award of Rids
Single Response to a Solicilal
Cash Discounts
Tie Bids
Rejection of Rids
Competitive Sealed Proposals
Sole Source Procurement
Emergency Purchases
Proprietary Procurements

ion

Purchases Exempt from the l3id Process
Standardization. Cooperative Purchasing
Purchase of State or Federal Surplus Property

CHAPTER 4 CONTRACTS

19

19
20
20
20
20

.21
.21

21
72
77
77

23

23
25
25
26
26
26
27

General
Types of Contracts
Cancellation of Contract
Term Contracts
Solicitation of Multi—term Contracts

CHAPTER 5

General
Notice to Proceed
Procurement Records and Checklist
Change Orders
Cancellations
Follow-up and Expediting
Lost or Dam aged Shipments
Inspection, Acceptance and Rejection of C
Complaints
Invoice Processing
Default Actions

28
28
29
29
29

30
30
30
30
31

.31
31

.31
32
32
32

CONTRACT AmwlNlsrRATLON

oods or Services



CHAPTER 6 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT

CHAPTER 7 DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS COUNTY PROPERTY

General 33

CHAPTER 8 ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION OF CONTROVERSIES

Protest Proceiures

APPENDIX

35

Purchasing Directory
Purchasing Flow Chart
Sole Source/Emergency Justification Form
Purchase Requisition Form
Purchase Order Form
Bid Tab Form
Change Order Form
Vendor Application Form
I-low To Get What You Want

When You Need It, At The Best Price...
In spite of your Purchasing Department

36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43

44

Repairs Covered by Contract or Warranty -
Repairs Not Covered by Contract or Warranty
Repair of Telephone Equipment
New Telephone Installations
Repair of Co rnputer Equipment
Repair of Microfilm Equipment

33
33
34
34
34
34



INTRODUCTION

flits manual is provided as a guide to all Departments/Agencies of Lexington County for the procurement of materials,
supplies, equipment and services required in their respective operations, and for the budgetary control of the costs of
purchases

Every transaction between a buyer and a seller involving the transfer of property is a contract. Some contracts are of he
simplest form, while others are made the subject of lengthy wrilten agreements defining in technical terms the nature of the
material, method of payment, and other contractual conditions.

From the inception to the consummation ofa transaction between a buyer and a seller, many important issues ar-c involved:
and the proper handling of these and the administenng of the business features connected with them arc vita! kietors in the
successful completion of the transaction.

For these reasons, the authority and responsibility of purchasing rests with the Procurement Services. This places the
responsibility on those who have the interest and the skill to do the work properly and \vhose primary concern is in the
performance of this special task. It permits the establishing of uniform policies with respect of seller relationships.

Ihe objectives of the Procurement Services of Lexington County are as follows:

/ Assurance of continuity of supply to meet the service needs

V Avoidance of duplication and waste through standardization.

/ Maintenance of required quality standards in goods and services purchases.

V Development of a cooperative environment between Purchasing and the agencies arid
departments served.

/ Administer the purchasing function with internal efficiency.

/ Purchase of goods and services at the lowest price, consistent with quality
performance, and delivery requirements.

/ Dispose of, to the best advantage, all material and equipment declared to be surplus or obsolete.

/ Shall conduct business with vendors in a manner above reproach in every respect.
Transactions relating to the expenditure of public funds require the highest degree of publir trust.

1



PROCUREMENT AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY

GENERA!):

Public purchasing embraces a fundamental obligation to the general public to ensure that
procurements are accomplished in accordance with the intent of the laws enacted by the appropriate
legislative body. The intent of the Lexington County Council is set forth in the Article V of the
Code ofOrdinanecs. The ordinance applies to contracts forthe procurement ofsupplies, services and
construction, entered into by the County of Lexington. It shall apply to every expenditure of public
funds by the County for public purchasing irrespective of the source of thc funds. When the
procurement involves the expenditure of Federal assistance or contract funds, the procurement shall
he conducted in accordance with any applicable mandatory Federal law and rcgulations which are
not reflected in these procedures. NothThg in these procedures shall prevent the County from
complying with the terms or conditions of any grant, gift or bequest which are otherwise consistent
with law.

Competitive procurement requires time and administrative effort; it does not guarantee that a
department or agency's preferred brand or vendor will be selected. Conducted properly, competitive
procurement responds to user needs, results in public confidence in the integrity of public
purchasing, and generally brings the most favorable prices.

The County ofLexington Code ofOrdinances, Article V, directs the Purchasing Agent (Procurement
Manager) to prepare procedural regulations to amplify the provision of this article and provides that
such regulations shall have the force of law.

The County of Lexington has adopted operating procedures consistent with the policies of the
County Council in managing the commitments of funds entrusted to the county.

The acquisition of supplies, equipment and services necessary for the every day operation of the
County is the responsibility of Procurement Services, operating under the direct supervision of the
Director of General Services.

This guide is provided as a tool to assist you m working with Procurement Services. [he guidemay
be used as a reference to answer specific questions. Itmaybe updatedperiodical ly to reflect changes
in the County Code, or operating policies and procedures. Suggestions for procedural changes or
for additional information to be contained in this guide should be submitted to the Procurement
Manager.

2. AUTHORIZATION AND RESPONSIBILITiES:

The Procurement Manager is the County of Lexmgton's agent for the purpose of entering into
contracts for the procurement of goods and services. The Procurement Manager or his dcsignee arc
the only individuals authorized to sign purchase orders or contracts on behalf of the County It is
the responsibility of Procurement Services to assure the Administration and members of County
Council that purchases are made in a legal, ethical and professional manner, and that they arc made

4.



in compliance with the County Ordinance and other policies governing these actions Anyone other
than the Procurement Manager who sign contracts which commit the County of Lexington may be
assuming personal liability for the commitment.

3. RESPoNSIBILITIES AND DUTIES:

The Procurement Manager is responsible for establishing and administering, purchasing policies,
as approved by the Lexington County Council; approving term contracts, consolidating purchases
of like or common items, analyzing prices paid for materials, eqwpnicnt, supplies and services, and
generally defining how to effect cost savings and coordinate purchasing procedures for Lexington

County.

Specific responsibilities, duties and functions include:

a. Purchase all supplies, matcnals, equipmcntandcontractual services required by the agencies
in amounts or estimated amounts of fifteenthousand dollars ($15,000.00) or less, and submit
to the county administrator for award, and thereafter executu contracts br all purchases of
supplies, materials, equipment and contractual services in amounts or estiniated amounts
greater than fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) and less than twenty-five thousand dollars
($25,000.00), and submit to county council for award, and thereafter execute contracts for
all purchases of supplies, materials, equipment and contractual services in amounts or
estimated amounts of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00).

b. Negotiate contracts for personal services and submit them for approval and award

c. Develop, with the approval ofthe countyattorney as to legal sufficiency, standard fonns and
conditions of invitations to bid and purchase orders and contracts; develop, and prescribe
the use by agencies of other forms required in canying out the provisions of this article; and
amend or eliminate any such forms.

d. To develop and use those types of contracts and purchase orders which will reduce to the
minimum the accompanying paper work and which, in other respects, 'will be most
advantageous to the county.

c. l'o the greatest extent possible, to make frill utilization of the purchasing services provided
through the South Carolina DivisionofGeneral Services, Materials Management Office, i.e.
S.C. State Contracts.

f. Develop purchasing objectives, policies, programs and procedures for the purchase and
acquisition of all materials, supplies, equipment and services.

g. Act as Lexington County's representative on all matters pertaining to purchasing.

h. Use standard specifications wherever they are applicable to purchase orders and contracts;
and insure compliance with such specifications through adequate inspection of deliveries.

Consolidate purchases oflike or common items to obtain the maximum economical benefits

3



and cost savings, and explore the possibilities of buying "in buhc" to take full advantage of
quantity discounts.

j. SurplusPropty: Transferbetween departments/agencies supplies, materials and equipment
which are no longer needed by a holding agency but which can be uscd by the rccciving
agency.

Exchange, trade in or sell those supplies, materials and equipment which are surplus,
obsolete or unused and which are found by the county administrator not to be required for
public use.

k. Standardization: Work with other divisions to establish standardization of materials,
supplies and equipment where practicable.

I. Supplier Relations: Promote good will and public relations between Lexington County and
its suppliers. Encourage flaIl and open competition whercver possible.

in Budget: Prepare and submit the annual operating budget for Procurement Services.

n. Purchasing Analysis: Keep informed of current developments in the field of purchasing,
prices, market conditions and new products, and secure for the County the benefits of
research conducted in the field of purchasing by other governmental junsdictions, national
technical societies, professional purchasing associations, trade associations having national
recognition, and by private businesses and organizations

o. Purchasing Manual: Prescnbe and maintain a standard purchasing manual for all using
agencies.

p Vendor's Commodity Listing: Prepare, adopt and maintain a Vendor Commodity Listing.
Said listing :;hall contain descnption of vendor's commodities.

q. Disqualification of Bidders: Have the responsibility to ascertain the identity of all vendors
who default on their quotations to the County and to make no purchases from said vendors
for a period of up to one year unless default assessment has been satisfied or unless waived
by the County Adminisfrator.

4



Division's Responsibilities:

To become acquainted with the needs of all departments and divisions.

fo aid and cooperate with all departments in meeting their needs for operating
supplies and equipment at the least cost to Lexington County.

3. To assist in the preparation of specifications for all requirements

4. To locate the sources and availability of needed products.

5. To process all requisitions and purchase orders with the least possible delay.

6. To work with the supplier in correlating all the steps involved in completing a
purchase, including purchase order follow-up and tracing.

7. To assist the department with any difficulty after thc product has been delivered
or service has been rendered.

b. User Department's Responsibilities:

I. Allow ample tinie for Procurement Services to place the order and for the supplier
to deliver.

2. Write clear and accuratc description of materials and equipment to be purchased.

3 Prepare specifications that require a technical or engineering background.

4. List anticipated rcquircincnts in advance, when possible.

5. Keep Procurement Services advised ofany abnormal demands.

6. Under no circumstances is Procurement Services to be obligated by departments
in any manner whatsoever.

7. Cooperate with Procurement Services by reporting in writing the results of
purchases--either favorable or unfavorable. If you have complaints, REPORI

4. INTER-DEPARTMENTAL RELATIONS:

Cooperation and understanding between departments is essential in the effective operation of
Procurement Services. Procurement Services will at all times establish and maintain close liaison
with other departments ui order to meet their purchase needs and requirements. It must he
emphasized, however, that in most instances. Procurement Services does not detennine the
requirements for a particular purchase In cases \vhcre technical equipment, specifications, plans
or designs are involved, the department concerned will indicate their requirements and alipurchasing
actions will he coordinated withthe user departmentpriorto the issuance ofa formal purchase order
or contract.

a. Purehasimz

2



TE[EM.

8. Advise Procurement Services of any Iciown qualified supplier. Provide complete
vendor name, address and telephone number of new suppliers.

9. Verif' that all charges on the requisition are properly coded as to department and
object codes.

10. Be sure that funds have been allocated and are available in the proper object codes
to support purchases. If the charge code is incorrect andlor sufficient funds have
not been allocated or are not available, the requisition will be returned to the user
department.

II. When obtaining quotes, supply the first and last name of the person submitting the
quote.

12. Be sure the purchase is for a "public purpose".

5. VENDOR RELATIONS:

a. When necessary, in order to interview salesmen regarding details of their product, other
divisions and departments should request such visits through Procurement Services. In
interviews with salesmen, no one shall commit to preference for any product or service or
give any inibrmation regarding performance or price.

b. All correspondence with suppliers will he through Procurement Services except in special
cases where technical details involved make it advisable to delegate authority to others. In
such cases, Procurement Services must receive copies of correspondence.

c. Any quotations or specific information received from vendors relative to any item under
consideration for purchase must not be divulged, except when state regulations or County
laws make such disclosures permissible, until after a purchase has been issued.

d. All bidders must be afforded equal opportunities to quote so that all bidders can compete
on equal terms.

e. New sources of supply will be given due consideration because multiple sources of supply
are necessary to ensure competition, continuity of supply and availability of materials. The
County will buy from any vendor who exhibits adequate financial strength, high ethical
standards, a record of adhering to specifications, maintains shipping promises, and gives a
full measure of service.

f. The county will strive to maintain strong and enduring relationships with vendors of proven
ability and a desire to meet our needs. To accomplish this, our purchasing activities will be
conducted so that all vendors will value our business and make every effort to furnish our
requirements on the basis of the most economical quantity, suitable quality, timely delivery,
adequate service, and lowest possible price.

6



g. Gratuities. The acceptance of any gratuity in the form of cash, merchandise or any other
thing by an official or employee of the county from any vendor or contractor, shall be
deemed to he a violation of this article and shall be cause for removal or other disciplinary
action The offer of any gratuity to an official or employee of the county by any vendor or
contractor, or prospective vendor or contractor, shall be cause for declaring such individual
or firm to he an irresponsible bidder and for debarring him from bidding.

7



2

GENERAL PROCUREMENT POLICIES

General: The following policies shall govern the procurement of goods and services for the County
in accordance with the existing Purchasing Ordinance:

a. All requests for prices or services, and all purchases will me made through and by
Procurement Services except as otherwise exempted by the County Administrator or
Lexington County Council. In some instances, authority to request prices maybe delegated
to others.

b. Acceptance of gifts, other than advertising novelties, is strictly prohibited. Acceptance of
elaborate eiitertamment is also prohibited. No employee shall become obligated to any
supplier and shall not conclude any County transaction from which they may personally
benefit.

c. No employee or officer of the County shall be prohibited from purchasing, at public auction
authorized by law, used goods or materials from the County on the same basis as are all
other members of the public.

d. No contracL, purchase, or group of requisitions shall be subdivided to avoid bid and
quotation requirements.

e. It is unlawful for a County officer or employee to order the purchase of any materials,
supplies, equipment, and contractual services, or make any contract other than through the
Procurement Manager, and any purchase, order or contract made contrary to the provisions
hereof shall be deemed an unauthorized purchase.

In cases of e ttreme emergency, and only is such cases, an exception to the above policy may
be made with the understanding that the person authorizing the emergency order will
personally assume the responsibility of immediately following UI)the verbal order given by
hmselUherselfor his/her authorized representative, with properj ustification in written form
and the proper requisiflon. hi cases of emergency, the requestor shall, if possible, contact
Procurement Services prior to placement of the order with the vendor.

g. All open market purchases shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder and all open
market sales shall be made to the highest responsible bidder

2. PURCHASE REOUISITION:

a. Purpose: The Purchase Requisition serves to inform Procurement Services of the needs of
the user dep2 rtment'division and to correctly define the material requested. In addition, the

S



signed requisition signifies authority to charge a specific account number and that there arc
sufficient funds available in the account specified.

b Preparation Requisitions shall be prepared far enough in advance to permit Pi-ocurernent
Services to obtain competitive prices, and to allow sufficient time for deliveries to he made.

c. Lead Time: ftc following minimum timerequirements are necessary to secure competitive
prices after receipt of requisition(s) and correct specifications by Procurement Services.

1. Two to three days for items not requning formal quote (under $1,500).

2. Three to seven days fir verbal quotes or written bids ($1,500 - $15,000).

3. Two to four weeks for items upon which advertising is not required, hut will be
formally bid ($15,000 Lip).

4. Six to eight weeks for items requiring formal bids, advertising and county council
approval ($25,000 up).

d Special Situations: Requisitions on which special handling is desired for the purchase of
materials to prevent downtime in any operation in a department, but which

are not strictly emergencies may he hand-carried or walked through channels in the interest
of saving time. These must be held to a minimum and shall be used only in cases of
required purchases under $5,000 with ajustification as to urgent need indicated on the front
page of the requisition. Note: Competitive verbal pricing shall then be obtained by
Procurement Services on all requisitions \vheneverpossible prior to issuance ofthc purchase
order.

e. Reuuisition Forms: The requisition form (LCF-122) is an important communication tool
between the end-user and Procurement Services. The form has been designed to control
requests for all purchases of material and services, therefore, all acquisition requests must
be submitted to Purchasing on this form. The requisition fhrms are pre-nunibered and
consist of two parts. The uses of parts are as follows.

Part I-Original White Copy Maintained in Procurement Services with the purchase order
for their records.

Part 2-Canary Copy - To be retained by the requesting department/agency for their records.

In order that the greatest utilization he gained from this form, it must be filled out completely. The
following instructions are to be applied when completing the purchase requisition form:

1. DALE: Enter the date on which the requisition is prepared.

2. RFCOMMENDED VENDOR AND ADDRESS Enter the recommended vendor
and address to include the zip code.

3. WILL PICK UP/OTHER: All items will be delivered to Central Warehouse unless

9



otherwise specified for special handling. If youneed to pick up the items listed,
please indicate in this section. The typed purchase order will be sent to you. It will
then he your responsibility to notii Central Warehouse when the items have been
received.

4. REQUIRED DELIVERY DATE: If necessary for a specific project, enter the
required delivery date. Be realistic and considcr the lead time and delivery. Use
a date such as May 30, 19. Avoid ASAP, Immediate or Rush. Whcre we feel we
cannot meet your date, we will advise you so you may choose another course of
action or obtain a more realistic date.

5. TOTAL AMOUNT: This space if for Purchasing Office use only.

6. DEPARTMENT: Enter the Department name.

7. ACCOUNT CODE: Enter the accounting code for your department/division to
include cost center and object code. Ensure funds availability.

8. REQUISITIONED BY: Enter the name of the person that will be receiving the
goods or services.

9. QUANTifY: Enter the amount desired for each item on the requisition.

10. UNIT: How is item packaged - each, set, doz., pk., ream, etc..

11. DESCRIPTION: The descnption should be specific and complete, so that the item
wilL be easily identified. Description should include manufacturer, model number,
color or size if applicable, special consideration, etc. Complete justification is
required when no substitutcs are desired. When any item requisitioned has to be
compatible with existing equipment, the reason must be clearly explained in the
requisition, and a request for a specific brand or model (permitting no substitute)
must be fully justified.

12. IT PRICE: Include your best estimate of what you think it will cost or what you
are willing to spend. Ifa quote is received, indicate the person's name that gave the
quote.

13. JENSION: Multiply unit price by quantity and enter total. Tax must be added
after a subtotal at the bottom of the order.

14. APPROVAL: Form must be signed by the Department Head or Designee.

Requisitions should be carefully reviewed before mailing to the Purchasing Office.
Accuracy is most important - make sure that the requisition is fully legible.

f. Routing: A standard requisition form containing an original with one copy is to be used to
make requests for all purchases and services.

10



I. iherequisitioning department will prepare the requisition retainingthc yellow copy
in a suspense file and forwarding the original copy through the proper channels
necessary to complete authorization for the purchase.

2. Upon receipt of the requisition in Procurement Services, quotations, bids, and
county commodities or services will be obtained and the purchase order will be
issued.

g. General Information:

1. The Pmcurement Manager or designee has the authority and the responsibility to
review requisitions to insure that specifications are not unduly restrictive aud
prohibit reasonable competition. Incomplete, inaccurate or unduly restrictive
requisitions may be returned to the requestor for coiTection, revision, and/or
explanation.

2. If there are insufficient funds for the purchase, the requisition may be returned to
the ordering department.

3. When any item requisitioned has to be compatible with existing equipment, the
reason must be clearly explained in the requisition, and a request for a specific
brand or model (permitting no substitute) must be fully justified.

4. Requisitions should be carefully reviewed before mailing to the Purchasing Office
Accuracy is most important - make sure that the requisition is fully legible.

3. RESPONSIBILITY FOR SPECI FLCATIONS:

The preparation of specifications is the joint responsibility of Procurement Services and the using
department or division. Specifications shall permit conipctition except on non-competitive materials
or services. In general, specifications should define the level of performance required rather than
specific brand name. For the benefit of vendors and the department, specifications must be clear and
concise.

4. REVIEW OF SPECIFICATIONS:

Prior to issuance of bids or processing of requisitions with specifications attached, review of the
specifications lot certain commodities and services shall be made by other departments within the
County to assure open competitive bidding and up-to- dale specifications. Some examples are as
fo 110W 5:

Type of EguiprnentlService Requested Department Review

Computers/Hardware and Software Information Services

Vehicles Fleet Services

11



Radios/Commumcatin Equipment Public Safety / Communications

Building Construction and Building Services
Maintenance

Microfilm Eqwpmeni Microfilm Department

5. REQUISITION YEAR END CUTOFF DATE:

Requisitions for purchases to be charged to each fiscal year must be received by Procurement Services early
enough to allow for processing and delivery pnor to June 30. Procurement Services will publish a cut off date
annually. The cut off date wi El be the first pad of May of each year. Exceptions can be made for emergencies,
in which case the requisition must be accompanied with properjustification. Time must be allowed to complete
the delivery, submit the invoice and process payment by June 30. Vendor delivery on reqwsitions received late
may not be made until the new fiscal year which would then require payment from the new fiscal year funds.
Please keep in mind that a longer lead time is required for procurements made by competitive sealed bidding.

6. VENDOR LIST:

Procurement Services will maintain a "Vendor List" of those manufacturers, suppliers, agents, etc., who desire
to be placed on the Vendor List. A prospective bidder will be p!aced on the Vendor List by submitting a
completed vendor application form available from Procurement Services.

Failure ofa vendor to respond to three (3) successive invitations to bid, or at the vendor's request for a minimum
of six (6) months. Vendors will be notified in writing that they are being removed from the list. Such notification
must provide the reason for removal. Vendor may re-apply to be added back to the bidders list after the assessed
time has passed.

7. PURCHASE ORDERS:

a. Purpose: A purchase order authorizes the vendor to ship and invoice the materials and services as
specified. Purchase orders shall be written so that they are clear, concise and complete. This will
prevent any unnecessary misunderstanding and correspondence with suppliers.

b. When Issued: Computer generated numbered purchase orders shall be issued upon receipt of an
acceptable requisition and after receipt of competitive bids, determination whether funds are available,
and after Council approval as necessary.

c. Who Issues: Only Procurement Services shall issue purchase orders. The using division will not enter
into negotiations with any supplier for the purchase of supplies, matenals or equipment. All purchase
orders shall be transmitted to the supplier by Procurement Services.

d. Routing of Order: A standard purchase order form, containing copies, is used to make all purchases and
is routed as follows:

1. White oriRinal copy: Mailed to vendor (to include any enclosures, etc.) by the Purchasing

12



Division.

2. Green copy: Payable copy retained by Purchasing until receiving report and invoicing are
received and processed for payment.

3. Canary copy: To department originating (lie requisition (for information and filing).

4. Blue copy: Retained by Purchasing and Pled with purchase requisition and bid information
alphabetically by vendor.

5. Pink copy To Central Stores/Warehouse to be retained until receipt of items Receiving
signatures are obtained and pink copy is returned with any packing slips to Procurement
Services as the receiving document.

6. Goldenrod To Central Stores/Warehouse for filing and future reference.

S. ChANGE ORDERS:

A Change Order to a Purchase Order is handled in much the same way as the issuance ofa Purchase Order. The
department requesting the Change Order shall submit to Procurement Services a change order request fonii
LCF7Ô9 indicating the complete justification lhr the changes, i e., increase in quantity, addition of freight
charges, addition or deletion of items, etc. Change Order requests that list a price change with no explanation
for the increase or decrease will he returned to the originator. In the event that a Change Order is to be issued
against a Purchase Order which was placed as a result of County Council action, this Change Order must be
processed through the County Administrator for approval of the change.

9. EXPEDITING AND FOLLOW-UP:

On a periodic basis, Procurement Services shall make mquiry to the vendor as to the status ofa particular order
after issuance. Special follow-up may be requested by the ordenng department.

19. DIFFICULTIES AFTER RECEIPT OF SERVICE OR ITEM:

Procurement Services shall handle with the vendor any problems or difficulties with received items or
services.

11. PREPAYMENT PROCEDURES:

Purchase Orders may be issued on items requiring prepayment. Departments/Divisions niust attach the
oruinal documents, showing prepayment required, to the requisition prior to forwarding to the Purchasing

Division

12. REGISTRATION FEES AND TRAVEL:

Registration fees and other travel expenses are submmfled on a Trip Request and processed by the Finance

13



Department

13. INSPECTION:

a. The receiving agencies shall inspect delivenes of supplies, materials and eqaipment or the furnishmg
of contractual services to insure their conformance with the specifications set forth in the purchase
order or contract.

b. Any agency which has the necessary facilities and staff for adequate inspection may he authorized
and directed by County Council, on the recommendation ofthe County Procurement

Manager to inspect delivenes made to other agencies.

c. The County Procurement Manager shall have authority to require chemical and physical tests of
samples submitted with bids and samples of deliveries to the extent necessary to determine their
quality and conformance with the specifications. For such tests, the County Procurement Manager
shall have authonty to make use of laboratory facilities of any agency or to engage tile services of
any outside laboratory.

BLANKET ORDERS:

a. Definition: A blanket purchase agreement is a simplified method of filling anticipated needs for
small quantities of supplies and services with qualified sources of supply. This will reduce
administrative costs in accomplishing small purchases by eliminating the need for issuing
individual purchase orders. All competitive sources will be given an equal opportunity to furnish
supplies or services under such agreements. The authority to issue blanket purchase agreements
is vested only in Procurement Services.

b. Terms and Conditions: Blanket purchase agreements must contain the Ibllowing provisions:

I. Description af agreement - a statement that the supplier shall furnish goods and services,
described therein in general terms, if and when requested by the Procurement Manager of
his designal ed representative(s), during a specified period and within a stipulated
aggregate amount, if any. Blanket purchase agreements may encompass all items that the
suppliers is in position to furnish.

2. Extent of obligation - a statement that the County is obligated only to the extent of
authorized calls actually placed against the agreement.

3. Notice of individuals authorized to place calls and dollar limitations.

4. Delivery ticcets - a requirement that all shipments under the agreement shall be
accompanied by delivery tickets or sales slips which must contain the following minimum
information.

-Name of supplier (business name);
-Blanket purchase agreement number;
-Date of sale;
-Itemized list of goods or services furnished;

14



-Quantity, unit price, and extension of each item, and
-Date of delivery or shipment.

5. Invoices - An itemized invoice shall be submitted at least monthly or upon expiration of
the agreement, whichever occurs first, for all delivenes made during a billing period and
for which payment has not been received.

6 Receipt and Acceptance - Acceptance of supplies or services shall be indicated by
signature and date. A sales slip or deliveiy ticket may be used for this purpose.

7. Review Procedures - Blanket purchase agreement files will be reviewed at 'east
semi-annually to assure that authorized procedures are being Followed. Such agreements
shall be issued for a period not longer than one (1) year

15. OVER-THE-COUNTER ORDERS:

a. Purpose: To provide for emergency use, to properly authorized personnel, means for secunng
over-the-counter delivery ofniiseellaneous hardware, repairparts, and similaritems when the need
arises in the vicinity of a source of supply. An emergency shall be deemed to exist when a break
down in machinery or if an essential service occurs, or when unibreseen circumstances arise,
including unanticipated volume of work.

b. Authorization: Pre-numbered order books shall be issued by the Procurement Manager, to
authorized personnel only. Department Heads shall provide written request and justification for
authorized personnel to draw order books Additional books shall be issued only after used order
books have been returned to the County Procurement Manager who shall file for future reference.
Without used order book new issue may not be niade.

e. Procedure: An over-the-counterpurchase order is issued and countersigned by the person the book
was issued to. The counter order is then physically hand delivered to the vendor for pick up An
invoice or delivery ticket should be obtained at that tune, signed and dated as when received, and
attached to the pink copy to be turned in to Procurement Services for payment. Items shall not be
hack ordered on counter orders. There should only be one pick up per counter order issued.
Counter orders are not used for stocking supplies or for office supplies.

d. Distribution: The original white copy will be given to the vendor; the coldenrod copy will go to
the department, the nmk copy will he attached to the invoice, approved and sent to Purchasing for
payment and the canary copy will remain in the order book as a permanent record.

e. Monetary Limits: Available order hooks are limited to the monetary value of $100.00. It shall be
unlawful for any agency to split its requirements and use two (2) or more orders to evade the
monetary limits ofthese orders. 1 he use of these orders shall be limited to the amounts and to the
authority of person assigned an order book by numbers accountable to that person or authority of
that use could be rescinded by the County Procurement Manager.

Accountability: Numbers from each order book shall he logged by the Procurement Manager, who
shall require the person receiving that order book to sign in the space provided before physically
receiving that order book.

15



g. Verification: Accounting copy of the order shall be verified by the Department Head or his
authorized representative for cost, account charged and mcrchandise purchased. This shall be
accomplished by signature or initialing. Order is then forwarded to the County Procurement
Manager for further verification and attaching of proper invoice and forwarded to the Department
of Finance for payment.

UNAUThORIZED PURCHASES:

Procurement Services is the only unit in the County authorized to procure supplies, materials, equipment
and contractual services required by the agencies except as provided for in Section 2-82 of Article V of the
Lexington County Code of Ordmances and in the policy on petty cash. Procurements made contrary to the
provisions of this article shall be considered an unauthorized and unlawful purchase. The head of the
agency making such purchase transaction shall be personally liable for the amount of such purchase order
or contract unless waived by the County Administrator.

Payment of unauthorized purchase invoices shall only be made upon receipt of a waiver form the County
Administrator. To request a waiver, a memo from the responsible department head along with all pertinent
paperwork, shall be addressed to the County Administrator with an explanation as to why the purchase was
made without following purchasing policies and procedures. If a waiver is granted, all paperwork shall be
forwarded to Procurement Services for processing.

16



3

METHODS OF PROCUREMENT

SMALL PURCHASES

a. Single Quotation: Repetitive type items where the estimated cost of the materials, eqwpmenl, or
supplies is less than $1,500.00 maybe made without competition ifpriee is deemed to be fair and
reasonable. Additional competition may he obtained whenever there is a reason to believe a
quotation is not a fair and reasonable pnee.

b. Telephone Quotes: Purchases where the estimated cost of the materials, equipment, or supplies
is over $1500.00 and less than $5,000.00 may be made upon receipt ofa minimum of three verbal
or written bids and are recorded on a bid tabulation.

c. Written Quotes: Purchases where theestimated costof the materials, equipment, orsupplies is over
$5,000.00 and less than $15,000.00 may be made upon receipt ofa minimum of three wntten bids
and are recorded on a bid tabulation.

2. COMPETITIVE SEALED BIDDING:

Wntten Invitations for Bids (WB) will be mailed to prospective bidders for purchases over $15,000, and
such IFB's shall be opened at a pre-deterniined time and date Sole Source, proprietary and emergency
purchases are exempted with prior approval of the Procurement Manager. TB's, documented completely,
shall be maintained in a file with the purchase order.

Source selection is often obtained from responsible prospective suppliers on our vendor list, publications
and catalogues, suggestions from division heads, previous suppliers, etc. Procurement Services shall
attempt to secure at least three (3) competitive bids.

A tabulation of all bids received shall he available for public inspection in the main offices of Procurement
Services during regular business hours for thirty (30) days after bid award. Vendors filing protest of award
must do so within a 72 hour period after bid award

The Procurement Manager shall have the right to reject all bids and request the entire transaction be reclid.

a Bid Invilations:

The Invitation to Bid is sent or placed in the hands of prospective bidders Notice of hid shall
be advertised and posted in Procurement Services. The notice should contain the lbIlo\ving
instructions and information:

I. Instructions and information to bidders concerning the hid submission requirements,

17



including the time and date set for receipt of bids, the individual to whom the bid is to
be submitted, the address of the office to which the bids are to be delivered/mailed, the
maximum time for bid acceptance by the County, and any other special information;

2. The purchase description, evaluation factors, delivery or performance schedule, and such
inspection and acceptance requirements as are not included in the purchase description;

3. The contract terms and conditions, including warranty and bonding or other security
requirements as applicable; and

4. Instructions to bidders to visibly mark as "confidential"each part of their bid which they
consider to be proprietary mforniation. Bidding time will beset

to provide bidders a reasonable time to prepare their bids. A minimum
of Iourteen(14) calendar days shall be provided unless a shorter time
is deemed necessary for a particular procurement as determined in
writing by the Procurement Manager.

b, Bid Bondlfleposits:

When the Procurement Manager deems it necessary, bid bond/bid deposits shall be prescribed in
the public notices inviting bids. Unsuccessful bidders shall be entitled to return of surety where
the Procurement Manager has required such. A successful bidder shall fbrfeit any surety required

by the Procurement Manager upon failure on his part to enter into a contract within ten
(10) days after the award. He shall also beheld liable for any cost in excess of his bid pnee which
the county mcurs in purchasing the commodities or services elsewhere. Bid Bonds and
Performance Bonds may include cashier's cheeks

When a bid guarantee is required and a bidder fails to furnish it in accordance with the
requirements of the solicitation, the bid shall be rejected.

c. Prebid Conference:

Holding a confererLce or site visit early in the solicitation cycle provides an opportunity to
emphasize and clarify critical aspects of the solicitation, eliminate ambiguities or
misunderstandings, and permits vendor input. Prebid conferences/site visits shall be conducted
with potential bidders or offerors when issuing solicitations for complex, farge or critical
requirements. Attendance at conferences or site visits may be optional or mandatory. When
mandatory attendance is stipulated, only bids from those firms represented at the conference or
visiting the site will be accepted. If a modification to the solicitation is required as a result of the
conference or site visit, an addendum will be issued.

d. Canceling or Amending a Solicitation.

When canceling a written solicitation, notification should be mailed to all vendors who have been
issued a solicitation and a copy ofthe notice publicly posted. Sealed bids received on canceled bids
will be returned unopened. Ifit is necessary to amend a solicitation, an addendum shall be sent to
all potential bidders or offerors who received a copy of the solicitation and a copy publicly posted.
Signed acknowledge of addenda must be returned to the purchasing office prior to the time and

IS



date of the opening or with the bid or proposal. V/hen an addendum is issued which will require
additional time for the vendor to prepare a solicitation response, the opening date should be
extended.

e. Receipt of l3ids:

All bids (including modif1cations/amendments) received prior to the time of opening shall be kept
secure and, except as provided for under the heading "Unidentified Bids", unopened in a locked
bid box. If an invitation for bids is cancelled, bids shall be returned to the bidders. Necessary
precaution shall be taken to insure the security of the hid box. When bid samples are submitted,
they shall be handled with sufficient care to prevent disclosures or characteristics before bid

opening.

Unidentified Bids:

Unidentified bids may be opened solely for the purpose ofidentilication. Ifa sealed bid is opened
bymistake, the person who opens the hid will immediately write his/her signature and explanation
ofthe opening, the date and time opened, the invitation of forbid's number and immediately deliver
it to the Procurement Manager.

g. Bid Opening:

Procedures: The Procurement Manager or his designee shall decide when the time set for
bid opening has arrived, and shall so declare to those present I-Ic shall then personally and
publicly open all bids received prior to that time and when practicable, read them aloud
to those persons present and have the bids recorded. Ihe following information is read
aloud: bidders name, unit price or lot price as may be applicable, discount terms offered
if discount terms are to be considered in making the award, and brand name and model
number, if requested by the bid attendees. Questions on contents of' other bidder's bids
shall not be answered until alter evaluation is complete and award has been made. The
tabulation shall he open to public inspection.

2. Disclosure of Bid Information: Only the information disclosed by the County
Procurement Manager or his designee at bid opening is considered to be public
information under the Freedom of Information Act, Chapter 3 of Title 30, until award is
made.

3. Postponement of Bid Opening. An amendment postponing the hid openings may
he issued by the Procurement Manager as deemed necessary. An amendment will be
mailed to all bidders that were mailed the original IFB.

a Causes beyond the control of bidders (i.e , flood, fire, accident, weather
conditions);

b. When emergency or unanticipated events interrupt normal county operations.

e. Changes in specifications or scope of bids that would require additional tinie.

h. Telegraphic Bids:

19



Telegraphic messages are not acceptable for sealed bids since prices would be exposed prior to the
deadline set for receipt. Telegraphic messages or facsimile transmission may be accepted only for
unsealed bids and must be received by the purchasing office prior to the date and time specified
in the solicitation.

When in the opinion of the Procurement Manager, the date for the open ng of bids will not allow
bidders sufficient time to preparc and submit bids on the prescribed forms or when prices arc
subject to frequent changes, facsimile bids may be authorized.

Bid Evaluation:

As soon as practical after the opening, the bids will be evaluated and an award made to the lowest
responsive and responsible bidder who submits a bid that is deemed to be in the best interest of the

county.

j. Responsible Bidder:

In determining a responsible bidder, a number of factors including but not limited to the following
are considered. The vendor should:

I. be a regular dealer or supplier of the goods or services offered,

2. have the ability to comply with the required delivery or performance schedule, taking into
consideration other business commitments;

3. have a satisfactory record of performance;

4. have a satisfactory record of integrity; and

5. have the necessary facilities, organization, experience, technical skills, and financial
resources to fulfill the terms of the purchases order or contract.

k. Responsiveness of Bids:

To be considered for an award, a bid must comply in all matcrial aspecis with the invitation for
bids. Responsiveness relates to compliance with the provisions of the solicitation, thcluding
specifications and terms and conditions. Failure to comply with the requirements set forth in the
invitation for bids can result in a bidder being declared non-responsive, ie. failure to sign the bid,
substitution of vendor's terms, deletion of terms and conditions stated in the invitation for bids,
failure to offer a product or service that meets the requirements of the invitation for bids, etc.

Price Unreasonableness:

Any offer may be rejected and rebid if the County Procurement Manager determines in writing that
it is unreasonable as to pnce. This can be accomplished by comparison with

previous procurements of the same type goods or service considering economic trends and
quantities purchased. Purchasing Offices of other state or county agencies are good sources of
pncing information.

20



m. Award of Bids:

In determining the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, in addition to price, there shall be
considered the following:

I. The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform the contract.

2. Whether the bidder can perform the contract within the time specified, without delay or
interference

3. The character, integrity, reputation,judgment, cxpcrience and efficiency of the bidder.

4. The quality of performance on previous contracts.

5. The previous and existing compliance by the bidder with la\vs and ordinances relating to
the contract.

6. The sufficiency of the financial resources to perform the contract to provide the service.

7. l'he quality, availability and adaptability of the supplies or contractual services to the
particular use required

8. The ability of the bidder to provide future maintenance and service.

9. The discount terms and conditions of the bid.

10. Delivery time.

When necessary for the best interest of Ihe County, hid criteria lo determine acceptability

may include inspection, testing, quality, workmanship, delivery and suitability for a
particular purpose. Those critena that will affect the bid price are to be given to each
bidder.

Bid award recommendations wherein the ard exceeds S25,000 shall be submitted to the
County Administrator with a request for approval by the Lexington County Council.

n. Single Response to a Solicitation:

Even though multiple sources are solicited, there are occasions when only one response is received
for a solicitation. In such cases, the buyer should investigate to determine why other bidders or
offerors did not respond and make a determination whether to award or to reject the hid or offer
and resolicit. In addition, prior to award, the buyer must make a written determination that the
price is fair and reasonable.

o. Cash DiscoLints:

Prompt payment discounts will normally not be considered in determining the lo\vest responsive
bidder. lfa bidder does offer a cash discount for prompt payment, this will not be considered in

21



evaluation, but shoald be included on the purchase order, and the discount taken if invoices arc
processed and payment made within the stipulated time frame. However, if the Procurement
Manager knows that the County regularly processes payment within a prescribed time frame, such
as 30 days, and wishes to consider cash discounts in the evaluation, then a statement must bc
included in the bid solicitation stating "cash discounts for prompt payment within 30 days will be
considered in detenmning net low bid."

p. Tie Bids:

Award of all tie bids under $25,000 value shall be made by the Procurement Manager. All tie bids
in excess of $25,000 shall be awarded by the Lexington County Council. Tie bids may be

a\varded to one of t4e bidders based on:

1. Availability or completion period

2. Service availability or facility

3. Previous vendor record

4. Closeness to the delivery point

Where tie bids are between bidders one of which is a business whose principal place of business
is located in Lexington County and the other bidder is not, the recommended award shall be to the
Lexington County bidder. All conditions equal, draw lots or flip coin. The coin toss must be
witnessed and the results recorded.

q. Reiection nI Bids:

1. Application: Unless there is a compelling reason to reject one or more bids, award will
be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder with

other provisions listed under award. Every effort shall be made to anticipate changes
in a requirement prior to the date of opening and notif' all prospective bidders of any
resulting me'dification or cancellation, thereby permitting bidders to change their bids and
preventing unnecessary exposure of bid prices. As a general rule, after opening, an
invitation for bids should not be cancelled and re-advertised due solely to increased
requirements for the items being procured; award should be made on the initial invitation
for bids and the additional quantity required should be treated as a new procurement. Any
bid which fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation for bid shall be
rejected.

2. Nonresponsive Bids and Alternate Bids: Any bid which does not conform to the
specifications and the delivery requirements in accordance with the bid maybe rejected,
unless the invitation specifically authorized the submission of alternate bids and the
offered alternates meet the requirements specified.

3. COMPETITIVE SEALED PROPOSALS:

22



a. Conditions for use: When the Lexington County Council determines that the use of competitive

sealedbidding inprocurementolparticulargoods,services, orconstruction iseither notpracticable
or not advantageous to the county, itshall instruct the County Administrator or such other persons
or entities as designated by the County Council to utilize the competitive sealed proposals
procedure established herein to contract for and procure the particular goods, services, or
construction required by the county

ft Request for proposals: Proposals shall be solicited from at least three (3) qualified sources, when
such sources are reasonably available, through a request for proposals. A "request for proposals'
is a written or published solicitation for proposals to provide goods, services, or construction, as
described therein. Evaluation factors upon which the proposals will be evaluated For award of the
contract shall be stated in the request for proposals. Price shall be one of the evaluation factors but
it shall not be the sole basis for award of the contract.

c. Development of Request for Proposal (REP): The RFP should contain a covering letter of
transmittal to prospective offerors and the following enclosures as appropriate: Description of
scope of work or services, project objectives, schedule, qualification criteria, evaluation criteria,
price- cost considerations, proposal format, conditions, provisions and proposed draft contract.

d Puhlic Notice: Public notice ofthc request for proposals shall be given at a reasonable time prior
to the date set forth therein for the receipt of proposals. Such notice may include utilization of
bidders' lists or publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the county.

e. Receipt of Proposals: Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presencc of one (1) or more
witnesses at the time and place designated in the request for proposals. Only the names of the
offers shall be disclosed at the proposal opening. Contents of the proposals shall not to disclosed
during the negotiation process. Proposals shall be open for public inspection after contract award,
except that proprietary or confidential information in any proposal that is clearly marked
"confidential" by the offeror shall not be disclosed without written consent of the offeror.

f. Evaluation Factors: The request for proposals shall state the relative importance of price and of
each other evaluation factor but shall not require numerical weighing of each factor. The
evaluation factors shall be examined with respect to each proposal in dcterniining which proposal
is most advantageous to the County. There are no restrictions on the kind or number of evaluation
factors that may be used, as long as they are stated in the request for proposals and relate to the
purpose of the procurement.

g. Negotiation with Responsible Offerors and Revisions to Proposals: Negotiations may be
conductcd with any offerors submitting a proposal that appears eligible for contract award (based
upon the evaluation factors) for the purpose of clarification to assure full understanding of and
responsiveness to the requirements of the request for proposals. Offerors shall be accorded fair
and equal treatment withrespcct to opportunity for discussion and revision ofproposals Revisions
in proposals may be permitted after their subniission and prior to contract award of the purpose of
obtaining best and final offers. In conducting negotiations, there must be no disclosure of any
information denved from proposals submitted by competing offerors.

h. Award: Award shall be made to the responsive offcror whose proposal is determined to be the
most advantageous to the County, taking into consideration price and the other evaluation factors

23



set forth m the request for proposals. No other factors or critena may he used in evaluation and
there must be adherence to any weighing specified for each factor in the request for proposals. If
the County Council or its designee should determine that none of the proposals is advantageous
to the county, the ccunty shall have the absolute right to reject any and all proposals. The contract
file shall contain the basis on which the award is made and he sufficient to satisfy external audit.

i. Negotiations After Unsuccessful Competitive Proposals: When the price of all proposals received
pursuant to a request for proposals appears to be unreasonable, or the price of the lowest proposal
exceeds available finds as determined by the County Council or its designee, and time or other
circumstances do not permit the delay required to resolicit for competitive sealed proposals, a
contract may nevertheless be negotiated provided that:

1. Each offeror who submitted a proposal under the original solicitation is noti lied and given
reasonable opportunity to negotiate;

2. The negotiated price must be within the limits of available funds as determined by the
County Council or its designee.

4. SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT:

A purchase order may be awarded for a supply, service, equipment, or construction item without
competition based upon a wiitten deterimnation, approved by the County Administrator, that there is only
one source for the required supply, service or equipment. Sole Source purchases will be identified based
on the following criteria:

a. There is a aek of competition for a product or service.

b. It is a unique, one-of-a-kind service or offer.

c. The product has paiented or propnetary rights that provide superior capabilities that are not
obtainable from similar products; and this product is not marketed through other wholesalers,
jobbers, or distributors whose competition could be encouraged.

d. Where the items are needed for trial use or testing.

5. EMERGENCY PURCHASES:

a. Definition: An emergency procurement shall be authorized only when there exists an immediate
threat to public health, welfare, critical economy and efficiency, or safety under emergency
conditions; a breakdown in machinery or an essential service occurs; or when unforeseen
circumstances arise, including delays by contractors, delays in transportation and unanticipated
volume of work; and provided that such emergency procurements shall be made with as much
competition as is practicable under the circumstances. A written determination of the hasis for the
emergency and for the selection of the particular contractor shall be included in the contract file.

b. Procedure: If an emergency occurs during regular business hours, the Department Head or designee
of the using agency shall immediately noti' the Procurement Manager who shall either make the

24



purchase or authorize the using agency to do so. If the Procurement Manager is unavailable, the
head of the using agency shall noti' the County Administrator hefore making the purchase.

c. Emergency Purchases at Nights, Weekends, or Holidays:

Ifan emergency occurs at times other than regular business hours, the using agency may purchase
directly the commodity or commodities required. If the estimated cost of the emergency purchase
exceeds fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500.00), the head of such agency shall, whenever possible,
secure competitive telephone bids and order delivery to be made by the lowest responsible bidder.
On every emergency purchase made, the department head shall, not later than one (I) week
thereafter, submit to the Procurement Manager a requisition, a tabulation of bids received, if any,
a signed delivery ticket or other receiving documentation, and a written explanation of the
circumstances of the emergency. The record of such emergency transactions shall be open to
public inspection during regularbusiness hours. The Procurement Manager mayrejectrequisitions
which are confirmation of orders ifthere is reason to believe no true emergency existed at the tnne
of purchase.

d. General Information:

When emergency purchases are made, the department will make the purchase at the best possible
pnce. A true emergency will often occur as a result of parts and labor needed for repairs to
vehicles or equipment which must be kept in operating order. Emergencies are also created
through negligence and poor planning and are to be avoided. Failure to anticipate normal needs
or project deadline dates does not constitute an emergency.

6. PROPRIETARY PROCUREMENTS:

When the county requires supplies, materials or equipment which are patented or proprietary and not
obtainable in other competitive makes or brands, it is appropriate to use a proprietary specification when
the desired product mustbe compatible with or is an integral component of existing equipment or products,
or when prequalifications olproducts is necessary to support a specific need of a program; is covered by
a patent or copyright; must yield absolute continuity of results; or is one with which a user has had
extensive training and experience; and the use of any other similar piece of equipment would require
considerable reorientation and training. Upon solicitation, every effort must be made to obtain full
competition among the distributors which carry the manufacturer's product The determination for
the use ofa proprietary specification shall be made in \\Titing, and submitted with the requisition and must
be included in the procurement file.

7. PURCHASES EXEMPT FROM THE ml) PROCESS:

The requirements for requesting bids fromthree or more sources are waived for the purchase ofeducational
tests, text books, printed instructional materials, films, filmstrips, video-tapes, disc or tape recordings or
similar audio-visual matenals and the books, reference books and periodicals where such materials are
purchased directly from the producer or publisher, the owner of the eopynght, an exclusive agent within
the State, a governmental agency or a recognized educational institution. Purchases from the current county
contracts, state purchasing contracts shall be an acceptable alternative procedure for bidding. The

25



Procurement Manager shaH have authority to vaive bid requirements in emergency circumstances, when

justified by the ordering department.

8. STANDARDIZATION, COOPERATWE PURCHASING, GOVERNMENTAL CONTRACTS
ANI)COMIPATJBILITY:

a. Where standardization is determined to he desirable by the Procurement Manager the
purchase of materials, supplies and equipment and certain contractual services may be
made by negotiation.

b. The Procurement Manager will have the authority tojoin with other units of governments
in cooperative purchasing ventures when the best interests of the County would be served

thereby.

c. Purchases in any amount may be made against established State of South Carolina
contracts without biddmg, provided they are in the best interest of the County.

d. Compatibil[ty to existing equipment shall be an acceptable justification for waiver of
bidding procedures provided the item meets the other criteria within the definition of a
sole source item (i.e., available form one source and only item that will produce the
desired results).

e. Justification for items submitted as "No Substitute" or "Sole Source" must be approved
by the County Administrator.

9. PURCHASE OF STATE OR FEDERAL SURPLUS PROPERTY:

The State Surplus Property Division has surplus property from state and federal agencies for sale to state
and loca' government agenc es. This surplus property may be seen at their warehouse on Boston Avenue
in West Columbia.

A purchase for surplus property from the State is handled the same as other vendor purchases. Such
purchases are exempt from competition. Upon receipt of an approved purchase requisition, Procurement
Services will process the purchase order. The vendor copy of the order is then sent to Central Warehouse

for pick up and delivery to the ordering department/division.

4

CONTRACTS

GENERAL:

Whenever required, the successful bidder shall promptly execute a formal contract to be approved as to its

26



form, tennis and conditions and signed by the proper authonty. V/hen required, such bidder shall also
execute and deliver to Procurement Services a good and sul cient perlorinance and/or payment bond in
the amount specified in the invitation to bid. Any bidder who has a contract awarded to him/her and who
fails to execute promptly and properly the reqtured contract and bond, shall forfeit his certified cheek or
an equivalent amount under his bid bond. Said amount shall be taken and considered as liquidated
damages. Award in this category may be made by a purchase order and as a part of award, the invitation
to bid and other supporting documents, if applicable, shall he an integral part, btit terms and conditions
stated on the purchase order shall rule in the event of conflict.

All contract bid forms and all contracts will he approved by the county attorney as to form and legality.
Following such approval, all contracts shall be signed in behalf of the county by the County

Purchasing Agent. A copy ofcach signed contract shall be filed with the Clerk to County Council and
the Director of Finance shall be notified of the terms of each contract.

2. TYPES OF CONTRACTS:

a. Definite-quantity contracts, whereby the contractor agrees to furnish a specified quantity of
supplies, materials or equipment at a specified time.

b. Indefinite-quantity contracts, wherehy the County agrees to obtain from the contractor all its
reqwremcnts for specified supplies, materials or equipment in an estimated but indeterminate
amount during a prescribed period of time at a definite unit price or at a specified discount from
list or posted prices.

e. Price agreements, wherehy the contractor agrees to supply the Countyrequirenients for items, such
as replacement parts for different makes of mechanical or automotive equipment during a
prescribed period of time and within a designated geographical area of the County at a definite unit
price or at a specified discount from list or posted prices.

d. Service Contracts, whereby the Contractor agrees to supply specified services and/or maintenance.

3. CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT:

In any of the following situations, the Procurement Manager has the right and may cancel the contract

a. The vendor fails to make delivery within the time specified in the contract.

b. The vendor fails to provide service when service is a part of the contract.

c. Any commodities or equipment delivered under the contract that are rejected and are not promptly
replaced by the vendor. If there are repeated rejections, the contract may be cancelled even though
the vendor offers to replace the items promptly.

d. The vendor agrees to cancellation.

e. The contract is obtained by fraud, collusion, conspiracy, orby any niethod which is in conflict with

27



statutory or constitutional provisions of the State of South Carolina.

4. TERM CONTRACTS:

Ihe objective ofthe multi-term contract is to promote economy and efficiency in procurement by obtaining
the benefits of sustained volume production and consequent low prices, and by increasing competitive
participation which involve special production with conscquent high start-up costs and in thc procurement
olservices which involve high stan-up costs or high phase-inlphase-out costs during changeover of service
contract. It is appropriate when it is in the best interest of the County to obtain uninterrupted services
extending over one fiscal year. The contractual obligation of both parties in each fiscal period succeeding
the first is subject to appropiiation and availability of funds thereof. The contract shall provide that, in the
event that funds are not available for any succeeding fiscal period, the remamder of the contract shall be
cancelled. 'total contract years should not exceed three consecutive contract years.

5. SOLICITATION FOR MULTI-TERM CONTRACT:

The solicitation must state:

a. The estimated amount of supplies or services required for the proposed contract period;

b. That a unit price shall be given for each supply or service, and that such unit price shall remain
constant throughout the contract period (except cost-plus contracts);

c That the contract will be cancelled only if funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available
to support continuation of performance in any fiscal period succeeding the first;

d. That the Procurement Manager must notify the contractor on a timely basis that the funds are, or
are not, available for the continuation of the contract for each succeeding fiscal period; and

e. How the award is going to be made.

5

CONTRACT ADMTNTSTRATION

1. GENERAL:

Contract administration begins with the signing or execution of a contract or purchase order. Its purpose
is to assure that the contractor's total performance is in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
contractual agreement.

28



2. NOTICE TO PROCEEI):

Issuance of a Notice-to-Proceed will normally he mailed within ten working days following acceptance
of the contact by both parties

3. PROCUREMENT RECORDS ANt) CHECKLIST:

Thc purchasing office is rcsponsible for maintaining all records relating to a contract. A record must be
established for a procurement transaction which has reached the solicitation stage. The record must contaul
as a minimum the descnption ofrequirements, sources solicited, method of evaluation and award, a signed
copy of the contract or purchase order, comments on vendor performance, and any other actions relating
to the procurement transaction. Each procurement becomes a public record and is subject to review by
auditors, special investigators, reports, and the general public after the transaction has been completed. A
procurement file should be a complete record that tells the why, who, what, when, where and how of the
procurement transaction. A contract check list should be developed for each contract that requires multiple
or schedule actions by the contractor during the contract period. The check list items should he developed
from thc contract and list the requirements, scheduled date, completed date and specific comments on
performance (ie. bonds, certificates of insurance, catalogs, copies of\varranties, volume reports, as-built
drawings, maintenance manuals, parts lists, maintenance, scheduled testing. etc.). This checklist will assist
the contract administrator to ensure the contractor fulfills the obligations of the contract.

4. CHANGE ORDERS:

The modification ofapurehase order or contract can only he authorized by the Procurement Manager. Any
request for change affecting price, quality, quantity, delivery or cancellation requires a thorough

written explanation by the agency prior to approval. A contractor shall not be notified that a change has
been approved until that change has been authorized by the Procurement Manager. A Purchase Order
Change Order is used to correct errors, to add or delete small quantities of goods, or to make other minor
adjustments in the original orders, and to cancel orders. Vendors who deviate from the requirements ofa
purchase order prior to receipt of an authorized change order do so at their own risk.

5. CANCELLATIONS OF PURCHASE ORDERS AND CONTRACTS:

No cancellation of purchase orders or contract may be made except in writing by the purchasing office
Purchase orders and contracts maybe canceled if the vendor fails to properly fulfill his obligation.

6. FOLLOW-UP AND EXPEDITING:

After issuance ofa contract award document, the purchasing office is responsible lbr initial follow-up and
expediting to assure that the services or goods are provided in accordance with the deliveiy date set forth.

7. LOST OR DAMAGED SHIPMENTS:

It is the responsibility of Central Stores/Warehouse and the receiving department to promptly inspect
deliveries for shipping damage. Damage should be reported to the Purchasing Office within one week of
receipt and prior to removal from the \arehouse i fpossible. It is difficult to fix responsibility for deliveries
once the goods have been moved to another location or when the inspection has not been made in a timely
manner.

29



8. INSPECTION, ACCEPTANCE, AND REJECTION OF GOODS OR SERVICES:

Inspection and Acceptance: Inspection is the close and critical examination of goods or services delivered
to determine conformance with applicable contract requirement or specifications. It includes the
determination that:

a. Unless otherwise specifically ordered, the delivery consists of new and unused merchandise

b. Goods or services of the quality, grade, or standard specified in the purchase order or contract have
been delivered.

c. The design, construction, ingredients, size, kind, type, make, color, style, etc of the commodities
conform to the requirements of the purchase order or contract.

d. The packaging and labeling, marking, or other means of identification meet specifications. Ihe
commodities comply with specifications requirements in all essential respects, are in good
condition, and delivery has been made in accordance with the terms and conditions of the purchase
order or contract.

9. REJECTION:

Rejection of goods or services is the responsibility of Procurement Services whenever the goods and
services do not meet contract requirements. In the event of a partial or total rejection, the Contract
Administrator must take immediate action to notil& the vendor as to the reasons for rejection and to
mutually agreeable replacement date.

10. COMPLAINTS:

Complaints andlor discrepancies on vendor performance must be reported in writing as they occur to
Procurement Services. These reports are necessary in order to develop vendor history, evaluate vendor
performance, and if required, to take appropriate and timely action.

11. INVOICE PROCESSING:

Invoices are verified for correctness in descnption and cost by Procurement Services and is processed for
payment upon receipt of an appropriate receiving document. As a general rule, partial payments arc not
approved. When a large purchase requires performance over an extended period of time, partial payments
may be approved once receipt of evidence indicating that the goods or services have been received. b
maintain good vendor relation ships and a competitive environment, invoices should be processedpromptly.

12. DEFAULT ACTIONS:

A contractor is considered in default if he fails to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract.
The following actions should be considered pnor to taking any default action:

a) the specific reasons for such failure;

b) the period of time needed to obtain the goods or services from other sources compared to the time

30



delivery could be completed by the delinquent supplier.

If it is determined that the contractor may he in default, a notice to cure letter shall be issued either orally
or in writing advising the supplier that the non-delivery or other non-conformance isa breach ofa contract;
and if not corrected within a stated number of days, Lexington County may terminate the contract and hold
the contractor liable for any excess costs. Upon expiration of the time penod stated in the letter or ui-al
agreement, if a satisfactory resolution has not been reached, repurchase action may be initiated. .A letter
shall then he sent to the delinquent supplier to recover the costs and require a check be sent, made payable
to the County of Lexington. ifrepayment ofexcess costs is requested, the supplier shall be suspended flow
the county vendor mailing list until repayment has been niade.

6

REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT

REPAIRS FOR EQUIPMENT COVERED BY SERVICE CONTRACTS OR WIThIN A
WARRANTY PERIOI):

Service calls for equipment that is covered by a service contract or within the warranty period may be
handled hy the using department/division with the exception of typewriterrepair service Should a vendor
need to pick up the equipment for an outside repair, documentation of pick up should he initiated
mdicating, county and serial number, make and model of item, date of pickup, vendor name and signature
of person picking up the item. The user department is responsible for follow up of repair until equipment
is returned to the County.

2. REPAIRS FOR EQUII'MENT NOT WITHIN WARRANTY OR NOT tINDER SERVICE
CONTRACT:

Service calls for repair of equipment not covered under a service contract or warranty may be made after
obtaining an emergency purchase order number from the Procurement Manager with follow up of
paperwork within five days of request. (See section on Emergency Purchases for repairs made after normal
working hours and weekends.)

Equipment that must be returned to the manufacturer or cannot be repaired on site must be handled as
fo] lows:

a. l'he standardpurchaserequisition form, [CF-I 22. mustbeprepared and forwarded to Procurement
Services. On the requisition, the name, make, model, sena] number and county ID number of the
item must be indicated, along with the nature ofthe repair needed, ifit is not evident. Ifrepair cost
is unknown, a "not to exceed" amount should be indicated as cost.

b. After the purchase order is issued, the vendor copy will be returned to the requisitioner. This copy
should be packaged with the equipment and forwarded with shipping instructions to Central

31



Stores/Warehouse ibr shipping as required.

c. If the vendor is to pick up the item from a county department or if an iteiri is to be hand delivered
by county personnel, the using department will be forwarded the vendor's copy of the purchase
order which will serve as a removal permit, and which will be given to die vendor.

NOTE: Upon receipt of the service, it is the user department's responsibility to sign the receiving report
at Central Stores/Warehouse and/or forward all signed delivery tickets or invoices to Central
Stores/Warehouse as receiving documentation. The actual date of receipt must be on this documentation.

3. REPAIR OF TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT:

A telephone that is not working properly should be reported as soon as possible to the PBX Operator (Dial
"0'). When reporting a telephone problem, the follosving information should be available:

-The extension number and location of the telephone being reported
-The nature of the problem

4. NEW TELEPHONE INSTALLATIONS:

New telephone installations and changes must be submitted to Procurement Services on a purchase
requisition form detailing the need. The Procurement Manager will obtain the cost and lead time from the
appropnate telephone company and place the order.

5. REPAIR OF COMPUTER EOIJIPMENT:

Computer equipment that is not functioning properly should be reported to the Information Services
Department. When reporting a computer equipment problem, the following information should be
available:

-Type of equipment
-Name and location
-Nature of the problem

6. MICROFiLM EQUIPMENT SERVICE CALLS:

Service calls for Microfilm equipment, whether under a current maintenance contract or not, must be
handled through the Microfilm Division of General Services. When reporting microfilm equipment
problems, the following information should be available.

-Name and location
-Nature of the problem
-Serial number and make of the machine
-Authorized budget code if not under contract

32



7

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
DISPOSAL AND SALE OF OBSOLETE ANTI SURPLUS PROPERTY

All departments and agencies shall submit to the Central Warehouse in written form a listing of all
supplies, materials and equipment which are no longer used or which have become obsolete, worn
out or scrapped. Surplus property includes all types ofproperty except land or other real property.
It embraces such items as hand and machine tools, office machines and supplies, hardware,
clothing, motor vehicles.! communication and electric equipment, and many other types of
categories ofexcess useable countycquipment. The Procurement Manager and InventoryManager
has the authority to transfer any such commodities which are usable to another department or
agency in lieu of filling requisitions for the purchase of new and additional stock of the same or
similar articles.

The Procurement Manager has the authority to sell all such supplies, materials and equipment
which cannot be used by any department or agency or which have been found not to be required
for public use; or to exchange or trade-in such articles in part or frill payment for new supplies,
materials or equipment of a similar nature. Any such sale, exchange or trade-in shall be made in
accordance with Article V Section 2-86 of the Lexington County Code of Ordinances. Sale may
be offered through competitive sealed bids, public auction and sold to the highest bidder. Property
that is turned in that is classified as waste and scrap will bc properly disposed of and recycled
whenever possible.

The Lexington County Sheriffs Department is responsible for the sale ofall confiscated equipment,
vehicles, bikes, etc., pursuant to applicable state law. However, upon request of the Sheriffs
Department, the Procurement Manager may sell such confiscated property during any auction sale
being sponsored by the county.

Public Sale of Surplus Property

If the value of the supplies, material or equipment is less than $5,000.00, the Procurement
Manager, in his/her sole discretion, may waive the competitive bidding requirements of Article V
Section 2-86 and may make such sale without calling for bids. Lexington County generates a fair
amount of surplus property, waste, and scrap. In an attempt to get a better return on investment
excess property may be sold to the general public.

This section outlines the procedures for the public sale ofsurplus propertywhich are no 'onger used
by the County or which have become obsolete, worn out or scrapped.

All surplus and obsolete property belonging to Lexington County will be turned in to Central
Stores. Property transferred into the warehouse will have a tag affixed to it with the date annotated

34



on it when it was received in the warehouse.

Property will be closely evaluated and any surplus or obsolete property received in good serviceable
condition will be kept for reissue to County agencies. County agencies 'will be notified of
availability via e-mail. Whenever possible, surplus property that is excess to one activity may be
reassigned or sold to another activity. (For purposes ofthese procedures, an activity will include
all countydepartments, agencies, elected officials, or any other entity\vith county property assigned
to it.) Typically, there will be no charge for surplus property reissued to county activities within
the same find. (Conversely there will be a charge for property reissued to a different fund.)

Property that will be sold to the general public will meet the following guidelines:

• Property that is outdated and no longer used by County agencies.
• Property that is broken, scratched, or damaged that would not be suitable for reissue.
• property that has no obvious use by County agencies.
• Property that has remained in the warehouse longer than six months with no apparent use

to anyone.

The Procurement Manager and the linventory Manager will meet as needed to determine what price
will be placed on items for sale. Prices paid for similar items purchased from the State Surplus
Office maybe used as a guide.

Notice ofPublic Sale will be posted on the County Web Page.

No discounts will be allowed after an item has been priced. lfpublie sale items do not sell it 'ill
be placed in the annual auction for sale.

Customers will be issued a County of Lexington official receipt and the revenues will be sent to
the treasurer's office and deposited in Surplus Sales, account //1000-00000-43 8902.

Policy approved for implementation on December 3, 1999.

35



8

ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION OF CONTROVERSIES

The followmg procedures are pursuant to Article V Purchasing Regulations, Section 2-80, paragraphs 13 and 14
of the Code of Ordinances for the County of Lexington.

AUTHORITY TO RESOLVE PROTESTED SOLICITATIONS AND AWARDS

Right to Protest. Any prospective bidder, offeror, or contractor, who is aggrieved m connection with the
solicitation of a contract shall protest to the procurement manager in the manner stated below within ten
calendar days of the date of issuance of the Invitation for Bids or Requests! for Proposals or other
solicitation documents, whichever is applicable, or any amendment thereto, if the amendment is at issue.

Any actual bidder, offeror, or contractor, who is aggrieved inconnection with the intended award or award
of a contract shall protest to the procurement manager inthe manner stated below within ten calendar days
of the date of notification of award.

2. Protest Procedure. A protest shall be in writing, submitted to the procurement manager, and shall set forth
the grounds of the protest with enough particularity to give notice of the issues to be decided.

3. Duty to Attempt to Settle Protests. Prior to commencement of an administrative review as provided in
paragraph 4, the procurement manager, or designee, shall attempt to settle by mutual agreement a protest
of an aggrieved bidder, offeior, or contractor, actual or prospective, concerning the solicitation or award
of the contract. The Procurement Officer may be required to submit a recommendation to County Council
for review and approval.

4. Administrative Review and Decision. If in the opinion of the procurement manager, after reasonable
attempt, a protest cannot be settled by mutual agreement, the procurement manager shall promptly conduct
an administrative review and shall issue a decision in writing withm ten calendar days of completion of the
review. The decision shall state the reasons for the action taken. A copy of the decision along with a
statement of appeal rights shall be mailed or otherwise furnished immediately to the protestant and any
other party intervening. The decision shall be final and conclusive, unless fraudulent, or unless any person
adversely affected by the decision requests a further administrative review by the Procurement Review
Panel within ten calendar days of posting of the decision. The request for review shall be directed to the
procurement manager, who shall forward the request to the County Administrator and shall be in writing,
setting forth the reasons why the person disagrees with the decision of the procurement manager. The
recommendation of the Procurement Review Panel will be submitted to County Council for approval.

5. Stay of Procurement During Protests. In the event of a timely protest under paragraph 1 above, the
County shall not proceed further with the solicitation of award of the contract until a decision is rendered
by the procurement manager, or in the event of a timely appeal to the Procurement Review Panel, until a
decision is rendered by the County Council; provided, however, that solicitation or award of a protested
contract will not be stayed if the procurement manager makes a written determination that the solicitation
or award of the contract without delay is necessary to protect the best interests of the County.

36



II. AUTHORITY TO DEBAR OR SUSPEND

Authority. After reasonable notice to the person or firm invo'ved, and a reasonable opportunity for such
person or firm to be heard, the procurement manager shall have the authority to debar a person for cause
from consideration for award of contracts, provided that doing so is in the best interest of the County and
there is probable cause for debarment. The procurement manager may also suspend a person or firm from
consideration for award of contracts during an investigation where there is probable cause for debarment.
The period of debarment or suspension shall be as prescribed by the procurement manager.

2. Causes for Debarment or Suspension. The causes for debarment or suspension shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

(a) conviction for commission ofa criminal offense as an incident to obtaining or atteniptrng to obtain
a public or private contract or subcontract, or in the performance of such contract or subcontract;

(b) conviction under state or federal statutes of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bnbery, falsification or
destruction of records, receiving stolen property, or any other offense indicating a lack ofbusiness
integrity or professional honesty which currently, seriously, and directly affects responsibility as
a county contractor;

(c) conviction under state or federal antitrust laws arising out of the submission of bids or proposals;
(d) violation of contract provisions, as set forth below, of a character which is regarded by the

procurement manager to be so serious as to justify debarment action:
(i) deliberate ffiilure without good cause to perform in accordance with the specifications

within the time limit provided in the contract; or
(ii) a recent record of failure to perform or of unsatisfactory perfonnance in accordance with

the terms of one or more contracts; provided, that failure to perform or unsatisfactory
performance caused by acts beyond the control of the contract shall not he considered to
be a basis for debaniient;

(e) violation of an order of the Procurement Review Panel; and
U) any other cause the procurement manager determines to be so serious and compelling as to affect

responsibility as a county contractor, including debarment by another governmental entity for any
cause listed herein

3. Decision. The procurement manager shall issue a written decision to debar or suspend within ten calendar
days of the completion of the administrative review of the matter. The decision shall state the action taken,
the specific reasons therefore, and the period of debarment or suspension, if any. A copy of the decision
and a statement of appeal rights shall be mailed or otherwise furnished immediately to the debarred or
suspended person and any other party intervening. [he decision shall be final and conclusive, unless
fraudulent, or unless any person adversely affected by the decision requests a further administrative review
by the Procurement Review Panel within ten calendar days of posting of the decision. The request for
ieview shall be directed to the procurement manager, who shall forward the request to the County
Administrator and shall be in writing, setting forth the reasons why the person disagrees with the decision
of the procurement manager. The decision of the Procurement Review Panel is final.



III. FRIVOLOUS PROTESTS

Signature on Protest Constitutes Certificate. The signature of an attorney or party on a request for
review, protest, motion, or other document constitutes a certificate by the signer that the signer has read
such document, that to the best of the signer's knowledge, information, and belief formed after reasonable
inquiry, it is wefl grounded in fact and is warranted by existing law or a good faith argument for the
extension, modification, or reversal of existing law, and that it is not interposed fbr any improper purpose,
such as to harass, limit competition, or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the
procurement or of the litigation.

2. Sanctions for Violation. If a request for review, protest, pleading, motion, or other document is signed
in violation of this section on or after appeal to the Procurement Review Panel, the Procurement Review
Panel, upon motion or upon it's own initiative, may impose upon the person who signed it, a represented
party, or both, an appropriale sanction, which may include an order to pay to the other party or parties the
amount of the reasonable expenses incurred because of the filing of the protest, pleading, motion, or other
paper, including a reasonabie attorney's fee.



COIJNTY OF LEXINGTON

PROCUREMENT SERVICES

DIRECTORY

Sheila R. Fulmer, CPPB
Procurement Manager 359-8166

Janice Bell, CPPB
Procurement Officer 359-8385

Donna Harris, CPPB
Procurement Officer 359-8319

Marie [-lildebrand
Procurement Clerk HI 359-8165

Debbie Mayo
Procurement Clerk H 808-2127

Rebecca Rieard
Procurement Clerk 1 359-8107

May 16, 2000



MEMORAN DUM

March 14, 2005

TO: County Council

FROM: Dot Black
Assistant to Council

RE: Ms. Alla Zurakhov

Ms. Zurakhov contacted this office several weeks ago about her ambulance bill. She thdicatcd that
her insurance company paid only a portion of the bill because Lexington County is not in the
'network." Lexington Co anty is not in any "Preferred Provider Network" because this is emergency

medical service.

Ms. Zurakhov relayed to me that because of other medical expenses she is unable to pay the
remaining portion. I asked that she contact Low Country Billing to try to work out a payment plan.
I do not know if she contacted Low Country.



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

interoffice
MEMORANDUM

to: Count>' Council

from: Evelyn Babbitt, Manager of Grants Administration

subject: EMS Grant-In--Aid Program (DUI Funds) - FY2006

date: March 15, 2005

The Department of Public Safety (EMS) is requesting your approval to apply for agrant
froni the SC Department ol l-lealth& Environmental Control (DHEC) utilizing funds
generated from Dlii hinds. Funds may be utilized to purchase training materials that
relate to CISD programs, Dispatcher training and Public Information and Education
Resources (P[ER)/injury Prevention activities. Each region is allocated $11,000.00 which
we will receive a portion of and will be based on a 94.5% state / 5.5% local county cash
match for a period of one year.

The county match would he up to $605.00. There are no personnel costs ifindedby this
grant.



DHEC
PROMOTE PROTECT PROSPER
2600 Bull Street February 28, 2005
Columbia, SC 29201-1703

MEMORANDUM

TO: Licensed Ambulance Service Directors
County Administrators

- Regional EMS Offices /
FROM: Alonzo W. Smith, Director I

Emergency Medical Servics/

SUBJECT: EMS Grant-in-Aid Program (DUI FUNDS)- FY2006

Please read and carefully review the forms and guidelines required to complete the application for
EMS funding utilizing fund generated from DUT funds. These are competitive grants. Each
region has been allocated $11,000.00. The grants will be based on a 94.5% state! 5.5% local cash
match and the contract will be awarded for one year.

The procedure will be for the ambulance services to complete the application and send it to the
county for review and approval following the guidelines. As soon as the county completes the
approval process, it will send the application to its regional office for review by March 31, 2005.
The Regional EMS board/council will submit their recommendations, in priority order, to the State
Grant-in Aid committee by April 15, 2005. The State GM committee will review the grants, in
priority order, and make a recommendation for approval to the State EMS Advisory Counail: Contracts
will be awarded after Advisory Council approval.

Priority emphasis should be placedon CISD programs,Dispatcher training and Public Jnfornation nd- I — . —

-,2- -As- '- —° - 'r?t'Y 'r '
trainin' materials that are directl7related tothese projects STraining materials include'textbooksrtJ.s;>-:. —--,. -

handoits, promotional items (buttons, coloring books; pens, peniIs and brochures);slides ánth
workbooks -

r —

Secondar prioritçshouid'be,piaced on the other terhs lis
(DUT Generated) Replademnttof ttdms for fair wear and

Let's make the 7th year of the GIA competitive grant-in-aid funding a
competitive, quality applications for sighificant EMS improvements.

AWS:sbw

Enclosure(s)

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL



GIA Procedural Guidelines (DUE Generated)

I. Appropriate/divide the monies equally among the EMS regions for disbursement to
successiful applicants within county or multi county applicants.

2. Licensed ambulance providers, who provide emergency service, are invited to submit
competitive applications for selection and approval by each EMS region.

3. The regional council should give priority, in the review process, to multi county or
individual projects to any of the following:

CISD programs
b. Dispatcher training and the related textbook(s)/workbook(s)
e. Public Information and Education Resources (PIER)/tnjuiy Prevention

activities and materials
Secondary priority should be given to any other item(s) listed on the List of
Eligible Items (D1JI Generated).

4. Regional EMS boards/councils submit their recommendations, in priority order to the state
Grant-Tn-Aid committee for their review and approval. The regions first priority
recommendation will be approved or dithpproved by the committee. If the fist
application is denied, it will not be considered at this time. The GLA committee will
review the remaining recoirimendations in priority ordè of that region.

5. Contracts will be awarded after Advisory Council approval.

6. Application deadline: due to regional office(s) March 31", due to the Grant-In-aid
committee by April 15th.

AI t' '?-ct
C . .l

DI-TEC/EMS/02/05



FY06 Grant-In-Aid Funds (DUI Generated)
List of Eligible Items

The regional council should give priority, in the review process, to multi county or
individual projects to any of the following

1. Critical Incident Stress Debriefing (CISD) Training
2. Emergency Medical Dispatch programs
3. Public Information and Education Program/Injury Prevention

Secdndary priority should be given to any other item(s) listed on the List of Eligible
Items (below)

Equipment (These items cannot replace existing equipment)

2.
3.
4.

7.

8.

2. Tuition for refresher training of Basic, Intermediate or Paramedic training.

1. Patient Care çquipment with a cost of $100 or greater and a life of 1 year

Emergency mbulances.

or greater.
UHFNHF radios in accordance to EMS communication plan.

Computer(s), printer(s) and software.
5. Trairiingequinicnt to include audio visuals.

Durable equipment required by OSI-JA.

6. 800 MHZ radios according to an approved county plan on file in the EMS office.

EMS share of computer aided dispatch equipment.
Rescue Trucks andlor rescue equipment.
Quick Response Vehicles.
1 2-Lead EKG.

9.
10.

11.
12. Auto tiiatic External Defibrillator (A ED).
13 . Global Pdsitioning System Navigator (UPS). . .., ., ....- 34 F . 'c; ,' .' -. - - -- -

1$ Automatic Ventilators
r

-

15
&

Disaskr/Spccil Purpose Trailers trailers Ieqwre substantial justiiie4ation
- -..--- -'O . -Justilication rnayQincludea multi-county plarr.dcpendmg.upon county;size. '

.

Rcqw 6djustifiation \\dl include in!ormatioi on geogr iphtcal arLa
population and other pdrtinent information. .

H . -
H :

- 1traini' t -- -- . -
'4..

-' 'lraining

Tuition and exaiinatiOn fees for initial training for Basic. lntemicdide or
Paraniedid



3. Training programs that result in a certification (i.e.,ACJS, BTLS, PUlLS, CTC,
PALS, PPLS, Energency Medical Dispatch (EMD) prograrn(s,') Pediatric EMS
Training Program (PEMSTP), and HAZMAT Medical Training.

4. Specialty Training Programs: emergency vehicle operator course, critical incident
stress debriefing, extrication courses such as: confined space, crash victim
extrication, high angle rescue, trench safety, Weapons of Mass Destruction and
Tactical Medical training. Prior approval is necessary if not listed. Each course
curriculum must meet state standards. Travel expenses for specialty training
programs, which are not available within the region are allowabJe as long as they
are in accordance with the SC state travel guidelines.

5. Public Information and Education programs that stress injury prevention apd
public access. Public relations is not eligible. Public Information Education and
Rclations(PIER) Training.

6. EMT transitional course for all levels.
7. Initial Training df First Responders (i.e. course and earnination) that resuitsin

National Registry certification.
8 Textbooks (sets or kits) valued at least $100, and instructor manuals for the

abdve listedpthjraths (items 1-7).

The EMS teiôns will give a quarterly report on training plars and activities.

Pil6tPrOjects

Pilotprojects require substantial justification and can only be approved on an individual,
basis

Cellular radios not part of a county plan :

GIA funds can bE utilized for construction/capital outlay under certain
conditions For example, adding a clasroom to an easting building or a
subtatin I

1.
2.

DHEC/EMS/02/o5



Dl-l [C/EM S/02/O5

3. Training programs that result iii a certification (i.c.,ACLS, JUES, PJ-ITLS, CTC,
PALS, PPLS, Emergency Medical Dispaich (Ei'vID) program(s,) Pediatric EMS
Training Program (PEMSTP), and HAZMAT Medical Training.

4. Specialty Training Programs: emergency vehicle operator course, critical incident
stress debriefing, extrication courses such as: confined space, crash victim
extrication, high angle rescue, trench safety, Weapons of Mass Destruction and
Tactical Medical training. Prior approval is necessary if not listed. Each course
curriculum must meet state standards. Travel expenses for specialty training
programs, which are not available within the region are allowable as long as they
are in accordance with the SC state travel guidelines.

5. Public Information and Education programs that stress injury prevention and --
public access. Public relations is not eligible. Public Information Education and
Relations(PIER) Training.

6. EM!' transitional course for all levels.
7. Initial Training of First Responders (i.e. course and examination) that results in

National Registry certification.
S. Tektbooks (ets or kits) valued at least $100, and instructor manuals for the

aboVe listed programs (items 1-7).

*The EMS reions wilt give a quarterly report on training plans and activities.

Pilot PrOjects -

Pilot projects require substantial justification and can only be approved on an individual
basis:

1. Cellular thdios not part of a county plan;
2 GIA funds cap be utilized for construction/capita! outlay under certain

conditions. [or example, adding a classroom to an existing building or a
substhtion.

.
.

.

3 Jter not Fisted can tie considered Pridrapproal is necesar- r
4

•'.I

— c ,

1'



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
FINANCE DEPARTMENT

interoffice
MEMORANDUM

to: County Council

from: Evelyn Babbitt, Manager ofGrants Administration

subject: SC Office of Rural Health (SCORH) Grant - FY2005

date: March 15, 2005

The Department of Public Safety (EMS) is requesting your approval to receive 1
Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) from the SC Office of Rural Health (SCORH).
SCORH will purchase the defibrillator and there is no cost to the county. We must apply
for this defibrillator by March 25, 2005.



South Carolina Office of Rural Health
220 Stoncridge Drive Suite 402 Columbia, SC 292-W01 S

Phone 803.771.2810• Fax 803.77L42!3 EmaUA/
Tk- ,'ne5 j

Mnich3,200 /49— ')OYc
-,-, s$t7 '*7

Dcar County Administrator:

The South Carolina Office of Rural Health (SCORH) is pleased to announce thatyour
county, Lexington, is eligible to receive I Automatic External Defibrillators (AED) as
part of the 2004-2005 South Carolina Rural Access to Emergency Devices (SCRAED)
grant program. Last year, the SCORH distributed 173 AEDs in 43 rural South Carolina
con ntics to help save lives. AEDs provide early defibrillation and shock the heart in
coordination with CPR to help sudden cardiac arrest victims have a greater chance for
survival until they reach the hospital.

SCORN applied for continued funding to the Rural Access to Emergency Devices
program and secured 129 AEDs for South Carolina. Our statewide Drogram partners
include the American Heart Association, the American Red Cross, the South Carolina
EMS Association, SC DHEC EMS Division, South Carolina counties, and rural EMS
providers in the state. As stated in your Memorandum of Agreement, your county is
responsible for providing all training for AED users. AED training devices arc available
for use, free of charge, from your regional EMS training center, American Heart
Association, or the American Red Cross.

In order to effectively and efficiently place new AED machines in rural South Carolina
counties, the SCORH needs your help to coordinate placement. The SCORH encourages
Al:D placement with first responders in your county that have not yet received an AED.
Enclosed you will find a required placement form and medical direction statement for
each AFt) your county will receive. Please complete and return the enclosed documents
by March 25, 2005 for each potential AED in your county.

Distribution of MD machines will occur on Thursday, April 14, 2005 at the EMS
Symposium in Myrtle Beach. The luncheon meeting \vill begin at noon and conclude
by 1:30 p.m. Two designated officials from your county are required to attend this
meeting to learn more about the SCRAED program and the reporting requirements for
the FY 2004 grant year. They can then pick up your county's AED machines. AEDs will
not be shipped and each county must have a representative at the meeting. Failure to
pick up your AEDs within two (2) weeks after distribution will result in forfeit of the
AEDs. Thank you for your interest in the SCRAED program. All documents must be
returned to the SCORH by 3:00 p.m., March 25, 2005 to be included in the SCRAED
program.

Sincerely,

\Q Let*
jne R. Cook

Enclosure

Cc: County EMS Director (letter only)



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
FiNANCE DEPARTMENT

interoffice
M E M 0 R A N 0 U M

to: County Council

from: Evelyn Babbitt, Manager of Grants Administration

subject: Grant from Department of Homeland Security, Assistance to Firefighter and
Safer Grant

date: March 15, 2005

The Department of Public Safety is requesting your approval to apply for five different
grant applications to the Department of Homeland Security Assistance to Firefighters.
The five grants for fire service in Lexington County, Fairview, Sandy Run, Swansea, and
Edmund are in the total amount of $1,120,040.00 with a grant match of$199,504.00.
These grants are for equipment only and no additional personnel are being funded.



County of Lexington DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
212 South Lake Drive• Lexington, South Carolina 29072
TELEPHONE: (803) 359-8141 FAX (803) 359-8589

NIEMORANI)IJM

To:

From:

March 15, 2005

Department Ikiuipment Grant Amount Grant Match

Lexington Co Fire Service SCBA Replacement System $875,000 $175,000

Breathing Air Compressor
Thermal Imaging Camera
Personal Protective Equipment

76,830 7,683

Sandy Run Cargo '[railer
Rescue Equipment

80,900 8,090

Thermal Imaging Camera

Rescue Equipment
Personnel Protective Equipment

15,000 1,500

72,310 7,231

TOTAl.. $1,120,040 5199.504

liwe are sucecsslbl in receiving the grants the recommended lhnding for the matching portion is:

S 175,000 for the SCBA replacement program - Included in the FY 05-06 Fire Service requested budget.
$24,504 Miscellaneous fire equipment for Fainiew, Sandy Run, Swansea, and Edmund Fire
Departments - The Fire Service Capital Contingency Account (1000-131599-549904)

lfyou have any questions, please let me know.

Q1YLSIONS: COMMUNICATIONS — EMERGENCY MEDICAL — EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS — FIRE

Art Brooks, County Administrator
Chief Tim James, Director of Public Safety

Russell Rawl
Fire Service Coordinator

Reference: Assistance to Firefighter and Safer Grant

'[he Department of Homeland Security Assistance to Firefighter and Safer Grant has announced that it will
be accepting grants applications from the local tire departments beginning March 7, 2005. The deadline
ICr applying ICr these grants is 5:00 PM, April 8, 2005. l'hc Lexington County Fire Service as well as four
Fire Departments within the service would like to submit grant applications. They are as follows:

GRANT REOUESTS

Fairview

Swansea

Edmund



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Grant Request
Capital Item Summary
Fiscal Year - 2005-2006

Fund# 1000
Organization # 131500

Program

Fund Title. General
Organization Title: Fire ScMce

Program Title: - —
BUDGET
2005-06

Requested

Qty Item Description Amount

250 Self Contained Breathing Apparatus 875,000

Grant Request

Grant Match

700,000

175,000

k* Total Capital 175,000



Fund # 1000

Organization # 131 500

Program #

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Grant Request - Fairview
Capital Item Summary
Fiscal Year - 2005-2006

Fund Title General
Organization Title Fire Service

Program Title: -—

B UDGET
2005-06

Req nested

Oty Item Description Amount

I Breathing Air Compressor 40,00t)

I Thermal Inaging Camera 14,000

I Personal Protective Equipment 19,820

I [raining

Total

Grant

Grant

Request

Match

3.000

76,830

69,147

7,683

** Total Capital 7,683



llARee4—21a05 S5L AM rnxRvxEw FIRE DEPT. B?3G94e39 P.02

i- FAiRVIEW FIRE DEPARTMENT
LEXINGTON COUNnr FIRE SERVICE __

29O7FAJRWEwRa4D
LEESVILLE,S.C. 29070 e2Jse

J>/f<)p(J S1/%I'I()('J I 1 frA.3C so:s-sc-issss

Attention County Of Lexington Nlarch 4.2005

Pairview Fire Department is purs.i,iing a FEMA grant this year for some various fire fightingequipment Weare looking to add a SCBA cascade compressor and storage system to our station. At this time the closest
compressor is fifteen miles away and the next is twenty two. The cost to purchase this system will be
around SAQ.L0ftflQ...we also wish to purchase a Thermal imaging camera to better enable us to locate
victims anti the heaviest areas of fire within structures. The camera will cost around $14,000.00. These
two products are made by SCOfl. The department is also requesting severn! proteetivt equipment items,
Personal Alert Safety Systems that will emit a high pitched tone if a firefighter becomes immobile ftir a
period of time. The total cost of these items would be around $i2QQQQfor fourteen PASS devices. The
department also wishes to equip all of our members with Wildland the fighting gear to include pants, coat,
and boots for a total cost f $ 15.900.00. Lastly a laptop computer for delivering power point fire and
apparatus training to the fire fighters at a cost of total grant requested is approximately
$ 75,600.00. Fairview Fin Department is requesting that Lexington County pay the matching ftmds part of
the grant, which should be around ten percent of the total grant awarded. This equipment would, benefit the
members of Fairview Fire Department, the County Emergency Services and the public we serve.

Thank You,
ChiefStanlev

Fajn'jew Fire axtinent



MAR—4--20I85 12:49 PM FAIRVIEW FIRE DEPT. 0030913830 P.04
Icequest vetaiI Page 1 @11

Request Detalla

The sctivitie for program Operations and Safety are listed in the table below.

AcUvty Number of Entries Total Cost Additional Furidin9 Action

Equipment 2 $ 54.000 $ 0 Icna Fu_nding

Modify FacilWes 0 $0 $0 View Details

PerE;onal Protectivo Equipment 3 $ 19830 $0
Funcing

Training I $ 3000 $0 View Details
Weliness and Fitness Programs 0 $0 $ 0 View Details

https://portal.femagov/firegrant/jsp/fire200S/applicationlrequestdetails/activitySummaiy.js.,, 3/14/2005



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Grant Request - Sandy Run

Capital Item Summary
Fiscal Year - 2005-2006

Fund # 1000

Organization /1131500

Program #

Fund Title: General
Organization Title: Fire Service

Program Title ______________

Qty item Description Amount

1 Cargo Trailer 7,403

I High Angle, Confined Space Trench Rescue Equipment 20,442

I Air Bags, Rescue Equipment 53,055

Total 80,900

Grant Request 72,810

Grant Match 8,090

** Total Capital - - 8,090

BUDGET
2005 -06

Requested



flaR—c3T—20C35 32:45 PtI SuncLi Run Pr e Stat p on 8035532425 P.01

Lexington County Fire Service
Station 18 Sandy Run FD.

To: Chief Russell Rawl

From Chief: Charles Rucker
Station 18 Sandy Run Fire Department

Ref: 1090 Fema Grant

Chief; Russell Rawl

Here is the information that you request for applying for the 1090 Ferna grant The
following is a list of items and prices are as follows:

Description Price

S' X 24' Cargo frailer, to carry equipment. $ 7402.50

High angle ,Rescue kit, and Confined, space rigging kit, and $ 20,441.78
basic 12 Trench rescue kit.

Rescue Equipment, Rams, Air bags, Moe 2, Hoses and electric $53,055.00
Hoses reels ,Command console, transformer ect,

Total S R0,899.28

Sign Chief Charles Rucker

Cc: AJO Crider



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Grant Request - Swansea

Capital Item Summary
Fiscal Year - 2005-2006

Fund # 1000
Organization # 131500
Program #

Fund Title: General
Organization Title: Fire Service

Program Title:________________

Qty Item Description Amount

I Thermal Imaging Camera 15,000

Grant Request 13,500

Grant Match 1,500

k* Total Capital 1,500

BUDGET
2005-06

Requested



• MAR7 14- 2O5 12132 PM SWANSEA I' T RE DEPARTMENT Sfl 705 3611 P • 03

Firyuj2htln Equipment Acquisition

1. The Project that we are requesting to be funded:

The Swansea Fire Department is requesting funding under the Firetighting equipment acquisition to
purchase a thermal imaging camera. This camera will aid In safer. quicker, and easier accomplishment cf
rescues, and firefighting operations.

II. Budget detailt [or the acquisition ota Thermal Imaging Camera:

The funds requested under this Grant WOLLId be used to purchase one thermal imaging camera with a total
purchase price of S 1462] .64. A breakdn'.n of this total is as follows

1 Rullard T3MAXIRED Thermal Imaging Camera $ 10,400.00
1 Bollard T3 Powerhouse tnick mounted charging system $468.00

Builard TSRETRAC'I' Retractable Strap $ 36,00
Bullard T3TRANSONLY2 T3 Pistol grip-Transmitter 2 Charnel S 1,248.00
Bullard ML2 Mobile Link receiver, 2 charuiel $ 1.560,00

1 Ballard T3NIMI-{ Rechargable Battery, 10 Volt S 8200

Subtotal 13,794.00
Sales Tax S 827.64

Total $ 14,621.74

III. Finanelal need of the department

The reason that we need to apply for a grant to purchase this equipment is we will only receive $ 9,000.00
for operatina expenses, treflQhter retention, fire prevention materials, drill night suppers. furninire
replacement, and $ 1,000.00 for firefightirig equipment each year from the county budget. We have a
number of small businesses, and three manufacturing thcilities, in our immediate response area.

IV. How the community will benefit from this equipment;

Swansea is a small rural town sith a population of approximately 550. The population of ow' immediate
response area is approximately 10,000. Swansea is located in the southern part of Lexington County,
population 206,014. Swansea is adjacent to the northern part of Orangeburg County. population 91,582,
and is also located within 2 miles of Calhoun County, population 15,185.

Even though the population of the Town of Swansea is approximately 550, the immediate outlying area
outside of the town limits ore heavily populated by residential on site built homes. and mobile homes.

Swansea Fire Deparunent has mutual aid agreements with fire departments in Orangeburg County, and
Calhoun County. We typically respond to incidents with stations located in lexington County including
departments in the Town of Gaston, and the Town of Pelion. We also respond with rural stations in
Lexington County including the Sandy Run Fire Department, Mack Edisto Fire Department, and the
Edmund Fire Department. There are several schools in our immediate response area These schools are'
Swansea Nigh School, Swansea Prima School, Swansea Intermediate School. and Swansea Blemeanry
School. We would also respond second in to Sandhills Middle School with the Gaston Fire Dcparlment
There are also general merchandise stores, gas stations, day cares, and three manufacturing facilities in our
response are'a Manufacturing facilities include: Nucor Building Systems, Taimer Industhes, and American
Tool and Die. Also there am two apartment contplexes in the Town of Swansea,



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

Grant Request - Edmund

Capital Item Summary
Fiscal Year - 2005-2006

Fund # 1000
Organization /1131500
Program #

Find Title: Generni
Organization Tide: Fire Service

Program Title:______________
BUDGET
2005-06

Requested

Qty Item Description Amount

Rescue Equipment 60,860

Personal Protection EquLpment 11,450

Total 72,310

Grant Request 65,079

Grant Match 7,231

Total Capital 7,231



hur-e4—2eo5 12:51 PM EDNIUN FD O37559GG9

Oh ef:

Edmund Fire Department is planning to submit a grant to FEMA / Homeland Security.
We have gotten some prehminary prices for the equipment we are planning to purchase
with the grant money f awarded. It includes rescue equipment for extrication such as
arbaq systems spreaders cutters, rams, etc. Also PASS devices, rescue saw, throw
bags with rope. Our estimated price from quotes received is approximately $87 00000,

Respectively Submitted

Jarnie Head



rInR—14—2e05 e2:34 PM EDMUND Ffl 8037559669 p•e

_________________________ ________ Total

_______ _____________________________ _________ 2500

________ _______________________________ __________ 7700

_________ 7400

_______ _____________________________ _________ 5300

_____________________________ _______ _____________________________ _________ 2932

_______________ ____ _______________ _____ 3400

_______________________________ __________ _______________________________ __________ 8400

_______________________________ __________ _______________________________ __________ 4600

_____________ _________________ idao
_____________________________ _________ _____________________________ _________ 5285

_____________________________ _________ _____________________________ _________ 5966

___________________________ ________ ___________________________ ________ 1025_________ ___ 1500

___________________________ ________ ___________________________ ________ 2000

___________________________ ________ ___________________________ ________ 1850

_____________________________ _________ _____________________________ _________ 5200

_____________________________ _________ _____________________________ _________ 6250

Total Request Amount I I 723101

Ths is the equipment and prices of the equipment Edmund Fire Department is going to request through
grant money from FEMA I Homeland Security. Quotes where collected with slightly higher prices than what
the equipment would cost If it were purchased today to allow for inflation,

Equipment Requested Quantity Dsscriptlon Price/Unit
Power Saw : 1 K1250 2500

Extrication Tools — I Duo Power Unit 7703

Extrication Tools 1 Spreaders 7400

Extrrcation Tools 1 0 Cutters 5300

Extrication Tools I Rams 14' extends to 26' 2932
Exthcation Tools — 1 Rams 25' extends to 50" 3400
Extrication Tools 1 Low Pressure Air Bags 8400
Extrication Tools 2 100' Hoses 2300
Extncation Tools 2 Hose Sects comes included in hoses above
Extilcation Tools I Air Bag Controller 1000
Extrication Tools I Set of Cribbing 5285
Extrication Tools 2 Stabilizer Kfts 2965
Extrication tools 1 Ram extension kit 1025
PPV Fan I Electric — 1500
PPV Fan I Gas Powered 2000
Rh Pack I With misc. tools 1850
PASS Alarms 20 Super Pass II 260
Forestry Gear 25 Coats, and Pants 250

Jamie Head



DATE:

TO:

FROM:

RE:

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

MEMORANDUM

March 14, 2005

Art Brooks, County Administrator

John Fechtel, Public Works Director
Asst. County Administrator

$75,000 School Road Request "C" Funds

School District 2 has requested up to $75,000.00 from our "C" Fund School
Road allocation for partial reimbursement towards paving a portion of Taylor
Road (a county maintained road), which was under construction during F'! 2003-
04. This is the second request we have received from a school district during that
fiscal year. Council approved $17,500.00 in resurfacing funds for School District
5 in F'! 2003-04, leaving an available balance of $57,500.00.

Based on our current policy, we budget $75,000.00 annually for school road
improvement projects. This $75,000.00 is allocated equaily, in most cases,
depending on the amount. Example: Three malor road improvement projects for
schools in a fiscal year, divide $75,000.00 by three (3) or $25,000.00 each.

Based on the $1 7,500.00 being committed to School District 5, School District 2
is eligible for a $57,500.00 reimbursement for improvements on Taylor Road for
F'! 2003-04.

School District 2 has also submitted
road at this school) for FY 2004-05.
be made at the end of May when all

a similar request for Bulldog Lane (another
The recommendations for this fiscal year will
requests are in

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LEXINGTON SOUTH CAROLINA 29072 • (803) 359-8201



9



LEXINGTON COUTTY SCHOOL DISTRICT Two

February 7, 2005

Mr. John Fechtel
Director of Public Works
County of Lexington
440 Ballpark Road
Lexington, South Carolina 29072

Dear John:

As you are aware we are building a new middle school on the Twelfth Street Extension.
As part of this project we are required to pave and upgrade Taylor Road. We also will
have to install an access road from Taylor Road to our property.

At this time, we would like to respectfully rcqucst up to $75,000 in C-funds for the
2003-04 fiscal year for the paving of the acccss road from Taylor Road to our property.

If you need additional information, please contact Mr. David Loadholt at telephone
739-4074.

Sinc ely,

Barry F. olen
Superint'endent

/ar
David T. Loactholt

715 Ninth Street • \Vest Columbia. South Carolina 29169

Telephone (803) 739-8399 • Fax (803) 739-4063



DATE:

TO:

FROM:

RE:

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

MEMORANDUM

March 14, 2005

Art Brooks, County Administrator

John Fechtel, Public Works Directorç
Asst. County Administ?Mor

"C" Fund Bond Alternative

Attached is a memo to County Council Members, which is an alternative to the
prior bond discussions. Councilman Owens addresses the bond from three (3)
standpoints. First, the projects committed to in Council District 1 and 2 would be
funded in total. Secondly, the bond proceeds not committed to Council Districts
1 and 2 would be spilt seven (7) ways or each district receiving $747,423.00 to
use in their respective districts. Thirdly, the funds not needed to pay back the
bond (1,200.000.00) would be divided by nine (9) or each district receiving
$133,000.00 annually.

I suggest County Council discuss this alternative-bonding plan so that we know
whether or not to pursue the bond issue any further. The prior discussions on
bonding did not resufl in proceeding with a bond.

This issue of dividing funds by Council Districts is not in our County-wide
Transportation Plan and would need to be submitted to SCDOT for their
approval, if this is Council's decision.

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LEXINGTON, SOUTh CAROLINA 29072 • (803) 359-8201



County of Lexington
- County Council

212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, South Carolina 29072

IELEPH0NE: (803)359-8103 FAX: (803) 359-SlOt

January 27, 2005

To Council members

From Joe Owens

I took a look at the figures presented by John Fechtel and put them in a lhrmat
that I can understand .1 hope this simplification will help us to move this issue
for-ward if we are interested in the five year bond that we have discussed.

District # 1 has projects totaling $ 2,368.449
District #2 has projects totaling $2,915,500

For the sum total of $5,283,949
I propose that we leave these numbers in place.

Subtracting these amounLs from the original
Amount will go as follows. $10,515, 910

-$ 5,283,949
$5,231,961

Since districts #1 and #2 have already received the majority of the money
I propose the remainder-bc divided as follows $5,231,961 divided by 7

Equals $ 747,423 (the seven remaining Districts)

For the next live years the County would receive $1,200,000 while the bond is

being repaid I propose that figure he divided equally by the nine districts the

amount received would be $1 33,660 per year.

Extending these figures for live years District #1 would receive $133,666

times five equaling $668,330 plus $2,368,449 money received from original

bond for a total of $3,067,279.

Same scenario for District #2 $133,666 for five years equals $668,830 plus
$ 2.915,500 lhr a total of $3,584,330

Districts #3 through #9 would receive $ 747.423 from original bond and S

668,830 liar a live year total of $l,416253.

As you can see this gives every District some funds to address tneeds
While favoring rural Districts that have a critical need to surface roads

Bruce E. Rucker
District I

William C. Derrick
District 2

(;eorge II. Davis
District 3
Chairman

Jacob It. Witkerson
District 4

vacant
DistrictS

Johnny W. Jeficoat
District 6

John V. Carrigg, Jr.
District 7
Vice Chairman

Joseph W. Owens
District S

M. Todd Cullum
District 9



MEMORANDUM

March 15, 2005

Art Brooks, County Administrator
Larry Porth, Finance Director

Asst. County Administrator
Evelyn Babbitt, Grants Coordinator

John Fechtel, Public Works Director
Asst. County Administrato

COATS Enhancement Grant Application

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

RE:

Attached is the cover letter from Central Midlands Council of Governments requesting
grant appUcations tor FY 2006 and 2007 be submitted by March 30, 2005. This rs a two
(2) year funding process through the federal government, which requires a 60-40 match,
our portion is 40%. We can apply for two (2) projects with funding available over two (2)
fiscal years of $241,660.00 annually or a total of $483,320.00. The federal portion would
be $145,000.00 annually and our portion would be $96,664.00 annually. "C" Funds are
available for our match.

At this point, I recommend County Council approve this grant application and funds
allocated to sidewalks on SC 6 between the Lexington town limits and Lake Murray dam
on SC 60 in FY 05-06 and sidewalks between the Irmo town limits and the dam in FY
06-07. Please remit this request to the Public Works Committee to be reported out for
full councH consideralion on March 22, 2005.

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 29072 • (803) 359-8201



CENThAL
MIDLANDS19

Council of Governments

TO: All Managers and Administrators

FROM: Reginald E. Simmons, Director of Transportation 'A
DATE: February 17, 2005

RE: 2006-2007 Transportation Enhancemeilt Program

Central Midlands Council of Governments (CMCOG) is pleased to announce a cal for project submissions
for the 2006-2007 Transportation Enhancement Program. This guide summarizes the program and outlines
the project submission process. CMCOG strongly encourages applicants to be familiar with all materials in
the information guide and to contact the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) Office of
Enhancement Program Outreach or the CMCOG staff for assistance in completing the application.

Up to 80 percent of eligible project costs can be reimbursed by FHWA through the Surface Transportation
Program administered by SCDOT, At least 20 percent of the project's allowable costs must be paid by the
public authority, as the local funding match. By submitting a project for this program, the applicant agrees to
enter into an agreement with SCDOT and be financially responsible for the non-federal participating funding
and for implementation of the project.

The transportation enhancement program is a competitive process. All projects must demonstrate a
relationship to the surface transportation system to be eligible. After a project has been determined eligible,
it will undergo an evaluation review by the Enhancement Advisory Committee (EAC). EAC's evaluations
and recommendations are provided to the CMCOG Executive Committee. The Executive Committee makes
a final review of the recommended submissions and forwards them the CMCOG Board of Directors (MPO
Policy Committee) for approval. Project selection and review is anticipated during the spring of 2005.

CMCOG must receive an original and nine (9) copies of the completed enhancement application by 12:00
noon, March 30, 2005 at our offices located at 236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210. Applications
should be mailed or hand delivered. No faxes or emails will bc accepted. CMCOG will not accept
applications after this due date. Additional information guides and applications can be provided by request
or downloaded from our website at www. cenlralmidlands.org.

if you have any questions or need additional information, please don't hesitate to contact meat 803-744-
5133 or respond by email at rsirumons@centralniidlands.org. Thank you in advance for your cooperation
and interest in this matter.

cc: Norman Whitaker

G:\COATS MPO-Reginald\ErihancementstApp!ications\CaJI for Projects FY 06-07

Sen'ing Local Governments in South Carolina's Midlands
236 Stoneridge Drive, Columbia, SC 29210+ (803)376-5390+ FAX (803)376-5394+ Web Site http://wwwcentralmidlands org

/

Memorandum



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

MEMORANDUM

DATE: March 14, 2005

TO: Art Brooks, County Administrator

FROM: John Fechtel, Public Works Directoct
Asst. County Administrator

RE: SCDOT Right-of-Way Issues

Attached is a letter from SCDOT requesting guidance on two (2) projects: Pine
Plain and Victor Roads, which have right-of-way issues. Basically, SCOOT is
asking if County Council wants them to proceed with right-of-way acquisition on
each road or to delete the road from their project list. In the past, County Council
has not pursued ccndemnation on paving dirt roads. Attached is a copy of a
leffer sent to then Senator Joe Wilson dated February 6, 1991 which indicates
that SCDOT will condemn if at least two-thirds (2/3) of the property owners
donate right-of-way and SCDOT's condemnation estimate is less than $5,000.00.

As indicated in this letter, substantial engineering and right-of-way costs are
incurred whether or not the project is built. Staff is not recommending this to
Council, but we feel that Council should be aware of it. Also, there may be cases
where property owners receive more than the appraised value through the court
system.

If County Council removes either or both projects from SCDOT's program, we
can use SCDOT's plans and proceed with these projects on our own. The only
problem with this is that we will have to replace these projects with others that
SCDOT would take and we may be in jeopardy with the twenty-five (25) percent
portion of the law that has to be spent through SCDOT.

Please have Council discuss these two (2) projects so we can notify SCDOT.

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 29072 • (803) 359-8201



'saw
I South Carolina

Department of Transportation

Mr. Bruce Rucker
Chairman - Lexington Cot-nty Council
212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, South Carolina 29072

January21, 2005

RE: PIN 26883 and 26886 (Two Sections of Pine Plain Road) and
PIN 30494 (Victor Road) Lexington County "C" Program

Dear Mr. Rucker:

Preliminary right-of-way contacts have been made for PIN 26885/26886 (Pine Plain Road) and
PIN 30494 (Victor Road) in Lexington County. As of this date, tract 36 (Crown Atlantic Co. LLC) and
tract 37, 38 and 39 (Mr. Edward W. Riser) have refused to sign the necessary right-of-way easements and
slope permission along Pine Plain Road for the construction of this project. Also, along Victor Road tract 3
(Dorothy Davis) and tract 47 (Yalla Reddy) have refused to sign the necessary right-of-way documentation.

It is my understanding that the Lexington County Transportation Committee (LCTC) does not
normally condemn properties using "C" funds. Since the above properties will require condemnation, these
two projects have been placed on hold and right-of-way acquisition has been halted until the LCTC advises
how to proceed.

Therefore, please check the appropriate statements below and return a copy of this letter to me at
your earliest convenience. If you have any questions, please give me or Project Manager Fred Ben)' a call
at 803-737-1127.

Sincerely,

0.
Randall D. Williamson
"C" Program Engineer

Continue with right-of-way acquisition and condemn the necessary
funds from PIN 26885/26886 Pine Plain Road.

Continue with right-of-way acquisition arid condemn the necessary
funds from PIN 30494 Victor Road.

properties using "C"

properties using "C"

Delete PIN 26885/26886 and 30494 from the "C" Construction Program

RDW: svg
cc: John Fechtel, Lexington County Public Works Director
File: PC/FLB

3
Post Office Box 191

Columbia. South Carolina 29202-0191
Phore (803) 737-2314 ANEOUALOPPCRTUNTY/

TTY (803) 7373370 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER



7—0 ;.O1l; PROUL T 0EV.
[V

February 6, 1991

0037373393 7 2/ 2

Honorable Addison 0. Wilson
P. 0. Box 5709
West Columbia, SC 29171

Dear Senator Wilson:

This is to confirm our recent telephone conversation. The Department
made the decision to condemn the two tracts owned by David arid Deborah
Whetseli on the referenced road. The Deuartment was authorized by the
State Highway Commissibn to condemn on "C" fund road projects if two—third
or more of' the landowners signed gratis and if the Department's estimate
of liability under condemnation was less than $5,000.00. The rationale
for such authorization was that so many "0 projects were being abandoned
after s6,000 to SlO,000 of' cost had been incurred. It was felt that a
small additional investment was aDpropriate when there was substantjal
suoport for the project. - - -

- --- - -
-

-

On Cannon Trail Road there were 31 tracts from which right of way
was necessary. Twenty-five landowners signed immediately, and bef5re
condemnhation was perfected, 4 others had signed. Mr. and Mrs. Whetsell
own tt tracts arid those are the only ones necessary to condemn. The
support for the roject was extraordinary and the Department -proceeded
to condemn and eonatruct the project.

Item 29399 — Road 5-1760 — Lexington Cou
Tracts 5 & 6

:1 trust this is safithtactory.

QO;*. Robe-pt iZ ite
*fr W. M. DuBose III

Mr B K Jones

Yours very truly,

nk
Director, Rights of Way



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
FINANCE DEPARThNT

interoffice
MEMORANDUM -____

to: County Council

from: Evelyn Babbitt, Manager of Grants Administration

subject: Amiual DHEC Used Oil Grant Application

date: March 14, 2005

Lexington County Solid Waste Management is requesting your approval to apply for the
annual Used Oil Grant from the SC Department of Health and Environmental Control
(DHEC) in the amount of $21,450.00 for the purpose of proper disposal of used oil. This
Grant is a yearly grant and is 100% State funded. No personnel are funded with this
Grant.



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: ThOMAS MARJNO, GRANTS MANAGER

FROM: JOE MERGO Ill, SOLID WASTE

SLIBJECE: USED OIL GRANT

DATE: 3/7/2005

DIANA BURNETT, CLERK TO COUNCIL & DONNA TTENDRTX, SOUL) WASTE

Please review the attached grant proposal. I will request that it be placed on the nen Public
Works Committee agenda. Please note that the grant application must be postmarked no later than
April 1, 2005 to be eligible for consideration. There are no matching hinds required and no
personnel requested. If County Council approves the application fin the grant, Art Brooks will need
to sign as authorized representative (page 15) as well as you as grant official (page 15). I am
forwarding the original document to Diana Burnett. When the signature page is complete Diana will
return the original document to me and send you a copy fi)r your files. I will forward the original to
D[-[EC. Please let me know if you have any questions (755-3325).



D H E C NOTICE•Ufl
p ROM GTE P a CT ECT p RCSPE P

South Carohna Dcj,ariznent of Picaldi
and Envitotintental Control

TO: Grant Applicants

FROM: Jana White

RE: FY2006 Used Oil Grants

DATE: January21, 2005

Enclosed are the fy2006 Used Oil Grant Application form, the grant guidelines and a public
education funding chart. Please note that the applications must be postmarked no later than
April 1, 2005 to be eligible for consideration. Please include nine double-sided copies on
recycled content paper (at least 30% post-consumer preferred), along with the original.
Incomplete applications will be returned and will not be considered for funding.

Used Oil Grant Funds are intended for the establishment, expansion and continued operation
of used motor oil collection programs for do-it-yourself oil changers. This is to includeprograms
related to the collection of used motor oil, oil filters, oil bottles and oil/gas mixtures. More
specific information is included in the grant guidelines.

Used Oil Grant Funds are made available to any county, any municipal government that
provides solid waste services, or to any sohd waste region in the State of South Carolina.
Regional applications may be submitted by any group of counties or local governments that
have submitted a regional solid waste management plan to DHEC.

Travel may be requested up to $750 for the recycling coordinator, other solidwaste/recycling
employees or other local government officials to attend waste reduclion/recycling seminars or
conferences related to used oil recycling.

Requests for public information/education projects are allowable up to the limits indicated
on the enclosed table. Education limits are based on population.

For more information contact Jana White at 803-896-4221 or Sharon Thompson at 803-
896-4227.



SC DHEC Office of Solid Waste Pecuction and Recycling
FY2006 Used Oil Grant Application

Total Amount Requested: $21,450
2. Name of Local Government: Lexington County
3. Federal ID Number: 57-6000379

4. Recycling Coordinator nformation
Name: Donna Hendrix
Address: 498 Landfill Lane

Lexington, South Carolina 29073

Phone: (803) 755-3325
Fax: (803) 755-3833
E-mail Address dhendrix@lex-co.com

5. Contact Person Information

Name: Donna Hen drix, ProjectlRecycling Coordinator
Address: 498 Landfill Lane

Lexington, South Carolina 29073

Phone: (803) 755-3325
Fax: (803) 755-3833
E-mail Address: dhendrix©lex-co.com

6. Financial Officer/Grant Administrator Information
Name: Evelyn P. Babbitt, Manager of Grants Administration
Address: 212 South Lake Drive

Lexington, South Carolina 29072

Phone: (803) 359-8111
Fax: (803) 359-8101
E-mail Address:

7. Authorized Representative (County Administrator, etc.) Information

Name: William A. Brooks, County Administrator
Title: 212 South Lake Drive
Address: Lexington, South Carolina 29072

Phone: (803) 359-8100
Fax: (803) 359-8101
E-mail Address:

8. Address to which reimbursements should be mailed:

Evelyn Babbitt
212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, South Carolina 29072

9. How much material was collected for recycling last year7
and oil/gas mixtures). The vendor/market must be provided.

3

(Include used oil, oil bottles, oil filters,



r I
- _______

Material Number of gallons/lbs/etc
Vendor/Marke

Used Oil (Include oil/gas 354.04 tons Santee Cooper
mixtures) _______________

Used Oil Filters 38.83 tons Commercial Metal
Company

20 tons shipped (Total of two years
Oil Bottles of stock pile approx. 27,000 lbs in Plastic Revolution

past year)
A Describe in detail the used motor oil recycling project for which grant funding is being

requested. Include a complete description of all goods or services listed on budget pages. Cost
estimates must match budget pages. Please provide any information needed to adequately assess
your application. Attach additional pages as necessary. Please include descriptive literature for
all equipment requested with one application form.

A. Equipment/Supplies
B.

Request to procure parts and service for maintenance of forklift and its drum
attachment used in loading unloading trucks and for loading oil filtercuber. Dry
absorbent for use in collection stations and in oil filterprocessing building. Heavy-dutyoil bottle bags used for collection stations. $8,100

B. Contractual Service

Enclosed is a proposed Preventive Maintenance quote for the con tractual services for
FYO5/06. Lexington County is requesting an outside vendor to perform all maintenance
of our cuber for the coming year. As with previous years our 200 plus drums collected
from DIY's is determined to be more feasible to contract service to maintain our oil filter
cuber than to procure services for oil filter collection in our sites through the State
Contract We also assist other counties and there is a significant savings in their
programs of used oil recycling grants.($9,600)

C. Public Education

Request to purchase SCDHEC approved education materials ofour used motor oil bottle!
filter and oil/gas mixture recycling programs offered by LCSWM to include other
appropriate educational tools. $3,000

D. Site Preparation (none)

E. Travel

Requesting funding to attend recycling conferences as announced, during the fiscal
year. Recycling coordinator will obtain educational information in reference to waste
oil and waste oil bi-product recycling. $750

4



0 Describe your recycling education effort. nc!ude brochures, videos, print advertisomontsor
other examples with your original application. Attach additional pages as necessary.

See Attached

D. Identify all existing and proposed oil collection sites. Include a map showing the location of
each existing and proposed site and provide the specific address of each location Provide a
lease agreement or proof of ownership for land identified as a proposed collection site.

See Attached

5



Site
number
on map

6109 Old Bush River
Rd

Columbia, SC

103 Distant Lane Oil, filters, bottles
Chapin, SC

List of existing equipment at each -
site: Oil tank, farmer oil tank, oil/gas
tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum covers, bottle drum
covers, other

Oil tank, 211/! as tank concrete
pads, secondary containment,
carport cover, signs, drums, filter
drum cover, bottle drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pads, secondary
containment, carport covers,
signs, drums, filter drum cover,
bottle drum covers

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment2 carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
contaInment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

operated by your program. Include the location,

fl
County/Local

Complete the foflowing chart istin.g a!! current used o! collecfion sites for do-ft-yourseft oilchangers
materials uo(iected and

Used Oil Collection Sites
Government: Lexington County

Site name Location of site

Edmund

existing equipment for each site.

Materials collected

2

498 Landfill Lane

Lexington, SC

Ball Park

Oil, filters, bottles &
oil/gas mixture

3

301 Ball Park Road

Lexington, Sc

Pelion

Oil, filters, bottles

4

1325 South Pine St

Pellon, SC

Bush River

Oil, filters, bottles

5 Cha pin

Oil, filters, bottles

S 6
--

Red Bank 1633 South Lake Dr Oil, filters, bottles
Lexington, SC

7 Leesville 722 South Lee Street OH, filters, bottles

I _________
8 Sandhills 3241 Charleston Hwy Oil, filters, bottles

Cayce, SC

9 Summit 419 Sandpit Road

I
Hollow Creek 125 Beulah Church Oil, filters, bottles

Rd
Gilbert, SC

I
Riverchase 110 Riverchase Way Oil, filters, bottles

Lexington, SC

12 Gwen Bailey 109 Theo Jumper Rd
—

Gaston, SC

IH

Oil, filters, bottles Oil tank, concrete pad, seconda
containment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum coyer
Oil tank, concrete pad, secondary
containment, carport cover, signs,
drums, filter drum cover, bottle
drum cover

Oil,

6



PROPOSED USED OIL BUDGET
SUMMARY OF BUDGET

Amounts shown must match project descriptions. Please round numbers to the nearest dollar.

SUMMARY BUDGET

Description Grant Funds Requested Other Contributions

A. Equipment/Supphes $8,100
t

$1,000B. Contract Services $9,600
C. Public Education $3,000
D. Site Preparation

E. Travel $750 $500
F. Other Direct Costs

Total Requested $21,450 $1,500

A. EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES (Examples: boxes, bags, cement pads, used oil collection tank, gas/oil
mixture collection tank, farmer oil collection tank, oil bottle containers, oil filter containers, collection
station carport covers, fencing, DIY oil drain pans, signs, waste oil heater. Please include descr!ptive
hterature, brochures, etc. with your original application.

Description Proposed
location(s)

Per unit cost Other
contributions

Grant request
1

Mechanical Processing Forklift & drum
maintenance,
shredder, forklift, as
required

Building aflachn;ent
$1,000 $3,500

I

Oil bottle bags

Dty Absorbent

Twelve Collection
Sites

Twelve Collection
Sites & Processing
Building

20-boxes of
bagsloo/box
@220/ca
50 bags @
$4.00/ca

$4,400

$200

r

$ $

Totals $1,000 $8,100

J

a



B. CONTRACT SERVICES (Example: Used oil filter/boffle collection, transportation cost&)

C. PUBLIC EDUCATION (Expenditures will require pre-approval and cannot exceed limit on enclosed
table.)

9

Grant request



E. TRAVEL

Description

Attend Recycling Workshop and

F. OTHER DIRECT COSTS (For other costs directiy associated with the collection, transportation or

Totals

recycling of used motor oil and related materials. Must be described fully in the project summary.)

Other Contributions Grant Request

HTh$
H H

H

10

D. SITE PREPARATION (Examples: clearing, fencing, or paving for oil sites.)

(Will require preapproval on form provided by office and cannot exceed $750)

Other Contributions

or Conference $500

Totals

$

H

Grant Request

$750

$750$

Description

$



This page has intentionally been lefi blank.



ORDINANCE NO.2004-I)

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND
1)ELIVERY OF A LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT BY AND
BETWEEN LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS LESSOR,
AND NUCOR CORPORATION, AS LESSEE, WITH RESPECT TO
THE CONSTRUCTION OF CERTAIN MODIFICATIONS ANJ)
IMPROVEMENTS TO NUCOR CORPORATION'S MANUFAC-
TURING FACILITY FOR ME'I'AL BUILDINGS AND COMPONENTS,
WHEREBY TILE COUNTY WILL ACCEPT TITLE TO SUCh
MODIFICATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS, TIlE MODIFICATIONS
AND IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN FEE
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES AND THE MODIFICATIONS AND
IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE RECONVEYED TO NUCOR
CORPORATION UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS; AND OIlIER
MATTERS RELATED TIlE RETO.

WHEREAS, LEXENGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County"),
acting by and through its County Council (the "County Council"), is authorized and
enipowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 44 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws
of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Act"), to acquire, or cause to he acquired,
properties (which properties constitute a "project" as defined in the Act) and to enter into
agreements with any industry whereby the industry would pay fees in lieu of taxes with respect
lo such project, through which powers the industrial development of the State of South
Carolina (the "State") will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and
commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus utilize and employ the
manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare of the
County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not othcnvise
provided locally; and

WhEREAS, the County is further authorized by the Act to accept title to projects
locatcd in the County and to lease such projects to any investor pursuant to a lease or lease
purchase agreement by and between the County and such investor; and

\VIIEREAS, pursuant to the Act, and in order to induce certain investment in the
County, the County has entered into that certain Inducement and Millage Rate Agreement with
Nucor Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), dated December 14, 2004 (the
"Inducement and Millage Rate Agreement"), with respect to the modification and
improvement by the Company of its metal building systems and components plant in the
County (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it
by the Company that the Project would be a "project" as that term is defined in the Act and that
the Project would serve the purposes of the Act, and

WhEREAS, the County has determined to enter into sale-Icaseback arTangcmcnt,
which includes a Lease-Purchase Agreement, to be dated as of the date of first reading of this

(21 IAR2ii 6079 2



ordinance, with the Company (the "Lease Aurecinenf), whereby the County would accept title
to the Project and lease the sanic back to the Company and provide therein for a payment of
Ibes in lieu of taxes by the Company with respect to the Project and the reconvcyance of the
Project in the Company, all upon satisfaction of the conditions contained therein; and

WIIEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this
meeting the form of the Lease Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver;
and

WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before
(his ineetnig, are in appropriate form and arc an appropriate instrument to be executed and
delivered or approved by the County for the purposes intended

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows:

Sect ton I In order to promote i ndiist ty, rlevel op trade and utilize and employ the
manpower, agricultural products and natural resources of the State by assisting the Conipaiiv to
locate or expand its industrial facilities in the County, (i) the acquisition by the County and the
subsequent lease to the Company of the Project, and (ii) the reeonveyance of the Project to the
Company upon the satisfaction of the conditions set ibrth in the Lease Agreement, are hereby
authorized and approved.

Section 2. It is hereby found, determined and declared by the County Council, as
fo Ito w 5:

(a) The Project will conslitute a "project" as said term is referred to and
defined in the Act, and the County's actions herein will subserve the purposes and ni
all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the Act,

(b) The Project and the payments in lieu of taxes set forth in the lease
Agreement are beneficial to the County;

(c) The Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by
providing service, employment, recicalion and other public benefits not otherwise
provided locally;

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic
development and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and
public purposes;

(e) The Project will give rise to no pecuniamy liability of the County or
incorporated municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of
either;

(I) The mducement of the location or expansion of the Proj eet wi tIn n the
County and the State is of paramount importance;

I JAR2' 16(17') 2



(g) The dollar amount and nature of the investment, in addition to other
criteria described in this Section, support the Project's classilication as economic
development property;

(h) The benefits of the Project will be greater than the costs; and

(i) The Project will be made available by the County to the Company upon
terms which require the Company, at its own expense, to maintain the Project in good
repair and to carry all proper insurance with respect thereto.

Section 3. The form, terms and provisions of the Lease Agreement presented to this
meeting and attached hereto as Exhibit A are hereby approved and all of the terms and
provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if the Lease Agreement were
set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of the County Council and the Clerk of
the County Council be and they are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute,
acknowledge and deliver the Lease Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and
thereupon lo cause the Lease Agreement to be delivered to the Company and cause the Lease
Agreement to be recorded in the Register of Deeds for Lexington County. The Lease
Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or
with such changes therein as shall be approved by the officials of the County executing the
same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all
changes or revisions therein from the form of Lease Agreement now befhrc this meeting.

Section 4. The form, terms and provisions of the Mortgage and Security Agreement
and Fixture Filing (the "Security Agreement") presented to this meeting and attached hereto as
Exhibit B are hereby approved and all of the terms and provisioits thereof are hereby
incorpdrated herein by reference as if the same were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety.
The Chairman of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are
hereby authonzed, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Security
Agreement in the nama of and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the Security
Agreement to be delivered to the Company. The Security Agreement is to be in substantially
the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall
be approved by the officials of the County executing the same, their execution thereof to
constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of any and all changes or revisions therein
from the form of Security Agreement now before this meeting.

Section 5. The Chairman of the County Council and the Clerk of the County Council,
for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized and directed to do any and all
things necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Lease Agreement and the Security
Agreement and the petformance of all obligations of the County under and pursuant to the
Lease Agreement and the Security Agreement.

Section_6. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if
any section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the
remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions hereunder.

CHAR2\2 I 6O7) 2



Section 7. It is the intention of the County Council that the date of lii st reading of this
ordinance shall constitute the dale of official action in (lie part of the County, reflecting or
identifying the Project as economic development property within the meaning of the Act.

Section 8. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts tliereofin conflict herewith are, to the
extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force
from and after its passage by the County Council.

Enacted in meeting duly assembled this 14th day of December, 2004.

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTII CAROLINA

By:_________________________
Chainiian, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina

By:_____________________________
Clerk oithe County Council
Lexington County, South Carolina

First Reading:
Second Reading
'Third Reading:

Public Hearing

CiIAik28i6O79 2



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Lexington County, South Carolina, do
hereby certi1' that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which
was given reading, arid received unanimous I approval, by the County Council at its
meetings of December 14, 2004 and ________________, 2005, at which meetings a quorum of
members of County Council were present and voted, and an original of which ordinance is
filed in the permanent tecords of the County Council.

Clerk, County Council of Lexington County

Dated: . 2005

CHAR2\816U792



MORTGAGE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT
AND FIXTURE FILING

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, a political subdivision and body
corporate of the State of South Carolina ("Mortgagor"), for a valuable consideration, does hereby
mortgage, grant, bargain, sell, convey and deliver unto NUCOR CORPORATION, a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware ("Mortgagee"), and
unto its successors and assigns, the real property located in Lexington County, South Carolina
more particularly described in EXI-EI1BIT A, attached hereto, which is hereby incorporated by
reference.

This Mortgage also conveys to Mortgagee all buildings, improvements and fixtures now
or at any time hereafter located on any real property hereinabove described, and grants to
Mortgagee a security interest in all of the machinery, equipment, fixtures and other personal
property acquired by Mortgagor on or after the date hereof and located in any such buildings or
on any such real property regardless of the method of annexation, which personal property is
more particularly described in EXHIBIT B, attached hereto, which is hereby incorporated by
reference. (The real property and personal property referred to above are sometimes hereinafter
collectively called the "Property".)

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property unto Mortgagee, its successors and assigns
forever; provided, however, that the foregoing conveyance is given as a Mortgage and Security
Agreement and Fixture Filing for the purpose of securing the performance of Mortgagor's
obligations to Mortgagee arising wider or with respect to that certain Lease-Purchase Agreement,
dated as of December 14, 2004, by and between Mortgagor, as Lessor, and Mortgagee, as Lessee
(the "Lease") (i) to convey the Property to Mortgagee pursuant to and in accordance with Lease
Section 11.2 entitled "Option to Acquire Legal Title" and Lease Section 11.3 entitled
"Conveyance on Exercise of Option to Acquire Legal Title", and (ii) to reconvey the Property to
Mortgagee pursuant to and in accordance with Lease Section 11.4 entitled "Conveyance on
Termination of Agreement".

Upon Mortgagor's breach of its obligations to convey or reconvey the Property to
Mortgagee as aforesaid, Mortgagee, at its sole option, may immediately and without further
notice, foreclose this Mortgage by judicial proceedings.

All remedies provided in this Mortgage to Mortgagee are distinct and cumulative to any
right or remedy afforded by law or equity and may be exercised concurrently, independently or
successively. The covenants and agreements contained in this Mortgage shall bind, and the
rights hereunder shall inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of Mortgagor
and Mortgagee.

Upon the execution and delivery of a deed and bill of sale conveying or reconveying the
Property to Mortgagee, this Mortgage will become null and void and shall be released by proper

CHAR2Z16086 I



marginal notation, or at the option of Mortgagee, by a release deed to be recorded at the expense
of Mortgagee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mortgagor has caused this Mortgage to be executed on its
behalf by its duly authorized officer, under seal, effective as of the _____ day of
2005.

MORTGAGOR:

(SEAL) LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:___________________________
Chairman, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina

ATTEST:

By: _________________________
Clerk, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina

Witnesses:

This document prepared by Ernest S. DeLaney, ifi
Address: Moore & Van Aden PLLC

100 North Tryon Street, Suite 4700
Charlotte, NC 28202-4003

CHAR' 816056 1 2



PROBATE

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

PERSONALLY appeared before me _________________________________ who being
duly sworn says that (s)he saw _________________________ as Chairman, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina, and ________________________ as Clerk, County Council
of Lexington County, South Carolina, sign, attest and seal the foregoing Mortgage and Security
Agreement and Fixture Filing and that (s)he witnessed the execution and delivery thereof as the
act and deed of Lexington County, South Carolina.

SWORN to before me this

day of__________ ,2005.

________________________________ (L. S.)
Notary Public for the State of South Carolina
My Commission Expires __________________

CHAIt28160g6 n3



EXHI1IIT A

(Legal Description)

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situated, lying and being near the Town of Swansea,
in the County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, containing 111.558 acres and being shown
and delineated on a plat prepared for Nueor Corporation by En linger & Associates, Professional
Land Surveyors, dated February 15, 1996, and recorded as Slide 175, Plat 8, in the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Lexington County. Said tract being located on the eastern side of South
Carolina Highway S 32-102 and on the northern side of South Carolina Highway 3 and having
such boundaries and measurements as will more fully appear by reference to said plat which is
incorporated herein and made a sped lie part hereof

Being the same property conveyed to Lexington County, South Carolina by Nucor Corporation
by Deed dated as of December 31, 1996, and recorded in Book 4084, Page 326, in the Office of
the Register of Deeds for Lexington County, South Carolina.

CI-L2\]6i)6 I 4



EXHIBIT B - DESCRIPTION OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

All machinery, equipment, fixtures and other personal property of every kind and nature,
presently owned or hereafter acquired by Mortgagor located on or in the land and improvements
described in Exhibit A, and including, without limitation, all replacements and substitutions
which become the property of the Mortgagor; and any and all other property of every kind and
nature from time to lime which was heretofore or hereafter is by delivery or by writing of any
kind conveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned, or transferred, as and for additional security by
Mortgagor.

The machinery, equipment, fixtures and other personal property pledged by Mortgagor to
Mortgagee under this Mortgage and Security Agreement and Fixture Filing secures the
perfonnanee of Mortaagor's obligations to Mortgagee under or with respect to the Lease (i) to
convey the Property to Mortgagee pursuant to and in accordance with Lease Section 11.2 entitled
"Option to Acquire Legal litle" and Lease Section 113 entitled "Conveyance on Exercise of
Option to Acquire Legal title", and (ii) to reconvey the Property to Mortgagee pursuant to and in
accordance with Lease Section 11.4 entitled "Conveyance on Termination of Agreement".

CILAR2\Si6US6 I



Cl-I AR2\R I 592v3

LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Between

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
Lessor

and

NUCOR CORPORATION
Lessee

Dated as of December 14, 2004

'this document prepared by:
Ernest S. DeLaney, III

Moore & Van Allen PLLC
100 North Tryon Street, Suite 4700

Charlotte, NC 28202-4003



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I DEFThITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUCI'ION 2
Section 1.1 Definitions 2
Section 1.2 Rules of Construction 4

ARTICLE TI REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANI IFS AND COVENANI'S 6
Section 2.1 Representations, Warranties and Covenants by Lesso 6
Section 2.2 Representations. Warranties and Covenants of lessee 7

ARTICLE HI TERM, PROPERTY AND RENTAL 7
Section 3. Demise of the Premises . 7
Section 3.2 Warranties of Title and Condition of Prolect S

Section 3.3 Quiet Eniovmeut S

Section 3.4 Term S
Section 3.5 Base Rent S

Section 3.6 Additional Rent S

Section 3 7 Certain Income Tax Matters 9

ARTICLE IV PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION AND ABATEMENT 10
Section 4.1 Protection of Tax-Exempt Status of the Proiect 10
Section 4.2 Rescission and Reversion in the Event ofTerinination 10

ARTICLE V FEE IN LIEU OF TAX PAYMENT; IMPROVEMENT COST CRED 11

Section 5.1 Fee in Lieu of Tax, Impositions II
Section 5.2 Taxes, Utilities and Other Governmental Charges II
Section 5 3 Fcc Payment Secured by Tax Lien 12

ARTTCLE VI MAINTENANCE, MODIFICATIONS, IMIOSITIONS AND INSURANCE 13
Section 6.1 Maintenance and Modifications of Premises by Lessee 13

Section 6.2 Removal of Equipment 14
Section 6.3 Insurance Required 14
Section 6.4 Indemnity 14

ARTICLE VIT DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION 16
Section 7.1 Damage and Destruction 16
Section 7.2 Rights of Parties in Event ofCondcninatioii 16
Section 7.3 Right of Lessee to Participate in Condemnation Proceedings 17
Section 7.4 Lessor's Covenant Not to Condemn 17

ARTICLE VTTI SPECIAL COVENANTS IS
Section 8.1 No Warranty of Condition or Suitability by Lesso IS
Section 8.2 Service of Process in the State 15
Section 8.3 No Annexation IS
Section 8.4 Granting of Easements or Restrictive Covenants; Fnlciinginlo

Agreements 18

CHAfC\IS92v3



Section 8.5 Maintenance of Corporate Existeiee . 8

Section 8.6 Lessor Undertakings 19
Section 8.7 Records and Reports, Non-Disclosure 19

Section 8.8 Compliance with Laws 19

ARTICLE IX ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, PLEDGING AND SELLING;
REDEMPTION; RENT PREPAYMENT AND ABATEMENT 20

Scction 9.1 Assignment, Subleasing and Pledging 20
Section 9.2 Restrictions on Sale, Mortggc or other Conveyance of Premises by

Lessor. 20
Section 9.3 Prepayment of Rents 20

ARTICLE X EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 21

Section 10.1 Events of Default Defined 21

Section 10.2 Remedies on Default 22
Section 10.3 Remedies Not Exclusive 22
Section 10.4 Equitable Relief 22

ARTICLE XI OPTIONS IN FAVOR OF LESSEE 23
Section 11.1 Option to Terminate Lease 23
Section 11.2 Option to Acquire Legal Title 23
Section 11.3 Conveyance on Exercise olOption to Acquire Legal Title 23
Section 11.4 Conveyance on Termination of Agreement 24
Section 11.5 Option to Extend 24
Section 11.6 PartialReleases 24

ARTICLE XHMISCELLANEOTJS 25
Section 12.1 Notices 25
Section 12.2 Binding Effect 26
Section 12.3 Rescission and Severability 26
Section 12.4 Amendments 26
Section 12.5 Execution of Counterparts 26
Section 12.6 Captions 26
Section 12.7 Law Governing Construction of Agreement 26
Section 12.8 Payment Dates 26
Scction 12.9 Recapitulation Waived 26
Section 12.10 Inducement and Millage Rate Agreement 27

CHA:2\Sl5S923 ii



LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENI'

This LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENI (this "Agreement'), dated effective as of
____________________ 2004 (the "Commencement Date"), is between LEXNGTON COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA (hereinafter called "Lessor"), a political subdivision and body corporate ol
tile State of South Carolina, as lessor, and NUCOR CORPORATION (hereinafter called
"Lessee"), a corporation organized and existing under tile laws of the State of Delaware, as
lessee.

\V IT N E S S E T II:

WHEREAS, Lessor is authorized and empowered by the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44,
Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Act"), to ailow for the payment of certain
fees in lieu of ad valorern taxes with respect to industrial properties through which the uldustrial
development of tile State will he promoted and trade developed by inducing new industries to locate
in the State and by eneourauing industries now located in the State to expand their investments arid
thus utilize and employ manpower and other resources of tile State and benefit the general public
weltare of Lessor by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits riot
otherwise provided locally; and

WI-I EREAS, Lessee has constructed and operates a manufacturing facility for metal
buildings and components in Lexington County, South Carolina (the "Coim"); and

WHEREAS, by action taken on December 14, 2004 (the "Official_Action"), the County
Council of Lexington County, South Carolina, agreed to provide certain incentives to Lessee
with respect to the modification and improvement during tile Project Period (as hereinafter
defined) of its existing nlanufacturing facility through tile acquisition, construction and
installation of real and personal property, includi rig but not Ii Ill ited to, improvements, leasehold
inlprovcrncnts, buildings, nlachinery, equipnicnt and funliture, which would constitute a project
within the nlcalilng of the Act (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Project") and the
County recognized and identified the Project as ecoiloilliC development property within the
meaning of tile Act; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Official Actiorl arld an Inducement and Millage Rate
Agreemcilt by and between Lessor and Lessee dated December 14, 2004, and amended as of the
Commeneerllerlt Date (the "Inducement and Millanc Rate Agreement"), Lessor Ilas agreed to
provide for fees in lieu of taxes in the maimer permitted under Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Act; and

WHEREAS, this Lease Aeement sllall constitute a "ti2e agreement" within tile meaning of
the Act; arid

WHEREAS, the Project has been conveyed to Lessor by Lessee, and Lessor has agreed to
lease tIle Project to Lessee pursuant to the terms hereof; and

WHEREAS, Lessee and Lessor each have full right and lawful authority to enter into this
Lease Agrccrnerlt and to perform and observe the provisions hereof on their respective parts to
be performed and observed.

Ci IAR2C I 5SO



NOW, THFRIIiFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements
hereinafter contained, Lessor and Lessee agree as follo\vs (provided, that in the performance of
the agreements of Lessor herein contained, any obligation it may thereby incur for the payment
of money shall not be a general debt on its part, but shall be payable solely out of the proceeds
derived from this Agreement, and the insurance and condemnation awards as herein provided):

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUCT] ON

Section 1.1 Definitions.

In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this Agreement, thc following
words and terms as used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings unlcss the context
or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent:

"Act" means Section 12-44-10, et seq., of the State Code. References herein to various
sections of the Act are to corresponding sections in the State Codc comprising the Act.

"Additional Rent" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.6 hereof.

"Administration Expenses" means the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by
Lessor with respect to this Agreement, including reasonable attorneys' fees; provided, however,
that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until Lessor has furnished to
Lessee a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the reason it has been or
will be incurred.

'Authorized Lessee Representative" means the person or persons at the time designated
to act on behalf of Lessee by written certificate furnished to Lessor containing the specimen
signature(s) of such person(s) and signed on behalf of Lessee by an authorized officer. Such
certificate may designate an alternate or alternates.

"Authorized Lessor Representative" means the Chairman or person or persons at the time
designated to act on behalf of Lessor by written certificate furnished to Lessee containing the
specimen signature(s) of such person(s) and signed on behalf of Lessor by the Chairman. Such
certificate may designate an alternate or alternates.

"Base Rent" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.5 of this Lease Agreement.

"Bill of Sale" means the document of that name dated as of or after the Commencement
Date by which Lessee transfers title to the Equipment to Lessor.

"Buildings" means those certain buildings or additions to buildings and fixtures forming
a part of the Project, and not constituting part of the Equipment, which are located on the Land,
as they may at any time eKist.

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or legal holiday or a day
on which banking institulions in the city of Charlotte, North Carolina, are authorized or required
by law to close.

CRAI<2\.i l392v3 -



"Chairiiian" means the Chainnan of County Council (or anyone authorized to act in his
stead whenever he IS unavai I aT) Ic to act).

"Clerk" means the Clerk of County Council (or anyone authorized to act in her stead
whenever she is unavailable to act).

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as heretofore or hereafter amended.

"County Assessor" means the Lexington County Assessor, or the holder of any successor

position.

"County Auditor" means the Lexington County Auditor, or the holder of any SuCCeSSOr

position.

"CQlffliy Council" means the County Council of Lexington County, South Carol i ia.

"Department" means the South Carolina Department of Revenue, or any successor
agency.

means all personal property including, but not limited to, machinery and
equipment acquired, constructed, and installed in the Buildings and conveyed to Lessor, hut
specifically excluding any equipment covered by the 1996 Lease. To the extent permitted by
law, such Equipment shall remain personal property regardless of the manner or flishion in wInch
such machinery and/or equipment is affixed to the premises.

"Fee" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5.1 hereof

"Indemnified Parties" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 64 hereof

"Independent Counsel" means an attorney duly admitted to practice before the highest
court of any state in the United States of America who is not a full—time employee of either
Lessor or Lessee.

"Inducement and Millage Rate Agreement" shall have the meaning ascrihed thereto iii the
Recitals hereof.

"Land" means the real estate described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference.

"Lease Term" nieans the duration of Lessee's right to use and occupy the Pioject as
specified in Section 3.4 hereof

"Lessee" means Nueor Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and any surviving, resulting
or transferee entity.

"Lessor" means Lexington County, South Carolina, a political subdivision and body
corporate under the laws of the State.

UI-tAic\S I 5S2 v3 3



"1996 Lease" means that certain Lease-Purchase Agreement between Lessee and Lessor
dated as of December 31, 1996, and recorded on March 14, 1997, in Book 4084, Page 334, in the
Office of the Register of Deeds of Lexington County, South Carolina, as amended or
supplemented time to time.

"Non-Project Improvements" means those buildings, structures and fixtures on the Land,
other than the Project and any Replacement Property, as may become subject to this Agreement.

"Permitted Encumbrances" means any Permitted Encumbrance under the 1996 Lease.

"Premises" means all of the Land and improvements thereon, incLuding the Buildings and
Equipment.

"Project" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the recitals hereto.

"Project Documents" means the Inducement and Millage Rate Agreement, this
Agreement, the Bill of Sale, and the Security Agreement.

"Project Period" means the period which begins on January 1, 2004, and ends on
December 31, 2013.

"Replacement Property" means all property installed in the buildings, improvements and
personal property theretofore constituting part of the Project to the extent that Section 12-44-60
of the Act permits such property to be included in the Project.

"Security Agreement" means the Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated as of the
Commencement Date (including the related UCC Financing Statements filed in Lexington
County and with the Secretary of State of South Carolina) by which Lessor grants Lessee a
security interest in the Equipment for the purpose of securing the performance of certain
obligations of Lessor to Lessee arising hereunder.

"State" means the State of South Carolina.

"State Code" means the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended.

Section 1.2 Rules of Construction.

Unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, the following rules shall apply to the
construction of this Agreement:

(a) Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and
vice versa.

(b) The table of contents, captions and headings herein are solely for
convenience of reFerence only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement nor shall
they affect its meaning, construction or effect.

CT-L&R2\8I 5892v3 4



(c) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include
corrclative words of the feminine and ncutcr gcndcrs, and words of the neuter gendcr
shall bc deemed and construcd to include correlative words of the masculinc and
feminine genders.

(d) All references in this Agrcement to particular Articles or Sections are
references to Articles and Sections of this Agreement, unless otherwise indicated.

[End of Article fl

CILAlCSI5R923 ç



ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AN]) COVENANTS

Section 2.1 Rejaresentations, Warranties and Covenants by Lessor.

Lessor makes the following representations and walTanties to Lessce and covenants with
Lessee as follows:

(a) Lessor is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State
and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to exccute and fulfill its
obligations described in the Project Documents to which it is a party. Lessor has been
authorized by proper action of the County Council to execute and deliver such of the
Project Documents as require execution by it and to enter into and fufly perlbrrn the
transactions required of it under those documents.

(b) Neither the execution and delivery of the Project Documents to which it is a
party, nor the consummation and performance of the transactions described in the Project
Documents to which it is a party, violate, conflict with or will result in a breach of any of
the terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement, restriction, statute, law, rule, order or
regulation to which Lessor is now a party or by which it is bound.

(c) To the best of its knowledge, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or
investigation at law or in equity before or by any judicial or administrative court or agency,
public board or body, pending or threatened, against or affecting Lessor, wherein an
unfavorable decision, ruling or finding may or would adversely affect Lessor or the
consummation of the transactions described in the Project Documents to which it is a party.

(d) Neither the existence of Lessor nor the rights of the Chairman or any
members of County Council to their offices is being contested and none of the proceedings
taken to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of such of the Project
Documents as require execution, delivery and performance by Lessor has been repealed,
revoked, amended or rescinded.

(e) The Project Documents to which it is a party are (or, when executed, will
be) legal, valid and binding obligations of Lessor, enforceable against Lessor in accordance
with their respective terms, except as such terms may be limited by laws affecting
creditors' rights generally.

(1) The Chairman is JUly authorized to execute the Project Documents to
which Lessor is a party on behalf of Lessor and the Clerk is authorized to attest to his
signature and to seal such Project Documents.

(g) Effictive as of the Commencement Date, as an accommodation to assist
Lessee in achieving the intended benefits and purposes of the Act, Lessor acquired from
Lessee ownership of the Equipment and will authorize, and does hereby authorize, Lessee
to acquire and install any additional Equipment, and to do all other things deemed by
Lessee to be necessary or desirable in connection with the Premises.

CHAR2\815892v3 6



Section 2.2 Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Lessee.

Lessee makes the following representations and walTanties to Lessor and covenants with
Lessor as follows:

(a) Lessee is a corporation existing under the laws of the State of Delaware and
is qualified to do business hi the State. Lessee has all necessary power to execute and
fulfill its obligations described in the Project Documents to which it is a party and has been
authorized to do so. Lessee has been authorized by proper action of Lessee to execute and
deliver this Lease Agreement. Lessee shall continue to he qualified to (10 business in the
State during the Lease Term.

(b) Neither the execution and delivery of the Project Documents to which it is a
party nor the consummation and performance of the transactions described in the Project
Documents to which it is a party violate, conflict with, or will result in a breach of any of
the terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement, restriction, statute, law, rule, order or
regulation to which Lessee is now a party or by which it is hound.

(c) To the best of its knowledge, there is no action, sut,proceeding, inquiry or
investigation at law or in equity before or by any judicial or administrative court or agency,
public board or body, pending or threatened, against or affecting Lessee wherein an
unfavorable decision, ruling or finding may or would adversely affect Lessee or the
transactions described in the Project Documents.

(d) The Project Documents to which it is a party are (or, when executed, will
be) legal, valid and binding obligations of Lessee enforceable against Lessee in accordance
with their respective temis, except as such terms may be limited by laws affecting
creditors' rights generally.

(e) The Project when completed will represent an aggregate Minimum
Investment (including exempt property) of not less than $5,000,000.

U) The Project when completed will employ not less than forty-five full-time
employees at an average annual wage (including benefits) of not less than $50,000.

[End of Article El]

ARTICLE HI
TERM, PROPERTY AND RENTAL

Section 3.1 Demise of the Premises.

Lessor demises and leases to Lessee, and Lessee leases from Lessor, the Project, subject
to Pennitted Encumbrances, at the rental set forth in this Article Ill and in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement.

CHAR? SI5)2v3 7



Section 3.2 Warranties of Title arid Condition of Project.

Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee or any other person for any damages resulting from
failure of or any defect in Lessor's title to the Project which interferes with, prevents or renders
burdensome the use or cecupancy of the Project or the compliance by Lessee with any of the
terms of this Agreement. No failure or defect in Lessor's title to any of the Project shall
tenninate this Agreement or entitle Lessee to any abatement, in whole or in part, of any of the
rental or any other sums to be paid by the Lessee pursuant to any of the tenus of this Agreement.

Lessee acknowledges that it has examined so much of the Project as is in existence on the
date of execution and delivery hereof, as well as title thereto, prior to the making of this
Agreement and is aware of the condition and state thereof as of the day of the execution hereof;
and accepts the same in said condition and state; that no warranties or representations as to the
condition or state thereof have been made by representatives of Lessor; and that Lessee in
entering into this Agreement is relying solely upon its own examination thereof and of any
Buildings, Equipment or Land which shall hereinafter become subject to the demise hereof.
Lessor makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to title to any of the Project or the
design, capabilities or condition of the Project or that it will be suitable for Lessee's purposes or
needs.

Section 3.3 Q_uiet Enjoyment.

Lessor covenants and agrees that Lessee, upon paying the Base Rent herein and upon
performing and observing the covenants, conditions and agreements hereof, shall and may
peaceably hold and enjoy the Project during the Lease Temi without any interruption or
disturbance, subject how-ever, to the tenns of this Agreement.

Section 3.4 Term.

This Agreement shall become effective upon the Commencement Date, and the leasehold
estate created herein shall then begin, and subject to the provisions hereof; including, without
limitation, Article XI, the leasehold estate shall continue in effect through the conclusion of the
twenty (20)-year period after the last portion of the Project is placed in service or until such time as
Lessor conveys the Project to Lessee at the direction of Lessee.

Section 3.5 Base Rent.

Rent payable by Lessee under this Agreement shall be equal to S 100.00 per year (herein
called the "Base Rent") commencing on August 1, 2005 and each August 1 thereafter during the
Lease Term.

Section 3.6 Additional Rent

In addition to Base Rent, Lessee will pay on demand, as additional rent, all other
amounts, liabilities and obligations which Lessee assumes or agrees to pay hereunder
(hereinafter collectively called "Additional Rent"). As part of the Additional Rent hereunder,
Lessee agrees to pay Administration Expenses to Lessor. Lessee shall pay such Administration
Expenses and indemnification payments pursuant to Section 6.4 of this Agreement when and as

CHAR2'815892v3 8



they shall become due, but in no event later than sixty (60) (lays alter receiving written notice
from Lessor specifying the nature of such expenseand requesting payment olsamiie.

Section 3.7 Certain Income Tax Matters.

It is the intention of the parties that ally tax benefits resultiiig 110111 ownership olthe Project
and any tax credit or comparable credit which may ever he available shall accrue to the benett of
Lessee, and Lessee may, and Lessor upon advice of counsel may, make any election and take other
action in accordance with the Code and the regulatmons prolnulg1ltcd thereunder as may he
necessary to entitle Lessee to have such benelit and credit.

[End of Article Ill]

cR\R: K I 5892v3 9



ARTICLE IV
PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION ANDABATEMENT

Section 4.1 Protection of Tax-Eiempt Status of the Project.

In order to ensure that the Project is not and will not become subject to State, county or
other local property taxes (or other similar or substitute taxes), Lessor and Lessee covenant that:

(a) all rights and privileges granted to Lessor and Lessee under this Agreement
or any other Project Document shall be exercised so that if any conflict between this
Section and any other provision in any document shall arise, then in that case, this Section
shall control;

(b) Lessor and Lessee have not committed or permitted and will not commit or
permit (as to any act over which either has control) any act which would cause the Project
to be subject to county or other local property taxes (or other similar or substitute taxes);
and

(c) Lessor and Lessee will not do anything to impair the identity of the Project
as a "project" in accordance with the Act.

Section 4.2 Rescission and Reversion in the Event of Termination.

In the event for any reason it should be conclusively and finally determined by a court of
competent jurisdiction that the Project is subject to State, county, or other local property taxes (or
other similar or substitute taxes), then the provisions of Sections 11.2 and 11.3 hereof shall
apply.

[End of Article IV]

CRAR2\815892v3 I o



ARTICLE V
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX PAYMENT; IMPROVEMENT COST CREDFI'

Section 5.1 Fee in Lieu of Tax; Impositions.

Lessor agrees that from and after the date that any part ofthe Project is placed in service and
titled in Lessor, Lessee may make fee in lieu of tax payments (the "Fee") in the amounts set forth in
this Section 5.1 at the times and places, and in the same nmnner and subject to the same penalty
assessments as prescribed by Lessor or the Department for ad valorein taxes. The amount of such
annual Fee payments as provided in Section 12-44-50 of the Act arc as follows:

(a) the Fee \vill he paid to Lessor as required imder this Agreement;

(b) the Fee on each part of the Project shall be calculated on the basis of an
assessment ratio of six percent (6%);

(c) the Fee on each part of the Project shall be payable in twenty (20) annual
installments beginning on December31 of the year succeeding ihe year in which each pad
of the Project is placed in service by Lessee, with the first installment for the part of the
Project placed in service in 2004 being due on January IS, 2006;

(d) the Fee on each part of the Project shall he calculated on the basis of a fixed
millage rate of385.814 mills, which is the cumulative property tax inillage i-ate applicable at
the site of the Project as of June 30, 2003;

(e) the total Fee on all parts of the Project \vill be calculated as provided in
Section 12-44-50(A) of the Code, taking into consideration changes in and additions to the
investment in the Project, and property which has been disposed o1 or other factors which
under the Act affect the calculation of Fee pa)ments; and

(0 the Fee shall be available for a twenty (20)-year period beginning on the last
day of the property tax year during which each part of the Project is placed in service by
Lessee. At the conclusion of the twenty (20)-year period after each part of the Project is
placed in service, and until such time as the Project is conveyed to Lessee by Lessor, Lessee
shall pay a fee to Lessor on such part ofthe Project equal to the property taxes that would he
due on such part if it were taxable.

Section 5.2 Taxes, Utilities and Other Governmental Charges.

Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that: (a) pursuant to the Act, no part of the Project owned
by Lessor will be subject to ad valorem taxation in the State but will be subject to fees in lieu of
taxes as provided for in Section 5.1 of this Agreement; and (b) under present law, the income and
profits (if any) of Lessor from the Project are not subject to either Federal or South Carolina
income taxation and under present law there is no tax imposed upon leasehold estates in the
State. Ho\vever, in addition to the Fee referred to in Section 5.1 hereof and any other taxes and
governmental charges that may lawfully be assessed, levied or imposed against it, Lessee will
pay as the same respectively become due: (i) all taxes and governmental charges of any kind
whatsoever that may he lawfully assessed, levied or imposed against Lessor with respect to the

LHAR2u i 58920 1 1



Project or any machinery, equipment or other property thstafled or brought by Lessee therein or
thereon; (ii) all utility 2nd other charges incuiTed in the operation, maintenance, use and
occupancy of the Project; and (iii) all assessments and charges ]awfully made by any
governmental body for public improvement to the Project. If Lessee shall contest any such tax,
assessment, lien or charge, excepting the payment in lieu of taxes referred to in Section 5.1
hereoC then, as long as any such contest does not result in a lien against the Project which has
not been bonded to the r!asonable satisfaction of Lessor (or against the consequences of which
lien Lessee has not provided adequate security of such character as may be acceptable to Lessor),
such action by Lesscc shall not be considered as a breach by it of any of its covenants under this
Agreement while the aclion to contest such tax, assessment, lien or charge remains pending;
provided, at the time of the execution of this Agreement no tax or charge which is at such time
due and payable as described in (i) hereinabove is kno\vn to exist.

Section 5.3 Fee Payment Secured by Tax Lien.

Lessor's right to receive the Fee payments hereunder shall have ri first-priority lien status
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the Act and Chapters 4,49, 51, 53 and 54of Title 12
of the State Code.

[End of Article V]

CHAR2\815i9:v3 12



ARTICLE VI
MAINTENANCE, MODIFICATIONS, IMPOSITIONS AND INSURANCE

Section 6.1 Maintenance and Modifications of Premises by Eessee.

(a) Lessee agrees that during the Lease Term it will at its own expense
(i) keep the Premises in reasonably safe condition as its operations shall pennit and
(ii) keep the 3w I dmg and the Equipment and all other ml pro\Tements Forming a part of
the Premises in good repair and in good operating condition, making fioin time to time all
necessary repairs thereto and renewals and replacements thereof as Lessee (leeins
appropriate in its sole and absolute discretion.

(b) Lessee may from time to time, in its sole discretion and at its own
expense, make any additions or modifications to the Premises, including installation of
such additional machinery, equipment, furniture or fixtures in the Building or on the
Land, which it may deem desirable for its business purposes. All fixtures and
substitutions, additions, or modifications of Equipment so installed by Lessee shall
automatically become the sole property of Lessor (other than an interest of a serured
party) and shall he subject to each tern] and provision of this Agreement.

(e) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act:

(i) Replacement Property is not required to serve the same function as
the property it is replacing.

(ii) Replacenlent Property shall he deemed to replace the oldest
property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is disposed of in the
same property tax year as the Replacement Property is placed in service.

(iii) Replacement Property shall qualify for the Fee only to the extent
of the original income-tax basis of the property in which is being disposed of in
the same property tax year.

(iv) More than one piece of Replacement Property can replace a single
piece of property.

(v) To the extent that the income-tax basis of the Replacement
Property exceeds the original income-tax basis of the property which it is
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the
exemption for economic development property were not allowed.

(vi) Replacement Property is entitled to the Fee payment for the pei-iod
of time remaining under this Agreement for the property which it is replacing

(vii) The Replacement Property shall he recorded by Lessee using its
income-tax basis, and the Fee calculated pursuant to Section 5.1.

rTIAIC\SI%92 13



(d) Lessee may in good faith contest any mechanics or other liens filed or
established againsi the Premises, and in such event may permit the items so contested to
remain undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of such contest and any appeal
therefrom.

Section 6.2 Removal of Equipment.

Lessor shall not he under any obligation to renew, repair or ieplace any inadequate,
obsolete, worn-out, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary Equipment. In any instance where
Lessee in its sole discretion determines that any items of Equipment have become inadequate,
obsolete, worn-out, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary, Lessee may remove such items oF
Equipment from the Premises and (on behalf of Lessor) sell, trade-in, exchange or otherwise
dispose of them (as a whole or in part) without any responsibility or accountability to Lessor
therefor.

Upon the removal of any Equipment in accordance with the preeding provisions of this
Section, such Equipment shall no longer be considered part of the Premises. Whenever any
removal occurs, Lessor shall, upon the request of Lessee, promptly take such steps and execute
and deliver such instruments as may be specified by Lessee to effectively transfer to Lessee or its
designee Lessor's interest in the Equipment removed.

Section 6.3 Insurance Required.

(a) Lessee shall keep the Premises continuously insuied by self-insurance or
by policy against such risks both as to type and limits of covei age as are customarily
insured against by Lessee with respect to assets of Lessee which are comparable to the
Project.

(b) All insurance required hereunder shall be by self insurance or taken out
and maintained in generally recognized responsible insurance companies selected by
Lessee.

Section 6.4 Indemnity.

(a) Lessee shall and covenants and aees to indemnify, protect, defend and
save Lessor, including the members of the governing body of Lessor, its employees,
officers and agents (the "Indemnified Parties"), harmless from and against any arid all
claims, demands, liabilities and costs, including attorneys' fees, arising from damage or
injury of whatsoever kind or character, to property or persons, occurring or arising in any
manner from:

(i) any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any
person that may be occasioned by any cause pertaining to the Project or the use
thereof

(ii) any breach or default on the part of Lessee in the performance of
any of its obligations hereunder;

CflAR2SI5S923 14



(iii) any material violation by Lessee of law, ordinance or regulation
affecting the Property, or

(iv) any act of negligence, gross negligence, liaud, misrepresentation
or intentional misconduct by Lessee.

(b) Notwithstanding the fbrcgoi ng, Lessee shall not i ndcmnif' the Indeni n fled
Parties from any act(s) of aross negligence, fraud, intentional misconduct, or bad Faith hy
the thdemnificd Parties.

(e) Au hdemnified Party shall, promptly after receipt of notice of the
commencement of any action against it in respect of which indemnification will he sought
against Lessee pursuant to this Section 6.4, notify Lessee in writing of the commencement
thereof. In case any such action shall he brought against an Indemnified Party, Lessee may,
or if requested by the Indemnified Party shall, participate therein or assume the delbnse
thereof with counsel of Lessee's choosing

(d) In no event shall Lessee be liable for any compromise or settlement of claim
under this Section 6.4 consummated or effected without its prior vntten consent. The
provisions of this Section 6.4 shall pertain only to the transaction contemplated under this
Aeement hut shall in any event survive the termination of this Agreement.

[End of Article VIJ

CIIAR23 15Y92\ 15



ARTICLE WI
DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION

Section 7.1 Damage and Destruction.

If the Project is destroyed (in whole or in part) or is damaged by lire or other casualty and
the continued operation of the Project is in the judgment of Lessee thereby made impracticable,
uneconomical or undesirable for any reason, Lessee may, at its option (to be exercised in its sole
and absolute discretion), promptly repair, rebuild or restore the property damaged with such
changes, alterations and modifications (including the substitution and addition of other property)
as may he desired by Lessee.

Any balance of insurance proceeds remaining after payment of all tile costs of any repair,
rebuilding or restoration shall be paid to Lessee.

Lessee shall control all negotiations with all relevant insurance companies relative to the
settlement of any and all insurance claims relating to any damage to the Project.

Section 7.2 jghts of Parties in Event of Condenination.

(a) if during the Lease Term title to all or a substantial portion of the Project
shall be taken or condemned by a competent authority for any public use or purpose, then
this Agreement shall terminate as of the date of vesting of title in such authority aiid the
Base Rent shall be paid to and adjusted as of that day. In that event, thc condemnation
award shall be paid to Lessee. For the purposes of this Article Vll, "all or a substantial
portion of the Project" shall be deemed to mean a taking of all of the Premises or a taking
of such substantial portion of the Premises that Lessee, as determined by Lessee in its sole
discretion, cannot reasonably operate in a manner acceptable to Lessee. Lessor agrees that
it will not voluntarily accept, without the prior approval of Lessee, any condemnation
award, and Lessor agrees that it will cooperate with Lessee with the end in view of
obtaining the maximum justifiable condemnation award.

(b) if less than a substantial portion of the Project (defined to mean any taking
or condemnation that is not of "all or a substantial portion of the Project" (as defined in
subparagraph (a) of this Section 7.2)) shall be taken or condemned by a competent
authority for any public use or purpose, the obligations of either party under this
Agreement shall not be affected or reduced in any way, and

(i) If any part of the Buildings or Equipment comprising the Project is
taken or ccinden-med, Lessee, in its discretion, may repair, rebuild or restore as it
deems necessary or appropriate; and

(ii) The entire condemnation award shall be paid to Lessee, and Lessor
hereby assiis the same to Lessee for the use of Lessee in repairing and rebuilding
as provided in (i) above.

CHAR28 I 5923
1 6



Section 7.3 Right of tessee to Participate in Condemnation Proceedings.

Lessee shall control any and all negotiations or condenmation proceedings and shall have
the tight to resist or defend any and all condemnation proceedings and to make any presentation
or conduct any proceeding which in its discretion is necessary or desirable to obtain any proper
rebel and, lithe condemnation is concluded, to obtain the maximum award justi lied by the
taR ing

Section 7.4 Lessor's Covenant Not to Condemn.

Lessor covenants that, except to the extent reasonably deemed a necessity by Lessor to
perorni essential governmental iiinetions under its sovereign power, it will not take or condemn
any part olthe Premises, or attempt to do so, without the prior wntten consent of Lessee.

[End of Article VU]

Cl IA 112 IQ23 I 7



ARTICLE viii
SPECIAL COVENANTS

Section 8.1 No Warranty of Condition or Suitability by Lessor.

Lessor makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to the condition of the Project or
that they will be suitable for Lessee's purposes or needs. Lessee releases Lessor from, agrees
that Lessor shall not be liable for, and agrees to hold Lessor harmless against, any loss or damage
to property or any injury to or death of any person that may be occasioned by any negligent or
willful act or omission of Lessee relating to the Project or the use thereof. The provisions of this
Section shall pertain only to the transaction contemplated hereunder but shall in any event
survive any termination hereof.

Section 8.2 Service of Process in the State.

Lessee acknowledges and agrees that its entry into this Agreement is an action subjecting
it to the personal jurisdiction of the courts of the State and that service of process upon Lessee
may be effected by servire upon Lessee as provided under Rule 4(d)(3) of the South Carolina
Rules of Civil Procedure, or any successor provision.

Section 8.3 No Annexation.

Lessor covenants not to consent to the annexation of any part of the Project and
acknowledges and agrees that annexation of any part of the Project shall be subject to the express
written consent of Lessee.

Section 8.4 Granting of Easements or Restrictive Covenants; Entering into
Agreements.

Lessee may, at its sole discretion at any time or times during the Lease Term, grant
easements, licenses, rights of way (including the dedication of public highways), restrictive
covenants, and other righis or privileges in the nature of easements or restrictive covenants with
respect to any property included in the Premises, or Lessee may, at its sole discretion, release
existing easements, licenses, rights of way, covenants, and other rights or privileges with or
without consideration, and Lessor agrees that it shall promptly execute and deliver any instrument
necessary or appropriate to confirm and grant or release any such easement, license, right of way,
covenant, or other right or privilege. In addition, Lessee shall have the unfettered right to enter
into any agreement that it deems necessary or advisable in connection with the operations
conducted on the Premises.

Section 8.5 Maintenance of Corporate Existence.

Lessee agrees during the Lease Tenn it will maintain its separate corporate existence, will
not dissolve or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets, except as provided
pursuant to Section 9.1 hereof, and will not consolidate with or merge into any other entity
without the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed; provided, however, that in the event of a consolidation or merger, this
Section 8.5 shall not apply if the successor entity agrees to assume this Agreement.

CRAR2\Sm5S9:v3 18



Section 8.6 Lessor Undcrtakiiigs.

Lessor will perform such other acts and adopt such further proceedings as may he
necessary or appropriate to liiithfnlly implement its covenants and to consummate the proposed
financing, including but not limited to the execution of the Security Agreement to Lessee in
order to secure Lessor's obligation to convey the Project to Lessee at the termination of this
Agreement as described in Section 11 .4 or upon Lessee's exercise of an option to acquire legal
title to the Project as described in Section 11.3.

Section 8.7 Records and Reports, Non-Disclosure.

Lessee agrees to maintain complete books and records accounting for the acquisition,
financing, construction and operation of the Proj cct. Such books and records shall:

(i) permit ready identification of the Proj eet and components thercof;

(ii) confirm the dates on \\ hich each pad of the Project was placed in service;
and

(iii) include copies of all filings made by Lessee with the County Auditor, the
County Assessor or the Department with respect to property placed ai service as part of
the Project.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Lessee may designate with
respect to any filings or reports delivered to Lessor pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement,
or segments thereof, that Lessee believes contain proprietary, confidential or trade secret matters.
Except as required by the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act ("SCFO[A"), the County
Council, Lessor, its officers and employees shall not disclose any such confldcntiM information
regarding the Project, the Premises, lessee, Lessee's operations and manufacturing processes,
and any other competitively sensitive infonnation which is not generally and independently
known by the public, without the prior written authorization of Lessee. Lessor shall notify
Lessee in the event of Lessor's receipt of any SCFOIA request concerning the aforesaid
confidential information and, to the extent permitted by law, will not respond to such request
until such time as Lessee has reviewed the request and taken any action authorized by law to
prevent its disclosure. If Lessee iiiils to act to prevent any disclosure of such information under
the SCFOTA within ten (10) days after Lessee's receipt of notice of such request, Lessor may
provide such information as in its judgement is required to comply \vith such law and Lessor will
have no liability to Lessee in connection therewith.

Section 8.8 Compliance with Law's.

Lessee shall conduct the operation of the Project in all material respects in compliance
with all applicable federal, state, local and municipal laws; provided, however, that it shall not be
considered a breach of this Section if Lessee fails to comply with any law and such failure does
not have a material adverse effect on Lessor.

[End of Article VIII]

CHAR2'] S92v3 1 9



ARTICLE IX
ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, PLEDGING AND SELLING;
REDEMPTION; RENT PREPAflIENT AND ABATEMENT

Section 9.1 Assignment, Subleasing and Pledging.

Lessee may not assign this Agreement or sublet the Premises or any part thereof
without the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) Lessee shall have the right to
assign this Agreement or sublet the Premises or any party thereof to an alliliate of Lessee
without Lessor consent, and (ii) no assignment or subletting and no dealings or transactions
between Lessor and any sublessee or assignee shall relieve Lessee of any of its obligations
under this Agreement, Lessee shall remain as fully bound as though no assignment or
subletting had been made, and performance by any assignee or sublessee shall be considered as
performance pro lanto by Lessee.

Section 9.2 Restrictions on Sale, Mortgage or otherConveyance of Premises by
Lessor.

Lessor agrees that it will not sell, assign, mortgage, pledge, transfer or convey the
Premises during the Lease Term, except as specifically provided in this Agreement.

Section 9.3 Prepayment of Rents.

There is expressly reserved to Lessee the right, and Lessee is authorized and permitted, at
any time it may choose, to prepay all or any part of the rents payable under Section 3.5hereof

[End of Article D(J

Ci-iAR2\8l5892O 20



ARTICLE X
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.1 Events of Default Defined.

The following shall be "events of default" under this Agreement and the terms "event of
default" or "default" shall mean, whenever they are used in this Agreement, any one or more of
the following events:

(a) Failure by Lessee to pay any part of the Base Rent, Additional Rent or Fee
hereunder when due and continuation of said failure for a period of thirty (30) days after
notice of the same has been provided to Lessee by Lessor.

(h) Failure by Lessee to observe and perform any material covenant, condition
or agreement on its part to be observed or performed (including without limitation that set
forth in Section 2.2ffl), other than as referred to in subsection (a) oftliis Section 10.1, for
a period of ninety (90) days afler written notice of the same has been provided to Lessee
by Lessor, specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless Lessor shall
agree in writing to an extension of such time pnor to its expiration; provided, however,
that if such failure cannot reasonably be remedied within ninety (90) (lays and if Lessee
has within the ninety (90)-day period begun a good faith effort to cure such failure,
Lessee should have such time as reasonably necessary to cure such fiiilurc.

(c) Lessee shall file a voluntary petition seeking an order for relief in
bankruptcy, or shall be adjudicated insolvent, or shall file any petition or commence a
case seeking any reorganization, composition, readjustment, liquidation or similar order
for relief or relief for itself under any present or future statute, law or regulation, or shall
seek or consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of any receiver or liquidator of l.essee
or of the Project. or shall make any general assignment for the benefit of creditors.

(d) A petition shall he filed or a ease shall be commenced against Lessee
seeking an order for relief in bankruptcy or any reorganization, composition,
readjustment, liquidation or similar relief tinder any present or future statute, law or
regulation, and shall remain undismissed or unstayed for an aggregate of one hundred
eighty (ISO) days or if any receiver or liquidator of Lessee or of all or any substantial part
of its properties or of the Project shall be appointed without the consent or acquiescence
of Lessee and such appointment shall remain unvacated or umistayed for an aggregate of
one hundred eighty (180) days.

'ftc foregoing provisions of Section 10.1, except Section It). 1(a), are subject to the
following limitations: if by reason offorce majeure Lessee is unable iii whole or in part to carry
out its agreements on its part herein contained, Lessee shall not be deemed in default during the
continuance of such inability. The term "force ma/cure" as used herein shall mean, without
liniitation, the following: acts of God, strikes, lockouts or other induslrial disturbances; acts of
public enemies, orders of any kind of the government of the United States or of the State or any
of their respective departmenls, agencies, or officials, or any civil or military authority;
insurrections, riots; epidemics; landslides; lightning, earthquake; Fire; hurricanes; storms; floods;

r}LAR2\s}5892v3 21



\vashouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; explosions;
breakage or accident to machinery, transmission pipcs or canals; partial or entire failure of
utilities; or any other like cause or evcnt not rcasonably within the control of Lcssee.

Section 10.2 Remedies on Default.

Whenever any event of default shall happen, Lessor may take any of the following
remedial steps:

(a) Whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to
collect the Base Rent, Additional Rent, Fcc and ally other amounts payable by Lessee
hereunder, then due and thereafter to become due, or to enforce performance and
observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of Lessee under this Agreement.

(b) Upon ninety (90) days' written notice to Lessee and Lessee's failure to
cure such event of default, terminate this Agreement.

Section 10.3 Remedies Not Exclusive.

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Lessor is intended to be exclusive of any
other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and
shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafTer
existing at law or in equity or by statute. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power
shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof but any such
right or power may be exercised from time to time as often as may be deemed expedient.

Section 10.4 Equitable Relief.

Lessor and Lessee shall each be entitled to specific perfonnance and injunctive or other
appropriate equitable relief for any breach or threatened breach of any of the provisions of this
Agreement, notwithstanding the availability of an adequate remedy at law, and each party hereby
waives the right to raise such defense in any proceeding in equity.

[End of Article X]

CI-iAC\S 22



ARTICLE XI

OPTIONS IN FAVOR OF LESSEE

Section 11.1 Option to Terminate Lease.

Notwithstanding the occurrence of an event of default as described iii Section 10.1

hereo from time to time and at any time Lessee may terminate this Agreement in whole or in
part by giving at least thirty (30) days' written notice to Lessor and by paying to Lessor the
amount sufficient to pay all of the Base Rent and Additional Rent, if ally, payable to Lessor
under Sections 3.5 and 3.6 for the balance of the Lease 'lemi. Upon termination pursuant to this
Section 11.1, Lessee shall elect in its sole and exclusive discretion to either:

(a) continue to pay to Lessor the Fee pursuant to an agreement ni titual ly
agreed upon by Lessor and Lessee which shall preserve the negotiated Fee payments and
other rights, benefits and obligations substantially in the form contained in Article V
hereof as well as the Additional Rent and nidenmity contemplated by Sections 3 6 and
6.4, respectively; or

(b) From time to time and at any time upon at least thirty (30) days' notice,
Lessee may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part by paying to Lessor the
amonnts specified in Section 4.4 hereoF Upon tennination of this Agreement and the
conveyance referred to in Section 13.3 hereoC Lessee, as owner of the Building and
Equipment, will become liable for ad valorein property taxes on the Building and
Equipment.

Section 11.2 Option to Acquire Legal 'title.

Lessee shall at all times, and from time to time, including during the continuance of an
Event of Default, have the option to purchase all or any portion of the Premises for a purchase
price of ten dollars ($10.00) together with all reasonable costs, fees and expenses of Lessor in
connection with such sale and together with alt amounts due to Lessor under this Agreement
and the other Project Documents. Lessor, through its County Council, has expressly
determined, and by the granting of this option does reaffirm, that this option to purchase is iii
the best interest of Lessor and in furtherance of the purpose of the Act

Section 11.3 Conveyance on Exercise of Option to Acquire Legal Title.

(a) At the closing of the purchase pursuant to the exercise of any option to
acquire legal title granted herein, Lessor will upon receipt of the purchase price deliver to
Lessee a limited warranty deed for the property being acquired, as such property then
exists, subject to the following: (i) those liens and encumbrances (if any) to which title to
said property was subject when conveyed to Lessor; (ii) those liens and encumbrances
created by Lessee or to the creation or suffering of which Lessee consented; (iii) those
liens and encumbrances resulting from the Ilimlure of Lessee to perform or observe any of
the agreements on its part contained in this Agreement; (iv) Pennitted Encumbrances
other than this Agreement; and (v) the rights and title of the condemning authority Vvitli
iespeet to Section 7.2(a) hereof

Cl!AR?'S]5892\-3 23



(b) Lessee shall pay all reasonable expenses of Lessor and all other taxes, fees
and charges incident to any conveyance, including expenses of document preparation,
any escrow Ices, iecording fees mid any applicable federal, Slate and local taxes and the
like.

Section 11.4 Conveyance on Termination of Agreement.

At the termination of the Lease Term and upon payment in full cf all rents and Fees due
hereunder, Lessor shall reconvey the Premises to Lessee by a limited warranty deed conveying to
Lessee title to the Premises subject to the following: (i) those liens and encumbrances (if any) to
which title to the Premises was subject when conveyed to Lessor; (ii) those liens and
encumbrances created by Lessee or to the creation or suffering of which Lessee consented;
(iii) those liens and encumbrances resulting from the failure of Lessee to perform or observe any
of the agreements on its part contained in this Agreement; and (iv) Permitted Encumbrances
other than this Agreement.

Section 11.5 Qtion to Extend.

If Lessee pays the rentals herein reserved to Lessor and is riot otherwise in default
hereunder, Lessee shall have the option, with the prior written consent of Lessor which shall not
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, to extend this Agreement for additional
live (5)-year periods, terminable at any time by Lessee; provided, however, that an appropriate
instrument evidencing the exercise of such option shall be executed hy Lessor and Lessee and
recorded in the same manner as this Agreement, and provided thither that this Agreement shall
not be renewed or extended for any greater period than permitted by applicable law. In addition
to the other amounts as may be payable hereunder, the Basic Rent required to be paid by Lessee
to Lessor during such additional term or terms shall be ten dollars ($10.00) per year, payable
January 1 of each year.

Section 11.6 Partial Releases.

To the extent that Lessee is entitled to cause the release of any portion of the Land or the
Equipment pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Lessee, in addition to complying with the
other applicable provisions of this Agreement, shall cause to be prepared, as necessary, a deed or
hills of sale with respect to such portion of the Land or the Equipment to he acquired by Lessee.
Lessee shall provide, in the case of Equipment, appropriate descriptions of the property to be
conveyed, and in the case of the Land, the appropriate legal descriptions. Thereafter, Lessor
shall as necessary date, execute and deliver to Lessee the deed(s) or bills of sale, as the ease may
be.

[End of Article Xi]

CH:\R2\S15S92v3 24



A_RTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 12.1 Notices.

All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall he given and shall be
deemed given when provided by facsimile transmission to the applicable party at the facsimile
number set forth below, with such transmission being promptly followed by duly mailing the
same to such party by registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as
lb II ows:

If intended for the Lessee:

Nueor Corporation
2100 Rex ford Road
Charlotte, NC 28211
Attention: ChiefFinancial Officer
Facsimile Number (704) 366-4208

arid

Nucor Corporation
Post Office Box 2259
Mount Pleasant, SC 29643
Attention: General Manager
Facsimile Number (803) 336-6108

If intended liar the Lessor:

Lexington County
212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072
Attention County Administrator
Facsimile Number (803) 359-8101

With a copy to:

Lexington County
2 1 2 South Lake Drive
Lexington. SC 29072
Attention: County Attorney

Lessor and Lessee may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different
addi-ess to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent.

aTiAicnls:3 25



Section 12.2 Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall he binding upon Lessor, Lessee and
their respective successors and assigns, subject, however, to the limitations contained in Section
9. 1 hereof.

Section 12.3 Rescission and Severability.

hi the event that the Act or the fee-in-lieu-oftaxes arrangement described in
Section 5.1 hereof is ever detennined to be invalid in its entirety, the parties hereby agree that
all transactions described in or contemplated by the Project Documents shall be rescinded as of
the dates that they occurred and that the status quo ante shall be restored; otherwise, iii the
event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of
competent jurisdiction, that holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision of this Agreement.

Section 12.4 Amendments.

This Agreement may not be effectively amended, changed, modified, altered or
terminated without the concurring written consent of Lessor and Lessee.

Section 12.5 Execution of Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original and
all of which shall eonstitule but one and the same instrument.

Section 12.6 Captions.

The captions or headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way
define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions of this Agreement.

Section 12.7 Law Governing Construction of Agreement.

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the
State.

Section 12.8 Payment Dates.

Whenever any payment to be made hereunder shall be stated to be due on a Saturday, a
Sunday or a holiday, such payment shall be made on the next business day.

Section 12.9 Recapitulation Waived.

Lessor and Lessee agree to waive all recapitulation requirements for this Agreement as
provided for in Section 12-44-55(B) of the Act.

CHAiC'I592v3 26



Section 12.10 Inducement Agreement

The provisions of the Inducement and Millage Rate Agreement are incorporated hy
reference into this Agreement.

[ SIGNAl URES 13F0[N ON FOLLOW{N(; PAGE]

CI!AR2\815892x3 27



IN WiTNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed these presents as of the day
and year first above wnttcn.

(SEAL) LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA,
Lessor

By:___________________________
Chairman, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina

ATTEST:

By:__________________________
Clerk, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina

Witnesses:

CHAR2\S 592v3



PROBA1'E

STAl'E OF SOUTH CAROLI±'JA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

IERSONALLY appeared before me ___________________________________ who being
duly sworn says that (s)he saw ____________________________________as Chairman, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina, and ________________________________as Clerk, County Council
of Lexington County, South Carolina, sign, attest and seal the foregoing Lease—Purchase
Agreement and that (s)he witnessed the execution and delivery thereof as the act arid deed of
Lexington County, South Carolina

SWORN to before me this

____ (lay of , 2004.

_____________________________________ (L.S.)
Notary Public for the State of South Carolina
My Conirnission Expires________________________________



NUCOR CORPORATION,
Lessee

By: _________________
Name:
Ti tic:

Witnesses:

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF MECKLENBURG

I, _________________________________, a Notary Public for Meckleriburg County and State
aforesaid, certi& that __________________ personally came before me this day and
acknowledged that he is ______________ ofNUCOR CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation,
and that lie, as ________________, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument
on behal [of the corporation.

WITNESS my hand and official stamp or seal, this _____ day of , 2004

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: _________________

[Notarial stamp or seal]

CHAR2\ I 592,3



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTiON OF LAND

All thai certain piece, parcel or tract of land situated, lying and being near the Town oiSwansea,
in the County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, containing 111558 acres and being shown
and delineated n a plat prepared for Nueor Corporation by Enfinger & Associates, Prolbssional
Land Surveyors, dated February 15, 1996, and recorded as Slide 175, Plat 8, in the Oftice ofthe
Register of Deeds for Lexington County. Said tract being located on the eastern side of South
Carolina Highway S 32—102 and on the northern side of South Carolina Highway 3 and having
such boundaries and measurements as xviI 1 more lilly appear by reference to said plat which is
incoiiiorated herein and made a specific part hereo II

Being the same property conveyed to Lexington County, South Carolina by l'Tueor Corporation
by Deed dated as ofDecember 31, 1996, and recorded in Book 4084, Page 326, iii the Office of
the Register of Deeds for Lexington County, South Carolina.

Ci i\T2C I5i'I23



LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Between

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTI-1 CAROLINA
Lessor

and

NUCOR CORPORATION
Lessee

Dated as of December 14, 2004

This document prepared by:
Ernest S. DeLaney, ifi

Moore & Van Allen PLLC
100 North Tryon Street, Suite 4700

Charlotte, NC 28202-4003

(:irAR2\sIsso2—23



TABLE OF CON'I'ENTS

Pace

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUC'I'ION 2
Section 1 I Definitions 2
Section 1.2 Rules of Construction 4

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS, \VARRAN1TES AND COVENANTS 6
Section 2. I Representations, \ValTaflties and Covenants by Lesso
Section 2 2 Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Lessee 7

ARTICLE III TERM, PROPERTY AND RENTAL 7
Section 3.! Demise of the Premises 7
Section 3.2 Wai-rantics of Title and Condition olProject 8

Section 3 3 QLiiet Enjoyment 8
Section 3.4 'I'crm 8
Section 3.5 Base Rent $
Section 3.6 Add' tional Rent 8
Section 3.7 Certain Income Tax Matters 9

ARTICLE IV PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION AND ABATEMENT ... 10

Section 4.1 Protection of Tax-Exempt Status of the Project 10
Section 4 2 Rescission and Reversion in the Event olieniiinatiori 10

ARTICLE V FEE IN LIEU OF TAX PAYMENT; IMPROVEMENT COST CRED 1.1

Section 5.1 Fee in Lieu of Tax; Impositions Il
Section 5 2 Taxes, Uttlittes and Other Governmental Charges . 11

Section 5.3 Fee Payment Secured by Tax Lien 12

ARTICLE VI MAINTENANCE, MOD IFICATIONS, IMPOSITIONS AND INSURANCE .13
Section 6.1 Maintenance and Modifications of Premises by Lessee 13

Section 6.2 Removal of Equipment 14
Section 6.3 Insurance Required 14
Section 6.4 I ndem iii ty 14

ARTICLE Vi! DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION 16

Section 7.1 Damage and Destruction 16
Section 7.2 Rights of Parties in Event of Condemnation 16
Section 7.3 Right of Lessee to Participate in Condemnation Proceedings 17

Section 7.4 Lessor's Covenant Not to Condemn 17

ARTICLE VIII SPECIAL COVENANTS 18

Section 8.1 No Warranty of Condition or Suitability by Lessor 18

Section $ 2 Service of Process in the State 18
Section 8 3 No Annexation 18

Section S 4 Granting of Easements or Restrictive Covenants; Entering into
Agreements 18



Section 8.5 Maintenance of Corporate Existence .18
Section 8.6 Lessor Undertakings 19
Section 8.7 Records and Reports, Non-Disclosure 19
Section 8.8 Compliance with Laws 19

ARTICLE IX ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, PLEDGING AND SELLING;
REDEMPTION; RENT PREPAYMENT AM) ABATEMENT 20

Section 9.1 Assignment, Subleasing and Pledging 20
Section 9.2 Restrictions on Sale, Mortgage or other Conveyance of Premises by

Lesso 20
Section 9.3 Prepayment of Rents 20

ARTICLE X EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 21
Section 10.1 Events of Default Defined 21
Section 10.2 Remedies on Default 22
Section 10.3 Remedies Not Exclusive 22
Section 10.4 Equitable Relief 22

ARTICLE XI OPTIONS IN FAVOR OF LESSEE 23
Section 11.1 Option to Terminate Lease 23
Section 11.2 Option to Acquire Legal Title 23
Section 11.3 Conveyance on Exercise of Option to Acquire Legal Title 23
Section 11.4 Conveyance on Termination of Agreement 24
Section 11.5 Option to Extend 24
Section 11 .6 Partial Releases 24

ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS 25
Section 12.1 Notices 25
Section 12.2 Binding Effect 26
Section 12.3 Rescission and Severability 26
Section 12.4 Amendments 26
Section 12.5 Execution of Counterparts 26
Section 12.6 Captions 26
Section 12.7 Law Governing Construction of Agreement 26
Section 12.8 Payment Dates 26
Section 12.9 Reeapiiulation Waived 26
Sectiml2JLLnduceiejnaniXIiJkgçggrenent

Ci AIC\S15892—23 ii



EEASE-PURCUASE AGREEMENT

2 his LEASE-PURCI-IASE ACIRLEMENT (this "Acreement"). dated effective as of
___________________ 2004 (the "Commencement Date), is between LEXINGTON COUNTY.
SOUTH CAROLR4A (hereinafter called "I._cssor"), a political subdivision and body corporate of
the State of South Carolina, as lessor, and NUCOR CORPORATION (hereinafter called
"Lessee"), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, as
lessee

\V I 1' N K S S K 'F II:

WI-I EREAS, Lessor is authorized and empowered by the provisions of Title 12, Chapter
44, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976. as amended (the "Act"), to allow for the payment of
certain fees in Ecu of ad valorcm taxes with respect to industrial properties through which the
industrial development of the State \vi] I be promoted and trade developed ftc inducing new
industries to locate in the State and by encouraging industries now located in the State to expand
their investments and thus utilize and employ manpower and other resources of the State and
benefit the general public welfare of Lessor by providing services, employment, recreation or
other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and

WI-IEREAS, Lessee has constrLicted and operates a manufacturing facility tbr metal
buildings and components in Lexington County, South Carolina (the ''County''); and

WHEREAS, by action taken on December 14, 2004 (the "Official_Action"), the County
Council of Lexington County, South Carolina, agreed to provide certain incentives lo I essee
n tb respect to the modification and improvement during the Project Period (as hereinafter
defined) of its existing manufacturing facility through the acquisition, construction and
installation of real and personal property, including but not limited to, improvements, leasehold
improvements, buildings, machinery, equipment and furniture, which would constitute a pioject
within the meaning of the Act (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Project") and the
County recognized and identified the Project as economic development property 'within the
meaning of the Act; and

WHEREAS, in accoidance with the Official Action and an Induccnient and Millage Rate
Agreement by and between Lessor and Lessee dated December 14, 2004, and amended as of the
Commencement Date (the "Inducement and Millage Rate Aereement"). Lessor has agreed to
provide for fees in liea of taxes in the manner penuitted under Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Act;
and

WI-I EREAS, this lease Agreement shall constitute a ''fee agreement'' with'ui the nicani ng
of the Act; and

\\THERE&S the Project has been conveyed to Lessor by Lessee, and Lessor has agreed to
lease the Project to Lessee pursuant to the terms hereof; and

WI-IEREAS, Lessee and Lessor each have full right and lawful authority to enter into this
Lease Agreement and to perform and ohserve the provisions hereof oii their respective parts to
be perfonned and observed.

CHAR2a I



NOW, THERIFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements
hereinafler contained, Lessor and Lessee agree as follows (provided, that in the performance of
the agreements of Lessor herein contained, any obligation it may thereby incur for the payment
of money shall not be a general debt on its part, but shall be payable solely out of the proceeds
derived from this Agreement, and the insurance and condemnation awards as herein provided):

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUCT[ON

Section 1.1 Definitions.

hi addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined in this Agreement, the following
words and terms as used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings unless the context
or use clearly indicates another or different meaning or intent:

"Act" means Seclion 12-44-10, ci seq., of the State Code. References herein to various
sections of the Act are to corresponding sections in the State Code comprising the Act.

"Additional Rent" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.6 hereof

"Administration Expenses" means the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by
Lessor with respect to this Agreement, including reasonable attorneys' fees; provided, however,
that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until Lessor has furnished to
Lessee a statement in wriling indicating the amount of such expense and the reason it has been or
will be incurred.

"Authorized Lessee Representative" means the person or persons at the time designated
to act on behalf of Lessee by written certificate furnished to Lessor containing the specimen
signature(s) of such person(s) and signed on behalf of Lessee by an authorized officer. Such
eertificale may designate an alternate or alternates.

"Authorized Lessor Representative" means the Chairman or person or persons at the time
designated to act on behalf of Lessor by written certificate frimished to Lessee containing the
specimen signature(s) of ;ueh person(s) and signed on behalf of Lessor by the Chairman. Such
certificate may designate an alternate or alternates.

"Base Rent" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 3.5 of this Lease Agreement.

"Bill of Sale" means the document of that name dated as of or after the Commencement
Date by which Lessee transfers title to the Equipment to Lessor.

"Buildings" means those certain buildings or additions to buildings and fixtures forming
a part of the Project, and not constituting part of the Equipment, which are located on the Land,
as they may at any time exist.

"Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or legal holidayor a day
on which banking institutions in the city of Charlotte, North Carolina, arc authorized or required
by la\v to close.

CHAR2\H592—v3 7



"Chairman" means the Chairman of Coun' Council (or anyone authorized to act in his
stead whenever he is unavailable to act)

"Clerk" means the Clerk of County Council (or anyone authorized to act in her stead
whenever she is unavailable to act).

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as heretoibre or hereafter amended.

"County Assessor" means the Lexington County Assessor, or the holder of any successor
positioli.

"County Auditor" means the Lexington County Auditor, or the holder of any successor
position.

"County Council" means the County Council of Lexington County. South Carolina.

"Department" means the South Carolina Department of Revenue, or any successor
agency.

''Equipment'' means all personal property including, but not limited to, machinery and
equipment acquired, constructed, and installed in the Buildings and cons eyed to Lessor, but
specifically excluding any equipment covered by the 1996 Lease. To the extent pennitted by
law, such Eqmpment shall remain personal property regardless of the manner or fashion in which
such machinery and/or equipment is affixed to the premises.

"Fee" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 5 I hereof.

"Indemnified Parties" shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.4 hereof.

"Tndepcndcnt Counsel" means an attorney duly admitted to practice before the highest
court of any state in the United States of America who is not a lull—time employee of either
Lessor or Lessee.

"Inducement and Millage Rate Arcement" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Recitals hereof

"Land" means the real estate described in Exhibit .A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference.

"Lease Tenn" means the duration of lessee's right to use and occupy the Project as
siecified in Section 3.4 hereofi

"Lessee" means Nucor Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and any surviving, resulting
or transferee entity.

"Lessor" means Lexington Count\. South Carolina, a political subdivision and body
corporate under the la\vs of the State.

Ci 1ATC'S 5S'—d 3



"1996 Lease" means that certain Lease-Purchase Agreement between Lessee and Lessor
dated as of December 31, 1996, and recorded on March 14, 1997, in Book 4084, Page 334, in the
Office of the Register of Deeds of Lcxington County, South Carolina, as amended or
supplemented time to tini.

"Non-Project Improvements" means those buildings, structures aild fixtures on the Land.
other than the Project and any Replacement Property, as may become subject to this Agreement.

"Permitted Encumbrances" means any Permitted Encumbrance under the 1996 Lease.

"Premises" means all of the Land and improvements thereon, including the Buildings and
Equipment.

"Project" shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the recitals hereto.

"Project Documents" means the Inducement and Millage Rate Agreement, this
Agreement, the Bill of Sale, and the Security Agreement.

"Project Period" means the period which begins on January 1, 2004, and ends on
December 31, 2013.

"Replacement Proo" means all property installed in the buildings, improvements and
personal property theretofbre constituting part of the Project to the extent that Section 12-44-60
of the Act permits such property to be included in the Project.

"Security Agreement" means the Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated as of the
Commencement Date (including the related UCC Financing Statemeats filed in Lexington
County and with the Secretary of State of South Carolina) by which Lessor grants Lessee a
security interest in the Equipment for the purpose of securing the perfonmince of certain
obligations of Lessor to Lessee arising hereunder.

"State" means the State of South Carolina.

"State Code" means the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended.

Section 1.2 Rules of Construction.

Unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary, the following rules shall apply to the
construction of this Agreement:

(a) Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and
vice versa.

(b) 'ftc table of contents, captions and headings herein are solely for
convenience of refirence only and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement nor shall
they affect its meaning, construction or effect.

CIIAR2'8I52—3 4



(c) Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include
correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders, and words of the neuter gender
shall be deemed and construed to include correlative words of the masculine and
feminine genders.

(d) All references in tins Agreement to par icular Articles or Sections arc
references to Articles and Sections of this Agreement, unless otherwise indicated

I Irnd of Article I]

CFIAR'2 §S92—3 5



ARTICLE H
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

Section 2.1 presentations. Warranties and Covenants by Lessor.

Lessor makes the following representations and warranties to Lessee and covenants with
Lessee as follows:

(a) Lessor is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the
State and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to execute and fulfill
its obligations described in the Project Documents to which it is a party. Lessor has been
authorized by proper action of the County Council to execute and deliver such of the
Project Documents as require execution by it and to enter into and fully perform the
transactions required of it under those documents.

(b) Neither the execution and delivery of the Project Documents to which it is
a party, nor the consummation and performance of the transactions described in the
Project Documents to which it is a party, violate, conflict with or will result in a breach of
any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement, restriction, statute, law, rule,
order or regulation to which Lessor is now a party or by which it is bound.

(e) To the best of its knowledge, there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry
or investigation at law or in equity before or by any judicial or administrative court or
agency, public board or body, pending or threatened, against or affecting Lessor, wherein
an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding may or would adversely affect Lessor or the
consummation of the transactions described in the Project Documents to which it is a
party.

(d) Neither the existence of Lessor nor the rights of the Chairman or any
members of County Council to their offices is being contested and none of the
proceedings taken to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of such of the
Project Documents as require execution, delivery and performance by Lessor has been
repealed, revoked, amended or rescinded.

(e) The Project Documents to \vhich it is a party are (or, when executed, will
be) legal, valid and binding obligations of Lessor, enforceable against Lessor in
accordance with their respective terms, except as such terms may be limited by laws
affecting creditors' rights generally.

(0 The Chairman is fully authorized to execute the Project Documents to
which Lessor is a party on behalf of Lessor and the Clerk is authorized to attest to his
signature and to seal such Project Documents.

(g) Effective as of the Commencement Date, as an accommodation to assist
Lessee in achieving the intended benefits and purposes of the Act, Lessor acquired from
Lessee ownership of the Equipment and will authorize, and does hereby authorize, Lessee
to acquire and insiall any additional Equipment, and to do all other things deemed by
Lessee to be necessary or desirable in connection with the Premises.

6



Section 2.2 Representations, Warranties and Covenants of Lessee.

Lessee makes the following representations and \arranties to Lessor and covenants with
Lessor as follows:

(a) Lessee is a corporation existing under the laws of the State of Delaware
and is qLiali lied to do business in the State. Lessee has all necessai-y power to execute
and fulfill its obligations described in the Project Documents to which it is a party and
has been authorized to do so. Lessee has been authorized by proper action of Lessee to
execute and deliver this Lease Agreement. Lessee shall continue to he quah lied to do
business in the State during the lease Term.

(h) Neither the execution and delivety of tile Project Documents to which it is
a party nor the consummation and performance of the transactions described in the
Project Documents to which it is a party violate, conflict with, or 'ill result in a breach of
any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any agreement, restriction, statute, law, rule,
order or regulation to which Lessee is now a party or hy which it is hound.

(c) To the best of its knowledge, there is no action, suit, proceeding. inquiry
or investigation at law or in equity before or by any judicial or administrative court or
agency, public board or body, pending or threatened, against or afibeting Lessee wherein
an unflivorahle decision, ruling or finding may or would adversely afflict Lessee or the
transactions described in the Project Documents.

(d) The Project Documents to which it is a party are (or, when executed, will
he) legal, valid and binding obligations of Lessee enforceable against Lessee in
accordance with their respective terms, except as such terms may he limited by laws
affecting creditors' rights generally.

(c) The Project when completed will represent an aggregate Minimum
Investment (including exempt property) of not less than $5,000,000.

(I) Tile Project when completed will employ not less than !brty-fivc full—time
employees at an average annual wage (including benefits) of not less than $50,000.

[End ofArticic Ill

ARTICLE 111
TERM, PROPERTY AND RENTAL

Section 3.1 Demise of the Frernises.

Lessor demises and leases to Lessee, and Lessee leases from Lessor, the Project, subject
to Permitted Encumbrances, at the rental set forth iii this Article ILl and in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement.

CEiAR2\Si5S9—3MA 7



Section 3.2 Warranties of Title and Condition of Prolect.

Lessor shall not be liable to Lessee or any other person for any damages resulting from
failure of or any defect in Lessor's title to the Project which interferes with, prevents or renders
burdensome the use or occupancy of the Project or the compliance by Lessee with any of the
terms of this Agreement. No failure or defect in Lessor's title to any of the Project shall
terminate this AgreemenL or entitle Lessee to any abatement, in whole or in part, of any of the
rental or any other sums to be paid by the Lessee pursuant to any of the tenns of this Agreement.

Lessee acknowledges that it has examined so much of the Project as is in existence on the
date of execution and delivery hereof; as well as title thereto, prior to the making of this
Agreement and is aware of the condition and state thereof as of the day of the execution hereof;
and accepts the same in said condition and state; that no warranties or representations as to the
condition or state thereof have been made by representatives of Lessor; and that Lessee in
entering into this Agreement is relying solely upon its own examination thereof and of any
Buildings, Equipment or Land which shall hereinafter become subject to the demise hereof
Lessor makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to title to any of the Project or the
design, capabilities or condition of the Project or that it will be suitable for Lessee's purposes or
needs.

Section 3.3 Quiet Enjoyment.

Lessor covenants and agrees that Lessee, upon paying the Base Rent herein and upon
performing and observing the covenants, conditions and agreements hereof; shall and may
peaceably hold and enjoy the Project during the Lease Term without any interruption or
disturbance, subject however, to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 3.4 Term.

This Agreement shall become effective upon the Commencement Date, and the leasehold
estate created herein shall then begin, and subject to the provisions hereof; including, without
limitation, Article Xl, the leasehold estate shall continue in effect through the conclusion of the
twenty (20)-year period after the last portion of the Project is placed in service or until such time
as Lessor conveys the Project to Lessee at the direction of Lessee.

Section 3.5 Base Rent.

Rent payable by Lessee under this Agreement shall be equal to $100.00 per year (herein
called the "Base Rent") commencing on August 1, 2005 and each August 1 thereafter during the
Lease Term.

Section 3.6 Additional Rent

h addition to Base Rent, Lessee will pay on demand, as additional rent, all other
amounts, liabilities and obligations which Lessee assumes or agrees to pay hereunder
(hereinafter collectively called "Additional Rent"). As part of the Additional Rent hereunder,
Lessee agrees to pay Administration Expenses to Lessor. Lessee shall pay such Administration
Expenses and indenmification payments pursuant to Section 6.4 of this Agreement when and as

C1iAR28I5s92_ail
8



they shall become due, but in no event later than sixty (60) days afler receiving written notice
from Lessor specifying the nature of such expense and requesting payment of same.

Section 3.7 Certain Income Tax Matters.

It is the intention of the parties that any tax benefits resulting from ownership of the
Project and any tax credit or comparable credit which may ever he available shall accrue to the
benefit of Lessee, and Lessee may, and Lessor upon advice of counsel may, make any election
and take other action in accordance with the Code and the regulations promulgated therewider as
may be necessary to entitle Lessee to have such benefit and credit.

[End of Article III]

CIJAR231 592— 9



ARTICLE IV
PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION AND ABATEMENT

Section 4.1 Protection of Tax-Exempt Status of the Project.

In order to ensure that the Project is not and will not become subject to State, county or
other local property taxes (or other similar or substitute taxes), Lessor and Lessee covenant that:

(a) all rights and privileges granted to Lessor and Lessee under this
Agreement or any other Project Document shall be exercised so that if any conflict
between this Section and any other provision in any document shall arise, then in that
case, this Section shall control;

(b) Lessor and Lessee have not committed or permitted and will not commit
or pcnuit (as to any act over which either has control) any act which would cause the
Project to be subject to county or other local property taxes (or other similar or substitute
taxes); and

(c) Lessor and Lessee will not do anything to impair the identity olthe Project
as a "project" in accordance with the Act.

Section 4.2 Rescission and Reversion in the Event of Termination.

In the event for any reason it should be conclusively and finally detenmncd by a court of
competent jurisdiction that the Project is subject to State, county, or other local.property taxes (or
other siniilar or substitute taxes), then the provisions of Sections 11.2 and 11.3 hereof shall
apply.

[End of Article IV]

10



ARTICLE V
FEE tIN LIEU OF TAX PAYMENT; IMPROVEMENT COSt' CREI)l'I'

Section 5.1 Fee in Lieu of Tax: Impositions.

Lesso ragrees that from and alter the date that any part of the Project is placed iii service
and titled in 1 essor. I 'essee may make fee in lieu of tax payments (the Tee) in the amounts set
forth in this Section 3. I at the times and places, and in the same manner and subject to the same
penalty assessments as prescribed by Lessor or the Department for ad va/a/-cm taxes. The
amount olsuch annual Fee payments as provided in Section 12-44—50 of the Act arc as Follows:

(a) the Fee will be paid to Lessor as required under tIns Agreement;

(Li) the Fee on each part of the Project shall be calculated on the basis of an
assessment ratio of six percent (6%);

(c) the Fee on each part of the Project shall be payable iii twenty (20) annual
installments beginning on December 31 of the year succeeding the year in which each
part of the Project is placed in service by Lessee, with the first installment for the part of
the Project placed in service in 2004 being due on January 15, 2006;

(d) the Fee on each part of the Project shall he calculated on (lie basis of a
fixed niil lage rate of 385.814 mills, which is the cumulative property tax mi I age rate
applicable at the site of the Project as of June 30, 2003;

(e) the total Fee on all parts of the Project will be calculated as provided in
Section 12—44-50(A) of the Code, talung into consideration changes ni and additions to
flue investment in the Project, and property which has been disposed oC or other factors
which under the Act affect the calculation of Fee payments; and

(0 the Fee shall he available for a twenty (20)-year period beginning on the
last day of the property tax year during which each part of the Project is placed in service
by Lessee. At the conclusion of the twenty (20)—year period after each part of the Project
is placed in service, and until such time as the Project is conveyed to Lessee by Lessor,
lessee shall pay a fee to Lessor on such part of the Project equal to the property taxes
that would be due on such part if it were taxable.

Section 5.2 Taxes, Utilities and Other Covernmerital Charges.

Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that: (a) pursuant to the Act, no part of the Project owned
by Lessor will he subject to ad valorcin taxation in the State but will he subject to fees in lieu of
taxes as piovided For in Section 5.1 of this Agreement; and (h) under present law, the income and
profits (if any) of Lessor front the Project arc not subject to either Federal or South Carolina
income taxation and under present law there is no tax imposed upon leasehold estates in the
State 1-lowever, in addition to the Fee referred to in Section 51 hereof and any other taxes and
governniental charges that may lawfully be assessed, levied oi- imposed against it, Lessee will
pay as the sanie respectively become due: (i) all taxes and governmental charges of any kind
whatsoever that may he lawfully assessed. levied or imposed against Lessor with respect to the

ciIAFcu}5sQ2—3 11



Project or any machinery, equipment or other property installed or brought by Lessee therein or
thereon; (ii) all utility and other charges incurred in the operation, mathtenance, use and
occupancy of the Project; and (Hi) all assessments and charges ]awfiflly made by any
governmental body for public improvement to the Project. If Lessee shall contest any such tax,
assessment, lien or charge, excepting the payment in lieu of taxes referred to in Section 5.1
hereof, then, as long as any such contest does not result in a lien against the Project which has
not been bonded to the reasonable satisfaction of Lessor (or against the consequences of which
lien Lessee has not provided adequate security of such character as may he acceptable to Lessor),
such action by Lessee shall not be considered as a breach by it of any of its covenants under this
Agreement while the acttou to contest such tax, assessment, lien or cnarge remains pending;
provided, at the time of the execution of this Agreement no tax or charge which is at such time
due and payable as described in (i) hereinabove is known to exist.

Section 5.3 Fee Payment Secured by Tax Lien.

Lessor's right to receive the Fee payments hereunder shall have a first-priority lien status
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the Act and Chapters 4,49, 51, 53 and 54 of Title 12
of the State Code.

[End of Article VJ

CaAR2I5S92—33 12



ARTICLE VI
MAINTENANCE, MODIFICATIONS, IMPOSITIONS AND INSURANCE

Section 6.1 Maintenance and Modifications of Premises by Lessee.

(a) Lessee agrees that during the Lease Term it will at its own expense (i)
keep the Premises iii reasonably safe condition as its operations shall permit and (ii) keep
the Building and the Equipment and all other improvements forniing a part of the
Premises in good repair and in good operating condition, making from time to time all
necessary repairs thereto and renewals and replacements thereof as Lessee deems
appropriate in its sole and absolute discretion.

(b) Lessee may from time to time, in its sole discretion and at its own
expense, make any additions or modifications to the Premises, including instal!ation of
such additional machinery, equipment, furniture or lixtures in the Building or on the
Land, which it niay deem desirable for its business purposes. All !ixtures and
substitutions, additions, or modifications of Equipment so installed by Lessee shall
automatically become the sole property of Lessor (other than an interest of a secured
party) and shall be subject to each term and provision of this Agreement.

(c) Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act:

(i) Replacement Properly is not required to serve the same function as
the property it is replacing.

(ii) Replacement Property shall be deemed to replace the oldest
property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is disposed of iii the
same property tax year as the Replacement Property is placed in service.

(iii) Replacement Property shall qualif\' for the Fee only to the extent
of the original income-tax basis of the property in which is being disposed of in
tile same property tax year.

(iv) More than one piece of Replacement Property can ieplacc a single
piece of property.

(v) To the extent that the income-tax basis of the Replacement
Property exceeds the original income-tax basis of the property which it is
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the
exemption for economic development property \\ere not allowed.

(vi) Replacement Property is entitled to the Fee payment or the period
of time remaining under this Agreement for the property which it is replacing.

(vii) The Replacement Property shall he recorded by Lessee using its
income-tax basis, and the Fee calculated pursuant to Section 5.1.

c}iAR2S]5SY2—;3 13



(d) Lessee may in good faith contest any mechanics' or other liens filed or
established against the Premises, and iii such event may pennit the items so contested to
remain undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of such contest and any appeal
therefrom.

Section 6.2 Removal of Equipment.

Lessor shall not be under any obligation to renew, repair or replace any inadequate,
obsolete, worn-out, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary Equipment. In any instance where
Lessee in its sole discretion determines that any items of Equipment have become inadequate,
obsolete, worn-out, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary, Lessee may remove such items of
Equipment from the Premises and (on behalf of Lessor) sell, trade-in, exchange or otherwise
dispose of them (as a whole or in part) without any responsibility or accountability to Lessor
thercfor.

Upon the removal of any Equipmcnt in accordance with the preceding provisions of this
Section, such Equipment shall no longer be considered part of the Premises. Whenever any
removal occurs, Lessor shall, upon the request of Lessee, promptly take such steps and execute
and deliver such instruments as may be specified by Lessee to effectively transfer to Lessee or its
designee Lessor's interest in the Equipment removed.

Section 6.3 Insurance Required.

(a) Lessee shall keep the Premises continuously insured by self-insurance or
by policy against such risks both as to type and limits of coverage as are customarily
insured against by Lessee with respect to assets of Lessee which are comparable to the
Project.

(b) All insurance required hereunder shall be by self-insurance or taken out
and maintained in generally recognized responsible insurance companies selected by
Lessee.

Section 6.4 Indemnity.

(a) Lessee shall and covenants and aees to indemnify, protect, defend and
save Lessor, including the members of the governing body of Lessor, its employees,
officers and agents (the "Indemnified Parties"), harmless from and against any and all
claims, demands, liabilities and costs, including attorneys' fecs, arising from damage or
injury of whatsoever kind or character, to property or persons, occurring or arising in any
manner from:

(i) any loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any
person that may be occasioned by any cause pertaining to the Project or the use
thereof;

(ii) any breach or default on the part of Lessee in the performance of
any of its obligations hereunder;

CHAR2\8I5Q2—x3 14



(iii) any matenal violation by Lessee of law, ordinance or regulation
affecting the Propcrty, or

(iv) any act of negligence, gross negligence, fraud, misrepresentation
or intentional misconduct by Lessee.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall not indemnify the
Indenmified Parties from any act(s) of gross negligence, fraud, intentional misconduct, or
had fhith by the Tndemni fled Par ies.

(e) An Indemnified Party shall, promptly alter receipt of notice of the
commencement of any action against it in respect of which indemnification will be
sought against Lessee pursuant to this Section 6.4, notify Lessee in wflting of the
commencement thereof In case any such action shah be brought against an Indemnified
Party, Lessee may, or ii requested by the Indenmified Party shall, participate therein or
assume the defense thereof with counsel of Lessee's choosing.

(d) In no event shall Lessee be liable for any compromise or settlement of
claim under this Section 6.4 consummated or effected without its prior written consent.
The provisions of this Section 6 4 shall pertain only to the transaction contemplated under
this Agreement but shall in any event survive the termination of this Agreement.

LEnd of Article Vi]

(2PIAR2 'SI 5S92—43 1 5



ARTICLE VII
DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION

Section 7.1 Damage and Destruction.

if the Project is destroyed (in whole or in part) or is damaged by fire or other casualty and
the continued operation of the Project is in the judgment of Lessee thereby made impracticable,
uneconomical or undesirable for any reason, Lessee may, at its option (to be exercised h its sole
and absolute discretion), promptly repair, rebuild or restore the property damaged with such
changes, alterations and modifications (including the substitution and addition of other property)
as may be desired by Lessee.

Any balance of insurance proceeds remaining after payment of all the costs of any repair,
rebuilding or restoration shall be paid to Lessee.

Lessee shall control all negotiations with all relevant insurance companies relative to the
settlement of any and all insurance claims relating to any damage to the Project.

Section 7.2 Rights of Parties in Event of Condemnation.

(a) If during the Lease Term title to all or a substantial portion of the Project
shall be taken or condemned by a competent authority for any public use or purpose, then
this Agreement shall terminate as of the date of vesting of title in such authority and the
Base Rent shall be paid to and adjusted as of that day. In that event, the eondenmation
award shall be paid to Lessee. For the purposes of this Article VII, "all or a substantial
portion of the Project" shall be deemed to mean a taking of all of the Premises or a taking
of such substantial portion of the Premises that Lessee, as determined by Lessee in its
sole discretion, cannot reasonably operate in a maimer acceptable to Lessee. Lessor
agrees that it will not voluntarily accept, without the prior approval of Lessee, any
condenmation award, and Lessor agrees that it will cooperate with Lessee with the end in
view of obtaining the maximum justifiable condemnation award.

(b) If less than a substantial portion of the Project (deFined to mean any taking
or condemnation that is not of "all or a substantial portion of the Project" (as defined in
subparagraph (a) of this Section 7.2)) shall be taken or condemned by a competent
authority for any public use or purpose, the obligations of either party under this
Agreement shall not be affected or reduced in any way, and

(i) If any part of the Buildings or Equipment comprising the Project is
taken or condenmed, Lessee, in its discretion, may repair, rebuild or restore as it
deems necessary or appropriate; and

(ii) The entire condemnation award shall be paid to Lessee, and Lessor
hereby assigns the same to Lessee for the use of Lessee in repairing and
rebuilding as provided in (I) above.

CIIAR\8lSS92—33 16



Section 7.3 Right of tessce to Participate in Condemnation Proceedings.

Lessee shall control any and all negotiations or condemnation proceedings and shall have
We right to resist or defend any and all condemnation proceedings and to make any presentation
or conduct any proceeding which in its discretion is necessary or desirable to obtain any proper
relief and, if the condemnation is concluded, to obtain the maximum award justified by the
taking.

Section 7.4 Lessor's Covenant Not to Condemn.

Lessor covenants that, except to the extent reasonably deemed a necessity by Lessor to
perfonn esscntia governmental functions under its sovereign power, it will not take or condemn
any part of the Premises, or attempt to do so, without the prior written consent of Lessee.

[End of Article VU]

(IIAR2\S592—23 17



ARTICLE VIII
SPECIAL COVENANTS

Section 8.1 No Warranty of Condition or Suitability by Lessor.

Lessor makes no warranty, either express or implied, as to the condition of the Project or
that they will be suitable for Lessee's purposes or needs. Lessee releases Lessor from, agrees
that Lessor shall not be liable for, and agrees to hold Lessor harmless against, any loss or damage
to property or any hijury to or death of any person that may be occasioned by any negligent or
willful act or omission of Lessee relating to the Project or the use thereof The provisions of this
Section shall pertain only to the transaction contemplated hereunder but shall in any event
survive any termination hereof.

Section 8.2 Service of Process in the State.

Lessee acknowledges and agrees that its entry into this Agreement is an action subjecting
it to the personal jurisdiction of the courts of the State and that service of process upon Lessee
may he effected by service upon Lessee as provided under Rule 4(d)(3) of the South Carolina
Rules of Civil Procedure, or any successor provision.

Section 8.3 No Annexation.

Lessor covenants not to consent to the annexation of any part of the Project and
acknowledges and agrees that annexation of any part of the Project shall be subject to the express
written consent of Lessee.

Section 8.4 Granting of Eascmcnts or Restrictive Covenants; Entering into
gfeemen ts.

Lessee may, at its sole discretion at any time or times during the Lease Term, grant
easements, licenses, rights of way (including the dedication of public: highways), restrictive
covenants, and other rights or privileges in the nature of easements or restrictive covenants with
respect to any property included in the Premises, or Lessee may, at its sole discretion, release
existing easements, licenses, rights of way, covenants, and other rights or privileges with or
without consideration, and Lessor agrees that it shall promptly execute and deliver any
instrument necessary or appropriate to confirm and grant or release any such easement, license,
right of way, covenant, or other right or privilege. In addition, Lessee shall have the unfettered
right to enter into any agreement that it deems necessary or advisable in connection with the
operations conducted on the Premises.

Section 8.5 Maintenance of Corporate Existence.

Lessee agrees during the Lease Term it will maintain its separate corporate existence, will
not dissolve or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets, except as provided
pursuant to Section 9.1 hereof; and will not consolidate with or merge into any other entity
without the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed; provided, however, that in the event of a consolidation or merger, this
Section 8.5 shall not apply if the successor entity agrees to assume this Agreement.

(TIAR2gi5892—2,.3 18



Section 8.6 Lessor Undertakings.

Lessor will perform such other acts and adopt such further proceediigs as may he
necessary or appropnate to faithflully implement its covenants and to consummate the proposed
financing, including but not limited to the execution of the Security Agreement to Lessee in
order to secure Lessor's obligation to convey the Project to Lessee at the termination of this
Agreement as described in Section 11.4 or upon Lessee's exercise of an option to acquire legal
title to the Project as described in Section 11.3.

Section 8.7 Records and Reports, Non-Disclosure.

Lessee agrees to maintain complete hooks and records accounting for the acquisition,
financing, construction and operation of the Project. Such books and records shall

(i) pernrit ready identification of the Proj ect and components therco

(ii) confirm the dates on which each part of the Project was placed in serucc;
and

(iii) include copies of all filings nude by Lessee with the County Auditor, the
County Assessor or the Department with respect to property placed in sen'icc as part of
the Project.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Lessee may designate with
respect to ally filings or reports delivered to Lessor pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement,
or segments thereof, that Lessee believes contain proprietary, confidential or trade secret matters.
Except as required by the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act ("SCFOIA"), the County
Council, Lessor, ]ts officers and employees shall not disclose any such confidential information
regarding the Project. the Premises, Lessee, Lessees operations and manufacturing processes,
and any other competitively sensitive infonnation which is not generally and indcpcndently
known by the public, \vithout the prior written authorization of Lessee. Lessor shall notify
Lessee ill the event of Lessor's receipt of ally SCFOIA recluest concerning the aforesaid
confidential inlbrmation and, to the extent pcnllittcd by law, will not respond to such rcqLiest
until such time as Lessee has reviewed the request and taken aiiy action authorized by law to
prevent its disclosure. If Lessee fails to act to prevent any disclosure of such information uildcr
the SCEOIA within ten (10) days after Lessee's receipt of notice of such request, Lessor may
provide such information as in its judgement is required to comply with such law and lcssor will
have no liability to Lessee in connection therewith.

Section 8.8 Compliance with Laws.

Lessee shall conduct the operation of the Project in all material respects in compliance
with all applicable federal, state, local and iminicipal laws; provided, however, that it shall not be
coasidered a breach of this Section if Lessee fails to comply \vith any law and such failure does
not have a material adverse effect on Lessor.

[End of Article VIII]

19



ARTICLE IX
ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, PLEDGING AND SELLING;
REDEMPTION; RENT PREPAYMENT AND ABATEMENT

Section 9.1 Assignment, Subleasing and Pledging.

Lessee may not assign this Agreement or sublet the Premises or any part thereof
without the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned or delayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) Lessee shall have the right to
assign this Agreement or subkt the Premises or any party thereof to an affiliate of Lessee
without Lessor consent, and (ii) no assignment or subletting and no dealings or transactions
between Lessor and any sublessee or assignee shall relieve Lessee of any of its obligations
under this Agreement, Lessee shall remain as fully bound as though no assignment or
subletting had been made, and performance by any assignee or sublessee shall be considered as
performance pro tanto by Lessee.

Section 9.2 Restrictions on Sale, Mortgage or other Conveyance of Premises hy
Lessor.

Lessor agrees thai, it will not sell, assign, mortgage, pledge, iransfer or convey the
Premises during the Lease Term, except as specifically provided in this Agreement.

Section 9.3 Preavment of Rents.

There is expressly reserved to Lessee the right, and Lessee is authorized and permitted, at
any time it may choose, to prepay all or any part of the rents payable under Section 3.5 hereof

[End of Article lix]

C}JAR2\,S15892—il 20



ARTICLE X
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.1 Events of l)efault Defined.

The following shall be "events of default" under this Agreement and the terms "event of
(lelault" or "default" shall mean, whenever they are used in this Agreement, any one or more of
the lollowing events:

(a) Failure by Lessee to pay any part of the Base Rent, Additional Rent or Fee

hereunder when due and continuation of said failure for a period of thirty (30) (lays after
notice of the same has been provided to Lessee by Lessor.

(b) Failure by Lessee to observe and pert orni any material covenant, condition
or agreement on its part to be observed or perfon11edjjJulinaithuut linlitatiqiLthat set
forth in Section 2.29), other than as referred to in subsection (a) of this Section 10.1, for
a period of ninety (90) days after written notice of the same has been provided to Lessee
by Lessor, spcciing such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless Lessor shall
agree in writing to all extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however,
that if such failure cannot reasonably he remedied within ninety (90) days and if Lessee
has within the ninety (90)-day period begun a good faith effort to cure such liiilure,
Lessee should have such time as reasonably necessary to cure such failure

(c) Lessee shall file a voluntary petition seeking an order for relief in
bankruptcy, or shall be adjudicated insolvent, or shall file any petition or commence a
case seeking any reorganization, composition, readjustment, liquidation or similar order
for relief or relief for itself under any present or future statute, law or regulation, or shall
seek or consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of any receiver or liquidator of Lessee
or of the Project, or shall make any general assignment for the benefit of creditors.

(d) A petition shall be filed or a case shall he commenced against Lessee
seeking an order for relief in bankruptcy or any reorganization, composition.
readjustment, liquidation or similar relief under any present or future statute, law or
regulation, and shall remain undismissed or unstayed for an aggregate of one hundred
eighty (180) days or if any receiver or liquidator of I essec or of all or any substantial part
of its properties or of the Project shall be appointed without the consent or acquiescence
of Lessee and such appointment shall remain unvacated or unstayed for an aggregate of
one hundred eighty (180) days.

The foregoing provisions of Section 10.1, except Section 10.1(a), are subject to the
ibllo\ving limitations: mfhy reason of forcemujeure Lessee is unable in whole or in part to carry
out its agreements on its part herein contained, Lessee shall not he deemed in default during the
continuance of such inability. The term tforce niojetuc" as used herein shall mean, without
limitation, the following: acts of God, strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances; acts of
public enemies, orders of any kind of the government of the United States or of the State or any
of their respective departments, agencies, or officials, or any civil or military authority;
insurrections; riots; epidemics; landslides; lightning; earthquake; fire; hurricanes; storms, floods;

OE{AR2I.S02—2i 21



washouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; explosions;
breakage or accident to machinery, transmission pipes or canals; partial or entire failure of
utilities; or any other like cause or event not reasonably within the control of Lessee.

Section 10.2 Remedies on Default.

Whenever any event of dcfau]t shall happen, Lessor may take any of the following
remedial steps:

(a) Whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to
collect the Base Rent, Additional Rent, Fcc and any other amounts payable by Lessee
hereunder, then due and thereafter to become due, or to enfbrce performance and
observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of Lessee under this Agreement.

(b) Upon ninety (90) days' written notice to Lessee and Lessee's failure to
cure such event of default, terminate this Agreement.

Section 10.3 Remedies Not Exclusive.

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Lessor is intended to be exclusive of any
other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and
shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter
existing at law or in equily or by statute. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power
shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof but any such
right or power may be exercised from time to time as often as may be deemed expedient.

Section 10.4 jiitab1e Relief.

Lessor and Lessee shall each be entitled to specific performance and injunctive or other
appropriate equitable relief for any breach or threatened breach of any of the provisions of this
Agreement, notwithstanding the availability of an adequate remedy at law, and each party hereby
waives the right to raise such defense in any proceeding in equity.

[End of Article X]

CEL&R2\S15892—3i3



ARTICLE XI

OPTIONS IN FAVOR OF LESSEE

Section 11.1 Option to Terminate Lease.

Notwithstanding the occurrence of an event of delault as described iii Section 10.
hereof, from time to time and at any time Lessee may terminate this Agreement in whole or in
part by giving at least thirty (30) days' written notice to I essor and by paying to Lessor the
amount sufficient to pay all of the Base Rent and Additional Rent, if any, payable to Lessor
under Sections 3.5 and 3.6 for the balance of the Lease Term. Upon termination pursuant to this
Section 11.1, Lessee shall elect in its sole and exclusive discretion to either:

(a) continue to pay to Lessor the Fee pursuant to an agreement mutually
agreed upon by Lessor and Lessee which shall preserve the negotiated Fee payments and
other rights, benefits and obligations substantially in the form contained in Article V
hereof; as \vell as the Additional Rent and indemnity contemplated by Sections 3.6 arid
6.4, respectively; or

(b) From time to time and at any tune upon at least thirty (30) days' notice.
Lessee may tenninate this Agreement in whole or in part by paying to Lessor the
amounts specified in Section 4.4 hereof. Upon termination of this Agreement and the
conveyance referred to in Section 13.3 hereof, Lessee, as owner of the Building and
Equipment, will become liable for ad valorew property taxes on the Building and
Equipment.

Section 11.2 Option to Acquire Legal Title.

Lessee shall at all times, and from time to time, including during the continuance of an
Event of Default, have the option to purchase all or any poition of the Premises for a purchase
price often dollars ($10.00) together with all reasonable costs, fees and expenses of Lessor in
connection with such sale and together with all amounts due to Lessor under this Agreement
and the other Project Documents. Lessor, through its County Council, has expressly
determined, and by the granting of this option does reaffirm, that this option to purchase is in
the best interest of Lessor and in furtherance of the purpose of the Act.

Section 11.3 Conveyance on Exercise of Optioii to Acquire Legal Title.

(a) At the closing of the purchase pursuant to the exercise of any option to
acquire legal title granted herein, Lessor will upon receipt of the purchase price deliver to
Lessee a hmited warranty deed for the property being acquired, as such property then
exists, subject to the following (m) those liens and encumbrances (if any) to which title to
said property was subject when conveyed to Lessor; (ii) those liens and encumbrances
created by Lessee or to the creation or suffering of which Lessee consented; (iii) those
liens and encumbrances resulting from the failure of Lessee to perform or observe any of
the agreements on its part contained in this Agreement; (iv) Permitted Encumbrances
other than this Agreement; and (v) the rights and litle of the condemning authority with
respect to Section 7.2(a) hereof

cFIAR2\ I 8Y2—3 23



(b) Lessee shall pay all reasonable expenses of Lessor and all other taxes, fees
and charges incident to any conveyance, including expenses of document preparation,
any escrow fees, iecording fees and any applicable federal, State and local taxes and the
like.

Section 11.4 Coaveyance on Termination of Agreement.

At the termination of the Lease Term and upon payment in full of all rents and Fees due
hereunder, Lessor shall reconvey the Premises to Lessee by a limited warranty deed conveying to
Lessee title to the Premises subject to the following: (i) those liens and encumbrances (if any) to
which title to the Prenuses was subject when conveyed to Lessor; (ii) those liens and
encumbrances created by Lessee or to the creation or suffering of which Lessee consented; (iii)
those liens and encumbrances resulting from the failure of Lessee to perform or observ-e any of
the agreements on its part contained in this Agreement; and (iv) Perrnitled Encumbrances other
than this Agreement.

Section 11.5 Option to Extend.

II Lessee pays the rentals herein reserved to Lessor and is not otherwise in default
hereunder, Lessee shall have the option, with the prior written consent of Lessor which shall not
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, to extend this Agreement for additional five
(5)-year periods, terminable at any time by Lessee; provided, however, that an appropriate
instrument evidencing the exercise of such option shall be executed by Lessor and Lessee and
recorded in the same manner as this Agreement, and provided further that this Agreement shall
not be renewed or extended for any greater period than permitted by applicable law. In addition
to the other amounts as may be payable hereunder, the Basic Rent required to be paid by Lessee
to Lessor during such additional term or terms shall be ten dollars (S 10.00) per year, payable
January 1 of each year.

Section 11.6 Partial Releases.

To the extent that Lessee is entitled to cause the release of any portion of the Land or the
Equipment pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Lessee, in addition to complying with the
other applicable provisions of this Agreement, shall cause to be prepared, as necessary, a deed or
bills of sale with respect to such portion of the Land or the Equipment to be acquired by Lessee.
Lessee shall provide, in the case of Equipment, appropriate descriptions of the property to be
conveyed, and in the case of the Land, the appropriate legal descriptions. Thcreafler, Lessor
shall as necessary date, execute and deliver to Lessee the deed(s) or bills of sale, as the case may
be.

lEnd of Article XI]

CHAIC\SIQ2—ii 24



ARTICLY XII
11SCELLANEOUS

Section 12.1 Notices.

All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be given and shall he
deemed given when provided by Iliesimile transmission to the applicable party at the facsimile
number set forth below, with such transmission being promptly followed by duly mailing the
same to such party by registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as
follows:

If intended for the Lessee:

Nueor Corporation
2100 Rexford Road
dharlotte, NC 28211
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Facsimile Number (704) 366-4208

and

Nucor Corporation
Post Office Box 2259
Mount Pleasant, SC 29645
Attention: General Manager
Facsimile Number (803) 336-6108

If intended for the Lessor:

Lexington County
212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072
Attention: County Administrator
Facsimile Number (803) 359-8101

With a copy to:

Lexington County
212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072
Attention: CountyAttorney

Lessor and Lessee may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different
addiess to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shallbe sent.

CIIA]C\815S92—21J 75



Section 12.2 Binding Effect.

This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon Lessor, Lessee and
their respective successors and assigns, subject, however, to the limitations contained in Section
9.1 hereof

Section 12.3 Rescission and Severability.

In the event that the Act or the fee-in-lieu-of-taxes arrangement described in Section
5.1 hereof is ever determined to be invalid in its entirety, the parties hereby agree that all
transactions described in or contemplated by the Project Documents shall be rescinded as of
the dates that they occurred and that the status quo ante shall be restored; otherwise, in the
event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of
competent jurisdiction, that holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision of this Agreement.

Section 12.4 Amendments.

This Agreement may not be eFfectively amended, changed, modified, altered or
terminated without the concurring written consent of Lessor and Lessee.

Section 12.5 Execution of Counterparts.

This Agreement maybe executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original and
all of which shall constitule but one and the same instrument.

Section 12.6 Captions.

The captions or headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way
define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions of this Agreement.

Section 12.7 Law Governing Construction of Agreement.

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the
State.

Section 12.8 Payment Dates.

Whenever any paynent to be niade hereunder shall be stated to be due on a Saturday, a
Sunday or a holiday, such payment shall he made on the next business day.

Section 12.9 Recapitulation Waived.

Lessor and Lessee agree to waive all recapitulation requirements for this Agreement as
provided for in Section 12-44-55(B) of the Act.

C!4ACii5892—3 26



ction 12.10 Inducement Agreement

Thpsovisions of the InducmgiLaud Mfl eRu by
:ekrence intojh isgLciement.

[ SIGNATURES BEGIN ON FoLLowING PAGI3

CHAR2\$15S92—\3 27



[N 'WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed these presents as of the day
and year first above written.

(SEAL) LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA,
Lessor

By:
Chairman, County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina

ATTEST:

By:_____________________________
Clerk, County Council of
Lexington County. South Carolina

Witnesses:

C}iAR2\Jl$892—i3



PROBA'I'E

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

PERSONALLY appeared before me ______________________________________ \ho being
duly sworn says that (s)he saw _________________________________ as Chairman, County Couned of
Lexington County, South Carolina, and ________________________________as Clerk, County Council
of Lexington County, South Carolina, sign, attest and seal the foregoing Lease-Purchase
Agreement and that (s)lie witnessed the execution and delivery thereof as the act and deed of
Lexington County, South Carolina.

SWORN to before 'lie this

___dayof___________,2004.

___________________________________ (LS.)
Notary Public for the State of South Carolina
My Commission Expires

UT TAIU'S I 5S92—TS



NIJCOR CORPORATION,
Lessee

By: _________________
Name:
Title:

Witnesses:

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF MECKLENBIURO

I, _______________________________, a Notary Public for Mecklenburg County and State
aforesaid, certify that ___________________ personally came before me this day and
acknowledged that he is —____________ ofNIJCOR CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation,
and that he, as _______________, bethg authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument
on behalf of the corporation.

WITNESS my hand and official stamp or seal, this _____ day of _____________,2004.

Notaty Public

My Commission Expires: ______________

[Notarial stamp or seal]

CI{AR2\8i58922i3



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF LAND

All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situated, lying and being near the Town of Swansea,
in the County of Lexington, State of South Carolina, containing Ill 558 acres and being shown
and delineated on a plat prepared for Nucor Corjoration by Enfingor & Associates, Professional
Land Surveyors, dated February 15, 1996, and recorded as Slide 175, PIat 8, in the Office ofthe
Register of Deeds for Lexington County. Said tract being located on the eastern side of South
Carolina Highway S 32-102 and on the northern side of South Carolina Highway 3 and having
such boundaries and measurements as will more fully appear by rcIbrcnce to said plat which is
ncorporatcd herein and made a specific pail hcrco

Being the same property conveyed to Lexington County, South Carolina by Nucor Corporation
by Deed dated as of December 31, 1996, and recorded in Book 4084, Page 326, iii the Office of
the Register of Deeds for Lexington County, South Carolina.

CRC\815892—o



County of Lexington

County Council
212 South Lake Drive

Lexington, South Carolina 29072
TELEPhONE: (803) 359-8103 FAX: (803) 359-8101

March 14, 2005
Bruce F. itucker
District I
Chairman

William C. Derrick Mr. Bill Cravford
District 2 Financial Analyst
Parliamentarian Solectron USA, Inc.

1000 Technology Drive
West Columbia, South Carolina 29170

George H. Davis
District 3

Re: Tr:insfcr of Fee-In-Lieu of Tax Agreement Front Soleetron South Carolina
to Solectron USA, Inc.

Debra B. Summers
District 4

- Dear Mr. Crawford:

Lexington County is in receipt of your letter dated March 3,2005 in regards to the
Bobby C. Keisler request for Lexington County to approve the transfer of the fee-in-lieu of tax
District 5 agreementthat the County presently has with Solectron South Carolina to the new

company called Solectron USA, Inc. It is our understanding from your letter that
the name change is being done by your parent company, Solectron Corporation, to

Johnny W. JetTcoat simplify it; business structure.
District 6

Based on the representations made in your letter dated March 3, 2005, Lexington
County hereby consents to the transfer of all fee-in-lieu of tax documents as set

John W. Carrigg, Jr. forth in your letter. This approval wasmade by County Council at its meeting on
the 22nd day of March, 2005.

Joseph V. O.ens Sincerely,
DistrictS

M. Todd Cuhlum Bruce E. Rucker
District 9 Chairman
Vice Chairman

Lexington County Council

BERJdwb



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

RESOLUTION

THE COUNCIL FOR THE COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA,
MEETING IN GENERAL SESSION THE 22ND DAY OF MARCH, TWO
THOUSAND AND FIVE ADOPTED ThE FOLLOWING:

WhEREAS, Reverend Donald P. Davis has had a long and distingaished career of3O years after

early in life acknowledging his purpose to serve the Lord and lead others to Christ; and

WHEREAS, Reverend Davis has faithfiully devoted his life sewing the congregation of Trinity

Baptist Church since 1975; and

WHERE4 during Reverend Davis's tenure he has witnessed such projects as overseeing the

funding and construction of the congregation's first worship center and the subsequent construction of

a new 1500-seat worship center, an educational building and an office complex and has seen his
congregation grow from 124 to 1736; and

WHEREAS, Reverend Davis is affectionately known as "Pastor Don" by those he has
compassionately encountered in the community, state, and outer most parts of the world; and

WHEREAS, Reverend Davis is active both professionally and as a leader in his community and

has served in numerous capacities throughout his career to include the Executive Committee of the

Lexington Baptist Association; Advisory Committee of the Lexington County Sheriff's Department;
Cayce Economic Development Committee; Executive Committee of the General Board of the South
Carolina Baptist Convention; and the White Oak Conference Center Committee, South Carolina Baptist

Convention. He has served as Facilitator of the Ministers Growth Conference of the South Carolina

Baptist Convention and as a Certified MasterLife Facilitator of the South Carolina Baptist Convention.

WHEREAS, Reverend Davis' retirement will be a sad occasion for his church and community,

his faith and courage to serve the Lord will continue through his "family" at Trinity Baptist Church.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the members of the Lexington County

Council, offer our sincere congratulations to REVEREND DONALD P. DAVIS upon his retirement

Bruce E Rucker, Chainnan M. Todd Cullum, V Chainnan

William C. "Billy" Derrick George H. "Smokey" Davis

Debra B. Summers Bobby C. Keisler

Johnny W. Jeffcoat John W. Carrigg, Jr.

JoscphW. "Joe" Oens

ATTF,S1:



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

RESOLUTION

FIlE COUNCIL FOR 'FIlE COUNT\ OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA.
MEETING IN (;FNERAI. SESSION I LIE 22ND n-n' OF' M.-tRCU. TWO
TIIOUSAN1) ANI) FIVE Al)OP'I'El) TIlE FOl,LO\VIN(;:

\ IIERF:As. I.ovcell C "l3utch' Spires. Jr. \\as elected to LexiniLton County Council in H76.
cn'ing his constituents and Ire Cotintv or 15 years: and

VIlEREAS, Hutch served as Chairman Ui Ph9, 1991 and j905 and Vice—Chairman in 1953,
I 95, and I OSu: and

\\ IIEREAS. I3uteh is LiCtl\'e both pifflessionalivand nsa Ieadei in liiscoininunttvand hassen ed
in numerous capacities tlirotihout Ins career to include Chairnian of tire Iexinion Counts' Recreation
and AttintC'oininission: Chairnian and \ ice Chainnanol rheCentral Midlands Council oiGovernnrenis,

liesideni of die Sotirli Carolina Assoetairon ni Counties: Charter nrenther ni the (e'itral C:irolrna
Ec'iiotnic Development Alliance, West Nleiio and ('heater C'olunibta Clianibeis ofcnninierce, (:enjral
Midlands Regroiral hansir Alit}lOiit\ and the \lidlaliLis Autlic'rny lbrConv':'ntion>. Sports. and 'l'ounsni:
River Alliance, and President ot' Ire s.c.: :ssociation of Regional Councils: and

\\ II F REAS Butch's comm itnieni anti \ sion Ihr the eeononiie de\'elt ipmecit oil cx ingtoti Counts

en tied hi in hein named the South ( arolina A nthassador for Economic Development in 1994,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that we, the members of the Lexington County
Ctmncil, olieroursincete appreciation to LowF:1,I, C. "Bl'I'ClI"SPIRI:S,JR_ forall he has clone for
I .e.xington ('ount arid the eon ntless hiouts that lie has devoted sen'in1 tire Citizens of Lcxin2ton ('on cliv

Bruce F. Rucker, C'Iatiinan NI '('odd Culinni, V Chairman

\Vflhiianr C' "[3dB" Derrick Georte II "5k" Davis

Debra B Summers Bobby C, Keislei

Johnny V Jelienat John \V Carrigg. Jr.

Joseph W, ''Joe'' Owens

AC lIST

ian: \\' Burnett, Cerk



APPOINTMENTS-BOARDS&COMM[SS[0Ns

March 22, 2005

BILLY DERRICK
Board of Zoning Appeals - Ronnie F. Garner - Term expired 12/31/04 - Not eligible for

reappointment

DEBBIE SUMMERS
Library Board - Vacant (Resigned) - Term expires 9/26/07

JOHN CARRJGG
Children's Shelter - Vacant - Term expired 6/30/01
Health Services District Board of Directors - Herbert J. Hames - Tem expires 3/10/05 - Not

eligible for reappointment
Library Board - Vacant (Resigned) - Term expires 9/26/07

JOE OWENS
Accommodations Tax Board - Vacant - 1'errn expires 12/31/06

TODD CULLUM
Accommodations Tax Board - Vacant - Term expired 12/31/03
Assessment Appeals Board - Bill Power - Term expired 9/21/04 - Eligible for reappointment
Children's Shelter - Vacant - Tenn expired 6/30/03

AIKEN/BARNWELL/LEXJNGTON COMMUNITY ACTION
At-Large Appointment
Ms. Juanice Aaron (to replace Pamela Bobbitt) - Term expires 12/31/05

BUTLDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS
Building - E. D. Sturkie - Term expired 8/13/04
Plumbing - Perry Kimball - Terni expired 8/1 3/03

LEXINGTON/RICHLMS1J ALCOHOL & DRUG ABUSE COUNCEL,
At-Large Appointment
William L. Rawl, Jr. - Term expired 12/31/04 - Not eligible for reappointment

TEMPORARY SIGN AND PERMITTING COMMITTEE
Vacant - District 7

doc/appoint'apptnemo



AIKEN/BARNWELLILEXINGTON COMMUNITY ACTION COMMISSION, INC.

GEORGE A ANDERSON
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR P0. BOX 2066

AIKEN, SOUTH CAROLINA 29802
JAMES C. MILLEDGE (803) 648-6836
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD FAX (803) 649-1583

March 7, 2005

The Honorable Bruce E. Rucker, Chairman
Lexington County Council
212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, South Carolina 29072

In Re: Board Membership Appointments
AikenfBarnwellfLexington Community Action

Dear Mr. Rucker:

We are seeking your assistance along with the consideration and approval of Council, regarding
the appointment of a person to the referenced Board of Directors, which, asyou may be aware,
has involved itself in providing programmatic services and financial assistance to some of the
most needy, and disadvantaged citizens in Lexington County. While our Commission has been
operating since 1966, our provision and assistance in Lexington County began in 1984.

Accordingly, we would recommend the following and ask that you please cause the subject of
this appointment be given the most immediate consideration by the Council.

Reconm-iendee Area Representing

Ms. Juanice Aaron Lexington County At Large
4465 Highway 321, SC-7,
Gaston, South Carolina 29053

We have consulted the recommendee who has varied experience which we deem appropriate to
serve on our Board, and she had indicated her desire, willingness, and availability. Thank you
for your assistance and we look forward to hearing from you and Council at your earliest
opportunity. You may wish to contact Mr. Anderson for any questions you may have at (803)
648-6836, extension 234.

Sincerely yours,

Qnr- 7A44
JThcs C. Milledge, Chairman

George A. Anderson _________
Executive Director

CENTRAL OFFICES LOCATED AT
291 BEAUFORT STREET, NE

PROGRAM AREAS'

INDIRECT COST • WORKEORCE INVESTMENT ACT . COMMUNFTY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
WEATHERIZATION • HEAD START • RETIRED SENIOR & VOLUNTEER • ENERGY ASSISTANCE

WELFARE TD WORK • FOSTER GRANDPARENT

CAR

?



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

March 14, 2005

Art Brooks
County Administrator

Sheila R Fulmer, CPPB
Procurement Manager

Administration Auxiliary Building Renovations

(0)359-8166
(F) 359-2240

R

Competitive bids were solicited and advertised for the renovation of a portion of the Administration
Auxiliary Building The renovations consists of approximately 4,858 square feet to house Probation,
Parole and Pardon; 3,337 square feet for Flealth and Human Services; and 2,513 square feet for
Department of Juvenile Justice. It includes all plumbing, mechanical, and electrical requirements
necessary to provide a turn-key project with completion within one hundred and four (104) calendar

days.

A mandatory pre-bid conference was held on February 8, 2005 with eight (8) contractors present.
We received five (5) bids (see attached bid tabulation) The bids were evaluated by Ron Van Bergen,
F. J. Clark, Inc. and Sheila Fulmer, Procurement Manager. It is our recommendation to award this
project to the lowest bidder, Monteray Construction Company for a total cost of $577,000.00.

$577,000.00 Kroger Building Renovation

I concur with the recommendation and further request that this bid be placed on Council's agenda
for their next scheduled meeting on March 22, 2005

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance/Assistant County Administrator
Ray Disher, Building Services Manager

MEMORANDUM

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

Funds are appropriated in account number:

4500-179900-SAl 218

Attachment



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

BID TABULATION SHEET

PROJECT: Administration Auxiliary Building Renovations

BIDDER TOTAL BID

Monteray Construction Company $577,000 00

Preferred Construction Company $593,000 00

Accent Contracting, Inc $624,990 00

Summerfield & Associates, Inc $675,000 00

Smith Constructors & Engineers, Inc $680, 100 00

Bids Opened: March 3, 2005 2:00 PM

Sheila K Fulmer, CPPB
Procurement Manager



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)359-8385
(F) 359-2240

DATE: March 9, 2005

TO: ArtBrooks
County Administrator

THROUGH: Sheila R. Fuhner, CPPB c41n-tt.)
Procurement Manager

FROM: Janice A. Bell, CPPB
Procurement Officer

SUBJECT: Bcllemeade Storm Drainage Improvements
Community & Economic Development
Bid No. B05019-02107105B

Invitations for bids were advertised and solicited from qualified contractors for Bellcmeade Storm Drainage
Improvements. The project includes the demolition of existing storm drainage, construction of new storm
drainage and emsion control. There is an estinrnted 740 L.F. of 18", 1,419 L.F. of 24", 828 L.F. of 30",252 L.F.

36,510 L.F. of 42" and 451 L.F. 48" HDPE pipe; 216 L.F. 18", 142 L.F. 24,64 L.F. 30", 37 L.F. 30", 37 L.F.
42" and 72 L.F. 48" RC pipe; 1,540 L.F. Silt Fencing; 1.89 acres of Grassing; 6 Junction Boxes; 26 Catch
Basins; and 1.64 acres Clearing & Grubbing. We received bids from six (6) contractors (see attached bid tab).

Bids were evaluated by George Bistany, Community Development Administrator; J. Stacy Cuibreath, P.E.,
American Engineering Consultants, Incorporated; and Janice A. Bell, Procurement Officer. It is our
recommendation to award this contract to LAD Corporation of West Columbia as being the lowest responsive
bidder. The total bid for the project, based on estimated quantities, is $557,769.00.

2400-181201-537103 Urban Entitlement Community Development BdllemeadeDrainagelmprovements

There is $226,402.50 in the appropriated account. If approved, a budget amendment will be prepared for the
remaining $331,366 50 for this project.

I concur with the above recommendation and further reconmiend that this bid be placed on County Council's
agenda for their next scheduled meeting on March 22, 2005.

Attachment

copy: Lany Porth, Director of Finance I Assistant County Administrator
George Bistany, Cemmunity Development Administrator



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

BID TABULATION SI-WET

BID: B05019-02/07/05B D7VI'E: February 10, 2005

BELLMEADE STORM DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS

BIDDER TOTAL BID

Cherokee Construction $530,392.00*

LAD Corporation olWest Columbia $557,7691J0

S.C. Wilkie Construction LLC $571,398.00

Ideal Construction $631,694.50

L-J, Inc. $723,511.50

Corley Construction $794,685.70

tBid rejected for non-responsiveness.

Bids Opened: February 7, 2005 @3:00 p.m.

AR;O. Q(5
Ja#e A. Bell, CPPB
Pr8'curement Officer



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)359-8319
(F) 359-2240

DATE: March 7,2005

TO: Art Brooks
County Administrator

THROUGH: Sheila R. Fulmer, CPPB -

Procurement Manager

FROM: Donna J. Harris, CPPB
Procurement Officer Ct

SUBJECT: Motorola 800 MHZ Radios / VHF Portable Radios and accessories
Public Safety/Fire Service

We are in receipt ofrequisitions for the purchase of eight (8) Motorola 800 MI-IL radios, ten (10) VHF portable
i-adios and accessories for the Department of Public Safety/Fire Service. The radios and accessories will be
purchased directly from the manufacturer (Motorola) through the South Carolma State Contract #01R2002.07.
The 800 MHZ radio is a vital interoperable cornmumcation tool. The radios will bc issued to the following
municipal fire departments; limo, Cayce, West Columbia, Batesburg-Leesville and the Airport. These
departments will then have the capability to communicate directly with each other and the Lexington County
Fire Service. The portable radios will be distnbuted throughout the Fire Service. The addition of these radios
will enhance the Fire Service's ability to utilize available VHF frequencies, as well as maintain a backup to
the 800 MHZ system. 'l'he grant procedures have been approved by the South Carolma Department of Public
Safety. Total cost of these items including tax is $34,296.37.

Funds are appropnated in the following accounts:

l000-l3l500-5A5089 Fife Service $21,150.14
(13) Radios

2476-13 l500-5A5232 Homeland Secunty Grant $13,146.23
(5) 800 MHZ Radio (Municipal Fire)

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that these purchases be placedon County
Council's agenda for their next scheduled meeting on March 22, 2005.

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance / Assistant County Administrator
Timothy M. James, Deputy County Administrator
Russell Raw!, Fire Service Coordinator



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)359-8385
(F) 359-2240

DATE: March II, 2005

TO: Art Brooks
County Administrator

THROUGH: Sheila R Fulmer, CPPB 7)Procurement Manager

FROM: Janice A Bell, CPPB
Procurement Officer

SUBJECT: Motorola 800 MHZ Radio and Accessories
Sheriff's Department

We are in receipt of a requisition for the purchase of one (1) Motorola 800 MHZ Radio and
Accessories for the Sheriffs Department. The radio and accessories will be purchased directly from
the manufacturer (Motorola) through the South Carolina State Contract #01R2002.07. This radio,
which is a vital communication tool for all law enforcement officers, will be issued to our drug lab
chemist. Total cost of these items including tax is $5,330.53.

Funds are appropriated in the following account:

2441-151200-5A5209 LE/Forensic Drug Lab $5,330.53
(1) 800 MHZ Radio

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase be placed on
County Council's agenda for their next scheduled meeting on March 22, 2005.

Attachment

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance/Assistant County Administrator
Timothy M James, Deputy County Administrator
Sheriff James Metts



Minutes are left out intentionally until approved
by Lexington County Council. Upon Council's
approval, the minutes will be available on the
internet.



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLfNA

Department of Community & Economic Development
County Administration Building ($03) 359-S 121

212 South Lake Drive lexington, South Carolina 29072

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION # M04-Oo

Address and/or description of property for which the amendment is requested:

6172 Bush River Road. Columbia SC 29212 TMS 2697-01-003 p/o

Zoning classifications: High Density Residential (R3) General Commercial (C2)
(current) (proposed)

Reason for the request (use the back of this application form if necessary):

To rezone a portion of our property for commercial & residenlial development. The commercial portion

would consist of eight (8) deed restricted sites for free-standiiiiz, architecturally approved office buildings

The residential development wouldconsistof2Q-27 architecturallyapproved, deedrestrictedthdjvidual home

sites. (See attached land pl

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of proving the need for the
amendment rests with the aplicant.

Date 9/17/2004 Sianature U

(X) Owner? Namc(print) erry D. Rothstein

Agent? Address 6172 Bush River Road

Telephone # 803-772-6755 Columbia SC 29212-0933

*r******i<***t***,t****

1 9/17/04 Application Received 4. /L/Property Posted
2. 9/17/04 Fee Recei ved 5. Notices Sent
3. jjfji, Newspaper Advertisement

Planning Commission Recommendation:

-t*-t*t***

First Reading fl/3j Public Hearing 3/,/Second Reading S /2—/OThird Reading
Results:

H \DOCS\ZONfNG\IORMS\RothAincndsvpd



STAFF SUMI1VL4RY
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT #M04-06

Description of the Aniendinent: This map amendment request is for a change in zoning
elassiI ieation from "High Density Residential (R3)" to "General Commercia (C2)" for a portion of
the applicants property, approximately 6 acres.

Character of the A rca: 1 here is a mix of commercial and rcsidenti al use properiv. The subject

property is bordered on the north by single famdy residential and on the west by Langsdale Rd. To
the east is a clinreh, with the subject property bordered on the south by Bush River Road. Ihe
SCF&G McMeekiii Power Faeil itv and Saluda Dam property is aci-oss Bush River Road to the
south. The subject parcel is approximaiel\ 16.37 acres.

Zoning History: This property is in the Dutch Fork Planning Area zoned in 1971/1974. From
1986-1988there were six requests granted in the immediate area for a change from RI, CI or RI
to C2. From 1992 to 1994 two iequesis were granted for achange in zoning classification. One from

"General Commercial (C2y' to 'High DensityResidential (R3)" andthe otherincluded "Restrictive
Development (RD)" to "Low Density Residential (RI)" and "Low Density Residential (RI)" to
"High Density Residential (R3)''.

A requestfor change in zoning of this entire tract From "High Density Residential (R3)" to "Oeneial
Commercial (C2)" was denied on December 9, 2003 . Additionally, there was also a denial at first

reading for a plan of rezoni ng a Iesse. more deli ied acreage.

Council District: Six — Councilman Johnny W. Jeficoat

Attachments: Chart of Allowed Uses by Zoning Distrct
Political Boundaries Maps
Location Maps

'i \rjocs\zonINn\councrc\s-aaxOco6 'icC



21.30 Permitted Uses by District
The cohunnar chart which follows descubes the activities permitted within each district. This chart is
based upon the list of prtncrpal activities dcfned in Section 21.10 of this Ordnance and the districts
established in Secuon 1140, and is subject to the following:

a. The listing of a permitted activity within a district may be voided upon the application of the special
overlay district regulations pertaining to flooding, drainage, or airports found m Articles 4 and five of
this Ordinance

hi. The provisions of Chapters 2, 3, and four of this Article shall apply in all districts to all listed activities
as applicable. The application ofthese provisions mayprohibit an activity fromlocatrng in aparncular
distuct.

c. Within the Limited Restriction (LR) district, all activities except the following are permitted without
rewcw for compliance with the specihycvis ions of this Ordinance:

Er tremely Hazaroous Materials i1
H1\1 mug Operations as regulated d
I NI dine Home Pairis as regulate a'
- 3e <naRy Oneuted Businesses as r0i

art of Pennitted Activities Irict
Ti ire activities teal are mark 'mT
cx eption by the Board of Zonir 4flti

V V
i€2::ThiR:jj r: ::ei{

XX XX XX XX XX XX Administrative Offices
I

XX XX XX XX XX Advertismg Signs
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Airports

XX XX XX XX XX Animal Raising

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Boat Docks

XX XX XX Bus and Transit Terminals

XX XX XX XX Business Services

XX XX XX XX XE XX XX XX Cemeteries

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Child or Adult Day Cere

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Churches

IC': XX XX Cornmuni cation Towers

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Community Eduoauou

XX XX XX XX Construction Services

XX XX XX XX XX Crops
XX XX XX Detention Centers

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Essential Services (Limited)

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Essential Services (Exasisive)

XX XX XX XX XX FoodServices
XX XX XX XX Ceneral Popar and Maintenance Services

XX XX XX XX XX General Retail (Limited)

XX XX XX XX General Retail (Extensive)

XX XX4 XXA XXI XX XX XX XX XX Group Assembly (Limited)
XX XX XX XX XX Croup Assembly (Intermediate)

XX XX -_XX XX Croup Assembly (Extensive)

ZIL

•ulated by Article 3
ide S
rticle 7
ated by Article 9

an asterisk (') are allowed only when granted a special
cats as outlined in Article 11 of this Ordinance.



RD Cj=C1
xx XXHcXJXXFXXXXHX< XIX XX GroupfJeusing I

I
XX XX XX XX XX Hospitals

XIX XX XX XIX XIX Kennels and Stables

XX XX XX
XX XX XX
XX XX XX

I andfllls (Ltnnted)

j Landfills (Intennediate)
Lanaflits (ldxtenswc)

I
XX AX XIX XX Mmcfacrnnng (Pieht AssemlHy
xx XIX XX MaantaeLunng (TarnaLed)

XX XX XX ManufiLetnung (Irnennediate)
XX XX ICc Mnnnfacntuiig (ldntenstve)
XX XX 2CC XX Minmas

XX XIX XX XX XIX XX Medical Services

XX XX XX Military hetaiotrona
XX XX XX XX XIX Mining (Luinred)

XX XX XIX Mining (Lermedi ate)
XX XX XX Mining (iditensive)

XIX XX XX XX XX 11CC JAX XX XX XX XX Mim-PaJcs

XX XX XIX XIX MThi-Warehbase,s

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Mobile Homes

XIX XIX XX XX XIS Mobile Haste Parks (Limited)

XX XX XX XIX XIX Mobile I-tome Parks (Sxtensive)

XX XX XX XIX XX XX XIX XIX IXTS XX XX iXaturitkesecres

XIX XX XX ICC XIS XIX XIX Non-Assambly (Iulmral

XX XX XIX XX XX XIX XX XX XX XX Nursing Homes

XX XIS XIX XIX XIX Personal Cenveruence Services

XX XX XX IsX XX XXXIxl XIX Plant Niirscnes

XX XX XX Power Plants

ICC XIX XX XX XIX XIX Proibasiocal Scansces

XX XX XIS Radioactive Ntatena]s Handling

XX XXXXRailrcad

XX XX XIX kecycitag Centers
XX XX XX XX I tieseareb Serurces

XIX XX XIX XX XX XX XIX XIX XX XX Residennid Detached

XX XIX XX XX ICC XIX XIX XIX Res;denual Attached (2 JweThagunitsl
pCersdenttai Artachead 3 or more dwufling mica)XX XX

]

ICC XIX XX
ICC XIX XX XIX XX kenrenient Centers/Assisted Living

XX XIX XX StilvaaePPree bang Yard

XX 2CC XIX Scrap Operations
XX XX XX XX XIS ] Biismeas Parks

- - Sneculauve DevelopmentXX XX XX Si'onping Centers



RI: 4jfl :T1:!:1) 1 RA LU Cl [i(129j IiDi: j: LU; l: :1::i:h1 :1 1

XX XX XX ]nclustnal Parks
I I

I
XX XX XX XX Towing and Irnporiiidment Lot I

F lAX XX XX XX TradeEnteronses

XX XX XX AX Transtent Habitation

XX XX XX XX Transport and Wai-ehousing (Lmnted)
XX )GC XX El ansport and Warehousing (Extensive)
XX XX XX XX XX iransponhervices

JjK XX XX XX
XX XXFXX XXIXXIXX XX XX :CXCC< XX

Undertaking
Utilities

XX XX XX XX
XX XX XX XX

Vehicle Parking

Vehicle Repair
XX XX XX XX
XX XX AX XX XX

Vehicle Sales
I

Vehicle Serviemg (Lunited)
XX XX XX XX Vehicle Servicmg (Eviensive)

XX XX XX XX XX Vetennartan
XX XX !XX XX XXJ Zoos

# ThepermitEing of this activity in these districts is allowed onlyifthc Ui-cup Assembly (f.nnitcd) achvrtyis a nieinbershi
facility owned, operated. and ascii by theproperty owners in the sunoiintlingresidential ci-cu lbr winch the iitcility is being
established



1k ic I IV! S Viewer 
I o12 

Council Districts 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT #M04-06 



— 'J — W — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — 

Cuitent Data 
EEl 

a 

44 

LJ 

0 
S 

MAP AMENDMENT # M04-06 

Back to Menu 



2JUN40 C0A/R41/Y 

FR/ENDS/i/P CENTER, /1/C. 

nçr 

?ILtPUIC 20112 

— Lots Cl thru CB are 
proposed commercial lots 
(R3 to C2) 

F/i/ill A'Y /1 1 

I 



—
 

—
 
a 

—
 

// 

—
 

—
 

—
 

L
I 
L

uL
l 

-I
 

C
l) 0 0 C
, 

(0
 

I 0 -a
 

I 0 0 '3
 0)

 
"C

 

3 C
D

 a 3 C
D

 0 a I 0 C
, 



-t
 

C
- ii 

N
 0 z z 0 

C
 

rn
 

In
 

'I k 

-I
 

cr
 0 0 N

) 
0)

 
(0

 
-s

J I 0 - I 0 0 (#
3 

0)
 3 C

D
 a 3 C

D
 

4*
 0 a I 0 C
, 



COIIThJTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Department of Community & Economic Development
CountyAdniinistrationBuilding (803) 359-8121

212 South Lake Drive Lexington, South Carolina 29072

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION # MOS-Ol

Address andlor description of property for which the amendment is requested:

6172 Bush River Road. Columbia SC 29212 TMS# 2697-01-00Th/u

Zoning classifications: ftth_ensint Residential (R31 Low De.asitv Residential (Rl)
(current) (proposed)

Reason for the request (use he back of this application fonn if necessan'):

To rezoue the portion of Seiwood (Rothstein Property) as shown on map amendment application ft M04-06

as R3 to RI, in order to serve as a compromise between the property owner (Rothstein) and adjoining

property owners in Brittany Place Subdivision and Brittany II Subdivision.

Even though this request wilt be carefully reviewed and
amendment rests with the applicant.

Date 01-10-05

( )Owner?
) Agent?

Telephone ft ________

considered, the burden of proving the need for the

Signa
%3t%

Name(print) 't'J9t"t--t V'.-a.a Ct'sL.
VA-'at-ta

Address t\& S L''Ut3R..

-J

***********************

1. I /Lo/.CApplicauon Received
2. —HFee Received
3. 4/cjyNewspaper Advertisement

/J7/o Planning Commission Recommendation: /27a3 b— p/bJ-t 7r0

***********************

.L._/tf7afFirstReading/Y,€flubIic Hearing 3 /Y/a?Second Reading 3J22/QCFhird Reading
Results: _______

4. _L/j/oCProperty Posted• 4_/.2L/Qrotices Sent



STAFF SUMMARY
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT #M05-O1

Description of the :ti1cli(li1Wiit 'Ibis map amendment request is for a change in zoning
classification from 'High Density Residential (R3)' to Low Density Residential (RI)"thu the reai-
portion of the applicants propety.

Character of the Area: There is a in ix of commercial and residentta] USC Pr0Perl>' The stihlect
property is bordered on the north by single family residential and on the west by angsdale Rd. To
the east is a church, with the subject properly bordered on the south by Bush River Road. Ilie
SC E&G McMeel iii Power Faci lily and Saluda Darn property is across BLish RIver Road to the
south. The total subject parcel is approx inately 1637 acres. This amendment's portion is
approximately 1 0 acres.

Zoning history: 'III is property is in the Dutch Fork Planning Area zoned in 1 971 / 1 974 From
1986—1988 there were six requests gi-anted in the immediate area for a change from RI, C I or R3
to C2. From 1992 to 1994 two requests were granted fora change in zoning classiuication. One from
''General Comniercial (C2)'' to ''I-I igh Density Residential (R3)'' and the other included both
"Restrictive Development (RI))" to "Low Density Residential (RI)" and "Low Density Residential
(RI)" to "High Density Residential (R3)".

A req ucst for change in zoning o flh is entire tract fiom 'H igh Density Residential (R3)'' to ''General
Commercial (C2)' was denied on December 9, 2003. Additionahlr. there was also a dciii al Ibr a
plan of rezoning a lesser, more deli ned acreage. There is currently a request for a change m zoning
on the front portion of this propeity from 'II igh Density Resideiitial(R3)" to General Commercial
(C21'.

Council District: Six — Councilman Johnny \V. Jeffcoat

Attachments: chart of Allowed Uses by Zoning District
Political I3oundaries Maps
Localion Maps

i-i 'T)OCS'ZONiNG'COUNC1LSiJ\1\1050i wpc]



However, home occupation day care is not subject to the 25% of total floor area restriction, or the 750
square feet of floor area restriction imposed on other home occupations. Also, home occupation day
care may be conducted outside on the premises using yard flinushmgs customary to the residential
setting Additional traffic generation from one delivery and one pick up of each individual each day
shall be considered within the limitations of item "c' above. The Board of Zoning Appeal's
deliberations shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:

1. the size of the residence and the outside recreation area;

2 parking and vehicular access to the residence and its ability to accommodate the drop-off and pick-
up of the additional individnals;

3 the stated opinions of the surrounding property owners; and

4 if requested, the acceptability of havmg an employee ("caregiver" as defined by the South Carolina
Department of Social Services) who is not a resident of the dwelling unit

21.30 Permitted Uses by District

The columnar chart which foflows descnbes the activities permitted within each district. This chart is based upon
the list of principal activities defined in Section 21.10 of this Ordinance and the districts establishcd in Section
II 40, and is subject to the following:

a. The hstmg of a pennitted activity within a distnct may be voided upon the application of the special overlay
district regulations pertaining to flooding, drainage, or airports found in Articles 4 and 5 of this Ordinance.

b The provisions of Chapters 2, 3. and 4 of this Article shall apply in all districts to all listed activities as
applicable. The application of these provisions may prohibit an activity from locatmg in a particular district

c Within the Limited Restriction (LR) district, all activities except the following are permitted without review
for compliance with the specific provisions of this Ordrnance

Extremely Hazardous Materials as regulated by Article 3
1' Operations as regulated by Article 8

Home Parks as regulated by Article 7
fr Oriented Bus nesses as regulated by Article 10

'1 Permitted Activities by District

ctivities that are marked by an astensk (*) are allowed only when granted a special
th of Zomng Appeals as outlined in Article 12 of this Ordinance

exception by

iu: 1R2 iRa i II: -: i-At-nvLTIES
I )J< XX XX XX XX XX Administrative Ofiices

XX XX XX XX XX Advertising Signs
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Aiipoits

XX XX XX XX XX Annual Operations
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX l3oat Docks

XX XX XX l3us and Transit Terminals
XX XX XX XX Business Services

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Cenietenes
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Cluld or Adult Day Case

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Churches
XX XX XX Coninnunieatiou Toweis

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Cormnunity Education
XX XX XX XX Consti-uctjon Services

I .2:_ .3 - XX < Crops

14 AR1ICLE 2 . \PPLIC.rnov OF REGULATiONS



WV

1CLE-27LCAnONOFRZU1_Ai1ONS 13

Rf1R2iR3T1) jRXRDLCfCiPC2JJ)LR ACTIVITIES
XX XX XX

'cx ic< XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX

XX XX XX XX XX
XX XX XX XX

Detention Centers

[sentia1 Services limited)
Essential Services (Extensive)

Food Set-vices

Cenet-al Repair and Mamtenance Services
XX XX XX XX XX General Retail (Limited)

XX XX XX XX General Retail-(Extensive)
XX# XX# XX# XX# XX XX XX XX XX XX Group Assembly (Limited)

XX XX XX XX XX Croun Assembly (Intermediate)

XX XX XX XX Group Assembly (Extensive)
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Group l-kiuong

XX XX XX XX XX Hospitals
XX XX XX XX XX Kennels and Stables

XX- XX XX Landfills (Limited)
XX XX XX Land!ills (Intermediate)
XX XX XX Landfills (Extensive)
XX XX XX XX
XX XX XX
XX XX XX
XX XX XX
XX XX XX XX

Manuthctnnng (Light Assembly)

Mana[aetunng (Limited)

Manulhctunng (Intermediate)
Mamil)tcturing (Extensive)

Marinas
XX XX XX XX XX XX Medical Services
XX XX XX Military Installations

XX XX XX XX XX Nilmog (Limited)
XX XX XX Mining (Intermediate)
XX XX XX Mining (Extensive)

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Mint-Parks
XX XX XX XX Mini-Warehouses

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Mobile Homes
XX XX XX XX XX Mobile I-lame Parks (Limited) *
XX XX XX XX XX Mobile Home Parks (Extensive) *

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Natural Reserves
XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Non-Assembly Cultural

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Nursing Homes
XX XX XX XX XX Personal Conveinenee Services

XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX Plant Nursenes
XX XX XX Power Plants
XX XX XX XX XX XX Professional Set vices

XX XX XX Radioactive Ntatenals Handlmg

XX XX XX Railroad

I
XX XX XX Recycling Centers
XX XX XX XX Research Services

XX XX XX
XX XX

XX XX XX
XX

XX

XX

XX XX
XX XX

XX
XX

XX

XXI

Residential Detached

Residential Attached (2 dwelling units)

I — XX
XX XX

XX
XX

XX XX XXJ
XX XX

XX XX
XX XX

Residential Attached (3 or more dwelling uniLs)
Retirement CenteralAssisted Living I

Salvage/Wrecking Yard
I

Scrap Operations



tVUUC svflhiVt ztrgv 91 — 

ZrnDq ST ATfI1OEJ fl tJatqM JOJ BaIr Jtt1XIapTSa UTpUflOflflS p rn sJouA\c) Ap2doJd cup Aq ps'n put 'potncTo (pgO Airpa 
dujsiqmcnu si Apncw (p4nm-]) Aqucssy dnoirj ip p Auo PaA\OIII? si SpLflSTp TSTp 111 ATMtM sup jo ufl1flUJd 

T3ff XX XX ) XX I 

UtLWUIJQc)A XX XX XX )GC XX 
(Arsuap) EUTCLU P11PA XX XX XX )DC 
(pc';nmj uVUO 10PA XX XX XX XX XX 

StS )Pt42A XX XX XX 'fl JrdOH 'PNA XX XX XX XX 
UDfld JDPA XX XX XX XX 

SOTJLp3fl XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX XX 
UDpTPOpUfl XX XX XX XX 

-'°s podsuti XX XX XX XX XX 

OfPJv put pC'CLSUtJj XX XX 
ffiusnopit put podsumj XX XX XX XX 

uoniqE WaTSUUJI XX XX XX XX 
sasuthTull cpnj XX XX XX 

iuwj'rrnodmj put hih\xoj XX XX XX 
I 

SPJP?U1SnPUI XX XX XX 
s.juc ñuiddoqs XX XX XX XX 

r d SSUT5UE XX XX XX XXJ XX 
:1;i1i:Ei:u::.i:ii;I i\}JI :i: 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

S a I 



I

zzzzCN



0
I

tf)
0It2:

2:

2:
2:
CN



C
t

zCzC

jII

I
4

II

I
III

I
kJI I

II
I



0)
 

-I
t C

D
 0 00.
 

N
) 

a)
 

cc
0 

I 
-.

 
01

4:
 

- I 0 o0
 

c9
1 0 

—
 

—
 

—
 

Ill
 

-:
:*

 :'::
 



ZONING

DESIGArIONS
R0D CtA1,SI4CATIc*

- I -

A-kIi IRfl
C - 041&t, IQaJ

LL-LJrn!.-JLl 1401-I

I.- Io00oi
-RTh LEC2

RL3II(slo(th4
4L4 - RoJ L0 0

E01SIRIC;rlE CEELOI.ICN I

RI- 1401 b010/Arni

D-DoopnIoI
RI- LooCR1 OIIJO1RI

[] RI- RoghDtyOoothi
C O-S*Do lbP000II

iTC3I2C DEVELOPWEIIT

LC-LnU€4Coo1coaI
CI-N!Jh114IC1!! 1I(-!S

— Cl - C,Ij 44 !lI0! Ii
ID- Intel Do 4reThnnI
SPECL44 DIST1C IS

7] LR - L.,Ael R€I

FD-P1[04UnII1001lL
T±SLM - LSn I-101n

'0- f 140
/ /(/ < ' RIiH- - 4 -H

s_t
-

0 I,'n(--
, _i_ __Ij:

I >tL

Proposed

' Rat>1J--' t--
__n_i--- --f-:

0 250 500 750 L000
I

I Foot

Map Amendment # M05-01
TMS # 002697-01 -003 A

R1\

La.
—I



2 

;c 

I 
''I 
II 

- 

4 (( 
I 

nrr -u-v i) 
h-rn A/t777 n&v7 ii 

r4I'rI(?4. ?? npr 

- 

I 

I 

IsQ __7 d{(f 

rflP ; 9o/Lo/ 
3S 'EiqU1flO3 

PEON flAr>J qsnq LT9 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUN FY OF L.EXINGI'ON DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE
COVENANTS FOR SELWOOD
BUSINESS PARK

BE iT KNOWN this Declaration of Restricttvc Covenants is made on
201)5 by (Selwood Development Group , a South Carolina(tvpe of entitvj)

herea Per known as "Deelarants''

Wi-IFREAS, Selwood Development Group is the owner ofa parcel of land on Old
Bush IR i ver Road a Lexington County as shown on a survey titled __________________ by
_________________________________ dated ____________________,, and recorded in the
Office of the Register of Deeds of Lexington County at Book______ and Page _______

Whereas, the Declarants wish to ensure that all parcels constituting Seiwood
Business Park shall he used for liniiled commercial purposes and at all times shall he
appropriate for the location of the Business T'ark, and

Whereas, to accomplish these aims by limiting the manner in which Selwood
Business Park may be used, Deelarants wish to impose on Selwood Business Park the
Restrictive Covenants listed below;

Now therefore, Declarants declare the Seiwood Business Park shall be held, sold,
and conveyed subject to these Restrictive Covenants; and that these Covenants shall run
with the land, shall be binding upon any and all persons or entities having any right, title,
or interest in the Business Park, or in any part thereof; and on their heirs, assigns, or
successors, and shall inure to the benefit of each owner of each lot constituting the
Business Park now or at any time in the future.

ARTICLE
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Description of Property

See Exhibit "A" attached

Definition of "Ow ncr" and "Occupant"

As used in these covenants, "Occupant" is any person, firm, eorpoi-ation, partnership,
association, trust, or other legal entity, or in any combination thereof; who physically
occupies any portion of a lot, or lots, in the Sel\vood Business Park.



As used in these covenants, "Owner" is any person, finn, corporation, partnership,
association, trust, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof; who is the holder of a
deed to a lot, or lots, in the Selwood Business Park.

Purpose of Covenants

Covenants are being created for Selwood Business Park to ensure development occurs in
a manner compatible with the surrounding area and that occupiers of individual lots will
use the property in compatible and complementary uses. Owners and occupiers of the
business center as well as surrounding landowners are to be protected against uses that
may render their property less desirable.

References in Conveyances

Declarants intend this Declaration of Restrictive Covenants will be recorded in the Office
of the ROD for Lexington County, and the Declarants and any person, firm, corporation,
partnership, association, trust, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who
becomes the holder cf a deed to a lot, or lots, in the Seiwood Business Park shall be filly
bound by its provisions. To accomplish this end, Declarants shall place the following
statement in any dccci conveying any intefest in any lot or lots in said Business Park to
other persons or entities:

"Purchaser acknowledges the existence of Restrictive Covenants limiting the use
of property in the Seiwood Business Park which are recorded in the Office of the ROD
for Lexington County. As part ofthe consideration for the purchase of any lots or lots in
said Business Park, Purchaser accepts and agrees to abide by all the provisions thereof."

This statement shall likewise be placed in all subsequent deeds conveying any interest in
any lot or lots in said Business Park to any person or entity. However, the failure to
comply with this provision by any party shall in no way diminish or impair the binding
effect of these Restrictive Covenants.

Constructive Notice and Acceptance

Every person, partnership, corporation, or other legal entity which acquires any right,
title, or interest in or to any portion of the property is and shall be conclusively consented
and agreed to every covenant, condition, and restriction contained herein, whether or not
any reference to this Declaration is contained in the instrument by which such person,
corporation, partnership or organization acquired such right, title, or interest.

Tenn

This Declaration of Restrictive Covenants shall continue in fill force and effect for a
period of twenty years from the date of recordation hereof, alter which it shall be
auto inatically extended for successive periods often years.



Term i nation, Ni od i fication, and Waiver

This Declaration of Restrictive Covenants may be amended, extended, modified, or
terminated only by a duly authorized act of the Architectural Comniiftee of Seiwood
Business Park, consisting ofierry Rothstein, Carole Rothstein, and David Rothstcin, or
its assigns. However, any amendment, extension, modification, or termination ofUese
Covenants shalt only become effective upon its recordation in the Office of the ROD for
Lexington County.

Effects of Invalidation

If any provisions of this Declaration is held to he invalid by any court, the invalidity of
such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions hereof.

ARTICLE H
PERMITTED AND PROHIBITED USES

hitendcd Use

AU lots compnsing the Selwood Business Park are dedicated to use as commercial space
with restrictions as set forth below. Without exception, any use of the Business Park
nLlst he compatible with the uses within the, [usiness Park and surrounding area.

Prohibited Uses

All structui-es must he approved by the architectural committee. Once a structure
has been approved and built, no user of that building may substantially alter the
appearance of that structure nor may they make any additions to that building
without approval of the Architectural Committee or its assitns.

2. No lots within the business center-may be subdivided.

3. No business shall be allowed to operate for the uses of heavy manufacturing or
other industrial activities, repair of combustion engines, or any other activity
which might interfere with the rendering of services to clients. Obnoxious noise,
vibration, smoke, dust, dirt, and unusual hazards will be prohibited.

4. All lots and structures shall be maintained and not allowed to suffer waste or
disrepair. Each Owner and Occupant shall keep the building in good condition
iiid repair, and adequately painted or olhcr finished hi keeping with the exisling
appearance. Landscaping wirl be of a uniform nature and maintained regularly.

3. No portion of the business center shall he used for the storage of any vehicle.
including trailers and campers, which is not connected to the nomial business
operations of an Owner or Occupant. No inoperable vehicles shall be allowed at



any time. No heavy machinery is allowed unless in use in the construction of
maintenance of the property.

6. Trash and debris shall not be allowed to accumulate on the property. Any
dumpster provided for joint use shall be maintained by all users to maintain a neat
and professional appearance. -

7. Signage shall be discreet and in a form approved by the Architectural Committee.

8. All fixtures, appliances, or utilities are to be kept in the rear of each building
unless approved by the Architectural Committee.

9. All storage off any materials necessary to the operation of a business is to be
contained within that husiness. No storage outside of the building \vill be allowed
unless approved by the Architectural Committee.

10. No temporary buildings or other improvements of a temporary nature shall be
permitted in the Business Park.

Uses Requiring Written Permission of Architectural Committee

I. No signs, banners, or billboards for the attraction of tenants shall be permitted
anywhere in the Business Park without the wntten permission of the
Architectural Committee or its assigns.

2. Any dumpster provided for the joint use of the Owners and Occupants shall be
used in a narmer which respects the rights and safety of the other owners and
occupants in its use. All Owners and Occupants shall assist in keeping the
area surrounding the dumpster neat and professional in appearance. No
person or entity may place a private dumpster on the premises without the
written permission of the Architectural Committee or its assigns.

3. No fencing shall be erected without the written permission of the
Architectural Committee or its assigns.

-

4. No trees, shrubs, or other landscaping vegetation shall be trimmed, cut, or
-

removed without the written permission of the Architectural Committee or its
assigns.



ARTICLE III
ENFORCEMENT

By Whom Enlhrceable

In the event any Owner or Occupant of any portion of the Business Park violate any of
the provisions of these Restrictive Covenants, any Owner, group of Owners, the
Architectural Committee or its assigns may enforce these provisions
Notice

Written notice of any violation of these Covenants must be delivered to the Owner of the
building occupied by the violator, and to the Architectural Committee or its assigns.
Upon written notice, the Owner of the building occupied by the violator shall have fifteen
days to cure the violation.

Remedy of Violation

In the event an Owner Fails to cure a violation of these Covenants within fifteen days
after receipt of written notice, any Owner or the Architectural Committee or its assigns
may seelc enforcement and damages in any court of competent jurisdiction, In addition, if
the offending Owner loses a legal or equitable action hereunder, the person or entity Who
brought the action shall also be entitled to recover attorney's fees and costs from the
offending owner.

Right to Cure Given to Architectural Committee

In addition to the remedy described above, the Ai-chitectural Committee, or its assigns. is
expressly granted the right, privilege, and license to enter upon the Lot of the offending
Owner and take any action to cure a violation of these Covenants. Al reasonable cost of
curing the violation shall he at the expense of the offending Owner. lfsaid Owner fails to
reimburse the O\vner's Association within a reasonable time after receipt of a bill for the
cost ofeuring a violation, the Architectural Committee, or its assigns, may sue the
offending Owner pursuant to the paragraph above entitled "Remedy of Violations."

Failure to Enforce Not a Waiver of Rights

The failure of any O\vner or the Architectural Committee or its assigns to enforce any
covenant herein contained shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the right to do so
thereafTer, nor ofthe right to enforce any other provision of the Declaration.

Effect of Residential Sale

Nothing in this document shall prevent the sale or use of the entire parcel of land shown
on the above mentioned plat as Seiwood Business Park, or any portion thereof, to be used
as residential property. In the event such sale or use is sought, these Restrictive



Covenants shall he deemed not to affect any portion of the parcel so sold or used
exclusively as residential property.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Declarants have caused their names to be siied hereto, by
its officer, who are authorized to do so.

Witness: Declarants:



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Department of Community & Economic Development
County Administration Building (803) 359-8121

212 South Lake Drive Lexington, South Caiolina 29072

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION # M04-09

Address andior description of property for which the amendment is requested:

5466 Bush River Rd., 5663 Wescott Rd. Columbia 29212 TMS# 002798-01-002 & 022

Zoning classifications. Development (Dl General Commercial (C21
(current) (proposed)

Reason for the request (use the back of this application form if necessary):

All properties that surround the property on Hush River Road are already zoned commercial and this

amendment would greatly increase the marketability of my property in the future. It would a'so allow for

additional activities as opposed to the limited allowances of Development districts.

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of proving the need I r the
amendment rests with the applicant.

Date 12/16/04 Siature __________________

(KOwner? Name(print) David A. Smith
Agent?

Address 5466 Bush River Rd.
Telephone # 803-798-7679 Cothmhia, SC 29212

** * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *

1. 12 /16/ 04 Application Received 4. JJ/ orProperty Posted2. i/j/oM Fee Received 5. .LjzjjcrNotices Sent
3. Jjt/crNewspaper Advertisement

2/J2o Planning Commission Recommendation: ffi z�tn. JX

-/
* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * t * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * ** * * * t * * * *

]S?o5First Readingi'jcStuhlic Heanng 3/t/0 Second Reading j22-/&hird Reading
Results:



M04-09 Original Map Amendment Application Request 



— — — — — — — — _ — — — — — — — — — S 

M04-09 Amended Request per applicants' letter dated 01-3 1-05 



TMS# 002798-01-022 

M04—09 Amended request per applicants' conversation with 
Councilman Carrigg as reported in P&A Committee 03-08-05 



4M&NDMT
APPLETREE, INC. LANDSCAPING C h P

NURSERY €3 MAINTENANCE
__________________________________________ DAVID SMITH

MAROLYN SMITH5466 OLD BUSH RIVER ROAD
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA 29212
(803) 798-7679
FAX: 803-772-2761
NURSERY: 803-772-2773 3 (

L-
RECEIVED

L>c, C FEB 022005
lSnqtcn Cnt' CUmmLLtY

& Ecncmc JevCc:.E,..

*
cLc

- t

•
-

i

DESIGN - INSTALLATION - MAINTENANCE
Family Owned and OeTated Since 1981



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

ORDINANCE 05-01

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 54-61(c) OF THE
FRANCHISED COLLECTORS ORDINANCE FOR LEXINGTON
COUNTY

Pursuant to the authority granted by- the Constitution of the state of South Carolina and General
Assembly of the State of South Carolina, be it ordained and enacted by the Lexington County
Council as follows:

WHEREAS, Ledngton County awards residential solid waste franchises within the
unincorporated area of Lexington County; and

WhEREAS, the awarding of the franchise areas is not a regular procurement of services
since the franchisees contract directly with residential customers for service rather than with the

County of Lexington; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of County Council to get the lowest possible rate and the best
possible service for residential customers in Lexington County; and

WHEREAS, County Council believes that it would be in the best interests of Lexington

County residents to allow County Council the option of negotiating the best possible price and
services with prospective franchisees;

-

NOW, ThEREFORE, Section 54-61(c) is hereby amended to read as follows:
Section 1 (c' Contracts may be obtained from either competitive bidding

through the regular county procurement process or through
negotiations with prospective collectors of solid waste.

Section 2: This amendment shall be effective upon the date of its adoption.

This Ordinance was adopted in meeting duly assembled this ________ day of ________
___________________ 2005.

Bruce E. Rucker, Chainiian
Lexington County Council

ATTEST:



COMMITTEE REPORT
RE: Resolution - Carolina Culinary Foods, L.P. - Financing Agreement

DATE: March 9, 2005

COMMITTEE: Planning and Administration

MAJORITY REPORT: Yes

The Planning and Administration Committee convened on Tuesday, March 8, 2003 to consider a
resolution authorizing the execution and delivery of an Estoppel, Consent and Agreeiiient, and
Leasehold Mortgage by and between Lexington County and Bank of America.

Mr. Carl Holloway, the attorney representing Carolina CulinaryFoods, h.P. f/Ida Columbia Farms -
OST, h.P., stated his client desires to enter into a financing agreement with Bank of America and
mortgage its leasehold interest as collateral for the loan(s) extended by Bank of America, however
the title of the property is currently under Lexington County's name as a result of a fee-in-lieu tax
agreement.

Mr. Holloway said the loan is in excess of$ 1 billion with the County's portion being between $11
million to $18 million but stated the County is not obligating itself for the loan but agreeing for the
leasehold interest to be mortgaged.

The committee voted to :ecomrnend that full Council approve the resolution contingent upon the
approval of the County attorney.


	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	J
	K
	L
	M
	N
	O
	P
	Q
	R
	S
	T
	U
	V
	W
	X
	Y
	Z
	1
	2
	3
	4



